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Preface

The Presidio of San Francisco, an active armmy post now entering
its third historic century, is also in its entirety a part of Golden

-Gate National Recreation Area, although most of the Presidio is still

adninistered by the Department of the Army and only same fringe
areas have come under administration of the Department of the Interior

-through the National Park Service,

The Presidio of San Francisco is also one of the most historic
properties in the San Francisco area and in northern California,
dating as a military post from 1776 snd having contirmued in that
role under Spanish, Mexican and American govermments., It is a
Registered National Historic Landmark and includes buildings which

" . date back as far as 1857 and frarments of adobe wall within the

mich modified Officers' Club which date back at least as far as the
Mexican period during the 1820s and perhaps to the Spanish period

even earlier, The Presidio contains some of the oldest buildings in

San Francisco, nearly all of the mid-19th Century buildings of historical
or architectural significance elsewhere in the city having been des-
troyed by the earthquake and fire of April, 1906; although the earthquake
damaged many Presidio buildinegs, the fire did not touch it. Thus at

the beginning of its third century the Presidio still contains an 18657

post hospital, a row of 1862 officers! quarters remodeled in 1878,
.an 186l magazine, barracks dating from the 1880s, and many other
-historic batteries, buildings and structures.

This compilation of manuscripts, extracts from books and documents,
illustrations and maps dealing with various aspects of the history of
the Presidio of San Francisco is a result of two concerns., First, at
& time when planning pertaining to Golden Gate National Recreation Area
was focusing increased attention on the history of its component lands
including the Presidio, there was little readily available information
on Presidio history to guide planners, managers, and park interpreters,
end a Historic Resources Study then in preparation would not deal with
many aspects of Presidio history beyond structural history., Second,
the National Park Service had one brittle, yellowing and badly "dog-eared”
carbon copy of an old mamuscript prepared by the Historic American
Buildings Survey which merited wider distribution within the National
Park Service to insure its preservation, as in the past material of this
sort has occasionally been lost or destroyed in one of many periodic
Phousecleanings" of govermmert files and libraries, a practice which in
& few extreme instances has necessitated duplication of work already
accomplished, The inclusion of the entire Presidio in the new recreation
area in 1972 rendered this need particularly acute, A decision was
made in 1975 in the Division of Historic Preservation of the Western
Regional Office, National Park Service, to reproduce by xerox and

//




distribute 2 small number of copies of the HABS study to meet the
need for information and insure preservation of the information,

The HABS study dealt only with the original Spanish-Mexican
Presidio, nearly ignoring, except for one or two almost accidental
inclusions, anything pertaining to Presidio history during the American
period, 1t seemed, therefore, worthwhile to include such data as
came readily to hand regarding this later period, Thus to the original
HABS study was added a brief section drawn from published but scarce
official army reports describing the Presidio in the period 1854 to
1904 (Part VI), A comparison of the various descriptions and maps in
this section will provide the reader with some idea of the extent and
form of Presidio growth during this era,

At that time it was discovered that the Presidio Army Museunm
possessed an even more fragile 12L-page tissue carbon copy of a
manuscript compiled about 1940 by the Vriters! Program of the WPA
entitled "The Army at the Golden Gate", This seemed a worthy addition,
although missing a section listing commanding generals and units, and
became Part VII, A brief six-page chapter extracted from the 1565
book O1d Forts of the Far VWest was added, with permission of its autnor,
Colonel Harvert i, Hart, U,.,S5. Marine Corps,. and became Part VIII,

-& brief listing of coastal defense artillery emplacements.in Golden

Gate National Recreation Area (including some in Marin County but not

&1l of those in the Presidio), which had been prepared by Park Technician
" John Martini of Golden Gate National Recreation Area for interpretive

" purposes, was added to become Part IX, Finally, an up-to-date listing

of Presidio commanders during its two hundred years of history was added
a8 Part X, The original Table of Contents of the HABS study was expanded
t0 include these additional five sections of material, and the entire
compilation was numbered in sequence with a mechanical stamp, a process

“+¢ which had not even been applied to the original HABS study. (Consequently

the pages throughout contain two numbers--a number assigned as part of
the original document, and the number assigned this compilation), Then
the enlarged Table of Contents was keyed to the new page numbers so that
it might also serve as a very general index to the contents, which also
had not been done in the original HABS study,

It is believed that even upon completion of the Historic Resources
Study of the military lands in Golden Gate National Recreation Area this
campilation will have a contimued utility in the park, containing some
details not included and touching on some areas of history not covered
by that study,

Gordon Chappell

Regional Historian, Western Region
National Park Service

September 17, 1976
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THE FOUNDING OF THE PRESIDIO OF 3AN FRANCISCO 3

The presidio wazs one of the major institutions
esteblished by S~zin in the Mew Torld. The wérd itself is
derived from the Latin przesidium, meaning, in one sense, 2n
armed garrison, This institution nlayed an important nart
in Roman frontier policy. Under the empire every signifi-
cant frontier hzd its praesidium. It marked the line between
Roman 2nd non-Romzn lends., Behind lay the subjugatéd; in front,
‘the berberisn 2nd foreigner, During thrests of foreign
invesions, the Romén garrison wes called unon to protect
Roman domains. When such threats were removed and a givenA
frontier beczme pacified, the prazesidium was moved farther on
into unconcuered regions. It wes this eygtem, one of the
mzny Roman legzcies left to Spain by.Home, thst was »ut into
effective use in the Yew World.l

The Spenish thrust northward from fexico City =2fter
‘the f211 of Aztec nower was 2ssisted in no smsll measure by
the chain of presidios established along the frontier, Six-

teenth-century 3penish exnansion’ into the Chichimec ccuntry2~

1, Por 2 comoarative study of the presidio and the nraesidium,
gee BlackmeT, Snenish Institutions of ithe 3outhrest, 192-19k,

2., Chichimec was z neme spnlied to the Indians living immedi-
- ately north of lexico City,.



owved a great deal of its success to those garrisons. The
more hostile an 2rea, the more nresidios there were. To
hold the Indizn in check ond to 2id the missionary in the
soresding of European civilization were the nrincipel mo-
tives for presidio-founding in the sixteenth 2nd seventeenth
centuries, Each mission had its 2llotment of soldiers, usu-
ally three, which were supplied by the nearest presidio, The
soldigr was exnected to meintain order at the mission, to
protect the missionary from Indian attacks, znd to accomoany
the religious on their tours of inspection and administration
at rencherf%sB and visiteslu In times of native disturbances
" and uprisings, the entire body of soldiers at one or more
presidios might be called upon to restore order, Hed it not
"been for the vresidial ‘system, "the story of Spanish conquest
and colonization mizht have been zpprecizbly different. It
would be difficult to estimate the extra loss of life and
pronerty which would have attended Spanish advence into the
indian country without the supvort of the nresidio,
Strategic sites were chosen for the presidios, and
an eff@rt was alwsys made to found the garrisons nezsr an ade-
guate supply of water and pasturage. Grazing lands were an

essentizl factor in determining the location of a Spanish

s 2.
3. Rencheriss are Indien setilements.

, Visites were specified places visited meriodicelly by the
missionery to administer to the Indian,
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frontier fort. The soldier early lesrned the value of the
horse in Indien cermaigns, and few were the presidios that
were not within rezsonable distance of pasturage. A com-
manding hill or table-land might mark the site of the mili-
tary post, while close by would be grass lands, and fresh
water would be aveilesble,

At times the military posts were nothing more than
unfortified cemms without vermenent cusrters for the trooms.
If, however, there wes resson to believe that zn ares demanded
a permanent gsrrison beczuse of the characteristicelly
bellicose nesture of the eborigines, the viceroy at llexico
City, with the 2ssistznce of other government functionaries,
would decree the erection of fortifications and buildings to
“house the soldiers., 'Plans, usuzlly drawn up by the-zdelsn-
tado or frontier governor, would then be submitted to the
viceroy's officials for approval,

Economy znd utility were the common zuiding factors
in_the construction of the presidio, Buildinz meterizls were
those that the surrounding country zfforded. Lack of stone
czlled for the use of clay or zdobe; scarcity of hard end
durable woods was supplemented with other fibrous plants;
while netels rarely found a nlsce in vresidizl erchiteCQure.

The zeneral scheme was to build those establish-
ments zlong rectenguler lines. A site once chosen, a large

ouadrangle, with sides varying from two to six hundred feet



in length, war marked out. Upon this, walls of stone or
edobe vere Euild. The wells seldom exceeded twenty feet in
hei;ht, end one of the sides prowvided an entrznce intos o
large court or nlsza. Fecing the court and built ageinst
the walls were the buildings of the presidioc. The comman-
dent's cuerters were ﬁsually the largest and most favorably
sltuated of the presidiel buildings. Extending sround the
remaining sides of the wail and in juxteposition to one
2nother were the'remaining structures, The church occupied
a prominent position among those edifices, a2s did the ware-
houses an& the berrecks. Yo presidio wes without its guard-
house and enlisted men's pusrters.
Such modest establishments were the presidios found

on 211 important Spanish-American frontiers. They did not,

| however, confine their activities solely to Indian affeirs.
During the eighteenth century, fear of European encroechment
‘upon Spenish territory along the northern selients of Yew

.'Spains added to the man? duties of presidizl troops. Towards
the close of the seventeenth century the activities of La
Salle 2nd the Pensacola colony pointed out to the Spsnish
suthorities the need of strengthening the frontier defense,

Yore then 2 half-century later, French intrueions into Few

‘5. Yew 3nain included the territory now known es llexico and
the grester pert of southern 2nd western United Stetes.



Mexico esroused aporehension smong the viéeroyal authori-
ties,6 and rumors of foreign aggression in the Pacific'ceused
no 1little concern st the court of lladrid. Russia, Enzland,
end France were =21l rerorted as having designs upon Califor-
nia.l Claiming by right of discovery, Svzin put forth every
effort to maintzin her North Pacific nossessions, To colon-
ize Upper Czlifornia and to estzblish adeguate military de-
fenses were therefore necessary if 3veain were to hold on to 2
vest though little knomarez. . '

More than two hundred years elapsed teiween the
discovery of Upver Cslifornia and its settlemenit, Cebrillo,
in 1542, was the first Europesn to szil 2long its shores. 1In
‘the course of the next sixty years such famous.voyagers as
Drake, 3zli, Cermeﬁo, and Vizcaino engzged in Celifornia ex-
plorztory expeditions; btuit no colonies were then founded, and
ell left their tasks ignorant of the existence of one of the
finest harbors in &all the world. That discovery occurred in
1769, when one of the members of the Portols expedition viewed
the tey from the crest of a2 hill gouth of San Francisco,

1%t wes some time, however, before the Spanisrds

realized that they had discovered 2 new body of water. They

6. See Bolton, "French Intrusions Into Yew lexico, 1749-1752,"
in The Pacific Ccezn in Fistory, 389-L07,

7. Bolton, Anza's Celifornir Exneditions, I, 26; Chovman, The
Foundins of Snenisn Celiforniz, 74-75.




believed thet what they had found was merely on estuary of
San Franciséo Bay, or the modern Dreke's Bey., Later, vhen it
wzg made xnovn in lNexico City that a new bay had been dis-
covered, Vicerov Crolx promptly ordered the founding of set-
tlements on its shores to secure it zzainst occupation by
some hostile power. On Lovember 12, 1770, Croix gave orders
for a thorough explorztion of the port and the erection of a
mission on its shores., But Pedro Feges, military commandei
of Californiz, regerded the viceroy's order imvossible of
“fulfillment because'of the scarcity_of troops to protect the
| mission, Father Junfﬁero Serraz, bitterly opposed to most of
Fazes! plens, disagreed with the commsnder's expianation for
not carrying out instructions. Fages, however, prevailed
successfully against the missionaryfs wishes, and the found-
ing of the mission end presidio had to wait five more years.
The city of San Francisco owes its beginnings to
the tenscity end energy of one of the greatest viceroys of
Yew Spezin -~ Antonio Her{é Bucareli y Urusa. Buéareli ceme
into power in Sepfember, 1771, During the succeeding two
years he was concerned, so fer ‘as California affairs went,
primarily with meintzining what had already been established.
.He learned, however, that matters were not 21l that they
should have beeﬂ. Compleints from both the religious znd
civil authorities of California distressed him, Missionary

end coldiers were seldom on emiceble terms with each other.



Serra complained of the activities of Rivere and Fages, end
the two letter directed bitter invectives eszz2inst the Fran-
ciscean father., Aronz the many other reports Bucereli hezrd
concerning Unner Celifornir 2ffairs, none gave hin grerter
anxiety for the future of that country than the nerennial
ladk of adequote supplies.

 The supply base for California to 1774 was the
port of San Blas on the western coast of lexico, At set
times each yeaT, boats were fitted out to carry the neces—
sities 2nd comforts of 1ife to the Californiaz settlers. But
inhospiteble seas znd too elzborate colonial zdministrstive
wechinery often worked to the disadventege of>the Celifor-
nians. To remedy this condition, it was'proposed to open
an overlend route from Sonora to Monterey. This project
was accommlished in 1774 by the remarkable expedition of
Juan Bautista de Anza, then céptain of the vresidio of
ATubac, the first permenent military nost in the state of
Arizona. Anza's journey is one of the great exploratory
exveditions of 211 Yorth American hisforv. As importent
end romentic 2s thet event was, snace does not permit the
recounting of the story. Suffice it to say that Bucereli
readily cresned the significance of the feet by suthorizing
the establ ishment of Spanish defenses on the "harbor of
harbors,.” He wrote:®

Recognizing the importance of this

&. Botton, Anzz, V. 259
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matter, I wae convinced thet Cavtain Don
Juan Bautiste de Anzz oucht to make a
gecond entry by way of the Colorado =nd
Gils rivers, tezkinc the soldiers neces-
gery to suerd....to missions of Sen
Frencisco,....znd to estzblish in that
port certzin sign of defense to indicate
that it belongs to hig lizjesty,

In Fovember, 1774, orders were given for 2 second
Aﬁzé expedition to go by the newly-discovered route to Cali-
fornis., Not only were colonists to form part of the expedi-
tion, Tut domestic 2nimals were to be taken a2long to ihsure
the vermanency of 2 settlement on the shores of Sén Francisco
Bay. A sea expedition was 2lso planned by Bucareli for ex-
plorstion of the nort. This was to be under the command of
Miguel Menrigue, who was to sail from San Blas early in 1775
with several boests for the enterprice, .

After his return from California, in 1774, Anza
hastened to lexico City to report to Bucarell. The viceroy
was much pleased with the work of the caotain, znd undertook
to exnlzin to Anza the plans for znother expedition. Anza
was to recruit thirty persons, all married, 2nd lead them
and their femilies to the port of San Francisco. Others
" were to go with them, but only thirty were destined to settle
San Frencisco,

The frontier ceptain,.enxious to be on his way,
hurriedly left Yexico City =snd proceeded to Horcasitas, a
nresidio in Sonora., His journey had carried him through the

Sinzloa town of Culiacgﬁ. There he began to enlist colonists
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end gather provisions for the evic meking trip. The best 11
thet the region could zfford in the way of veople and sun-
plies found their wey into the ranks of the captain, By
¥ay, Anza 2nd the colonistis were ready to begin the long
.march. Proceeding up the west coest, they reached Tubszc
after several unfortunzte experiences, not the least serious
of which were Arzche raids unon the horse herds.

The ceraven had by now grown to considersble pro-
portions; On Octover 23, 1775, when Anza and the colonists
took their leave of Tubac, there were 240 persons and some
1,000 hezd of domes%ic animals in the expedition, Three
Frenciscen friars from the College of the Cross of Queré%aro'
were emong the zore distinguished members of the group. Fray

‘Pedro Font was'chargéd"with“taking'the'1atitudes during the
course of the merch, vhile fathers Francisqo Garces and
Thomas Eixarch vere to remain on the Colorado River to

_preach to the Indians. GJercés end Eixarcﬁ established them-
selves =1 the'junction of the Colorado znd Giles, where they
feithfully performed missionary ?utieg for several years
therezfter, Gerces Teceiving 2 -martyr's crown in 1781, Font
beczme the great diarist of the Anza expedition. Indefatig-
2bly he recorded all the significent even£§. Poaseséed of a
sense of humor,‘and a keen observer, Font wrote one of the
most interestins azccounts of 211 early California history.

It is to his diary that we must turn if we would understand
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Anza's second journey to California.d

Anza's route led north to the Gila, and dorm that
river to its junction with the Coloreodo, wheré the party
arrived on Novewber 28, Everywhere Anza end the colonists
were well received., The Yumas end thelr chief, Salvador
Palma, were particularly hospitable, lending valusble assist-
~ence to the Spaniards in their crossing of the Colorado,
From there Anza led the expeditionaires across the Colorzdo
Desert, éne of the most forbidding places to the traveler
in the West. On Jenuery 4, 1776, the captain and his cour-
ageous followers arrived at San Gsbriel Uission, near the
modern Los Angeles., The journey had so far been z success.
Despite the hardships encountered, only one person had died,—--
2 mother in childbirth. But to offset this three children
were born, and 211 reached Czlifornia in good health, The
.story is not cuite so remarkzble, however, with respect to
the stock. Some hundred animals had been lost en route,

At Sen Gabriel, Anzez was detained for a time be-
ceuse of en Indian uprieing a2t Zezn Diego. The outbrezk was
unfortunate for the colonists.. Thé commandant of the pre-
‘sidio of MYonterey, Fernazndo de Rivera y lfoncada, now,refused
to cooperate with inza in the founding of 3Sen Fraﬁcisco.

Giving 2s en excuse the lack of troops, Rivera held aloof

9. See Bolton, Anza, IV.
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from Anza and his project. But Anze was not the sort of
person to permit petty bickerings to divert him from his
wain purpose. e therefore proceeded to llonterey, erriving
Merch 10,

¥arch 232 found Anza, lorago, Font 2nd severzl sol-
diers continuing their werch up the coast. Four days later,
they crmmed on the shores of lountzin lLeake, the seme body of
rater thet nov lies ot the north_ené of Twelfth Avenue, in
Sen Frencisco, within the presidio reservetion. The follow-
ing day, lMerch 23, the party moved north to the vicinity of

present-day Fort Point., Font hes left 2 rather detailed

description of that day's events:lo

Merch 28,~--The commender decided to

erect the Holy Cross on the extremity of

“—the-white-cliff -2t the inner noint of

© the entrence of the nort, snd at eight
o'clock in the mornine we went thither,
Ascending a smezll hill, we a% once en-
tered upon a verv bere mesa of great
extent, smooth, znd inclining = little
toward the nort, It must be svbout helf
2 lezgue wide and somevhet longer, ond it
keene getitine nearrower until it ends righst
at the white cliff. This mesz affords a
delizhtful view., Indeed, from it one can
see 2 lerze nart of the herbor, its is-
lends, the mouth of the nort, and the sea
ag far a2s the eye cezn reach, even beyond
the Farellones. The commsnder selected
this mesa es the site 0f the new settle-
nent znd fort which wes to e established
et thie vort, for, beinr elevated, it is
so conmanding thet from it the entrence

10. Bolton, Anza, IV, 257-259
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to the mouth of the nort can be defended
vith rmusket shots. And at the distence of
a musket shot it hes water for the suonly
of the neonle, nemely, the sonrinz or lske
where we nalted,...

From this noin%t the commander decided
to go to exemine the hills which extend
torerd the interior of the haerrbor....to
see if in their vicinity there rere good
edventeges for the convenience of the nerw
settlerent...., About five o'clock in the
afternoon the commander end lieutenznt
oraga returned Irom their exnlorztion
very vell nleesed, for in the vicinity of
these hills they hed found more then they
had expected. Their extent must be some
three lezzues. OCn them and in their
ceznyons they found e greet ~uantity of
timber and firewood, nlentiful vater in
severel springs or leskes, zbundant lend
for reising crops, end finelly, =z vest
supply of nesturage in 211 the country,
so that the new settlement mey have
plentiful fuel, water, end grass or nas-
turzace for the horses, 211 near by,

The only thinz that is lacking is tim-

ber-for “rarge ‘tuildings, ~althouch for
cebins and barracks and for the stockade
of the dresidio there are nlenty of trees
in the groves, And with 2 1little trouble
they cen have 211 the timber vhicu they
may wish, for from 2 »oint some six
leacues on the other side of the zrroyo
of 3en Josenh Cunertino, 2s far 2s some
three leszues this side of the arroyo of.
San Francisco, there runs 2 pvlein ebout
fifty lezzues long which they call the
Llano de Lzs Robles, becruse it is very
thickly crovn with ozks of all sizes, end
from which very good timber may be obtained,

Anza mede no e%tempt at thet time to found a set-
tlement, After the survey of tﬁe region in the vicinity of
the modern presidio of Sen Frencisco, he e2nd his pertiy vro-
ceeded around the bey, through vresent-day Osklend and

Perkeley to the Sen Joaguin River, There the Sneniards de-
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cided to turn back, and a2 few days leter they were a2gain at
Monterey. Anza himself soon returned to lexico, leaving the
gctusl foundation of the »residio of Szn Frencisco to his
subordinates,

Bucrrell displayed much displeasure vhen he lecrned
that no settlement had been made 2t 3an Frencisco. The re-
sponsibility for the delay he pleced unon the shoulders of
Rivere, vho 2ffected more concern over the safety of 3en
Diego then the estzblishment of a militery post on the shores
of the great northern bay.l1 Bucereli wrote letters to bhoth
Riverz ond Anze stating that they had acted improverly in not
foundinz a colony at San Francisco,l2

| ¥eanvhile, However, Rivera, as was cheracteristic
.af .the ran, .had chenged his mind, OCn ¥ay 8, he ordered Lieu-
tenent lloraga to Sen Francisco to erect a fort there, At the
same time, Rivera cormended Sergesnt Pablo.Crijelva to lead
twelve femilies which Anza had left a2t San Gabriel to ‘onte-
rey znd thence to San Franéisco.

Grijalve z2rrived with the families at lonterey on
Yay 28, ijoraga lost no time ip bomplying with Rivera's

orders, setting the middle of - June for starting with the

11, Chenmern, "The Foundins of 3zn Frencisco," in The Pacific
Oceen in History, 333,

12, Itid, 2%4; Bolton, Anze, I, 458,
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colony. The next day, the lieutenant went to Carmelo to re-
port to Father Serra the order which he had received from Ri-
vera. Serra professed some disgust at the neglect of Rivera
to make provisions for the founding of missions as well as
& fart, The Franciscan, however, as president of the Cali-
fornis missions, nemed Fathers Francisco Palou end Pedro Be-
nito Cambon "to go with the expedition,...to administer the
holy sacraments to the people who were going,® and "to be
rea@y' to take over missionary duties in the event that a
miesion were founded, |

Fortunaste it is fpr historians that so many Cali-
. fornia missionaries were devoted to literary pursuits, Paléh,
like Font end meny other religious, was at his best when
writing about contemporarylmatters. It is from his pen, sup- -
rlemented by a2 report made by Yoraga to the viceroy, that we
learn ebout the beginnings of the presidio., As a vital docu-
'mgnt for those who would know the origins of the modern mili-
tary reservetion et San Francisco, Palou's account of this
event bears qugting:l3

On the 17th day of June, 1776, about
two in the afternoon, the company of sol-

diers end femilies from Honora set out from
Honterey, 1t was composed of its Commonder,

13, Bolton, Anza, III, 387-395



lieutenant Don Jose Joaguin Moraga, a ser-
geant, two corporals, end ten soldiers, all
with their wives and fromillies except the
Commander, who had left his in Sonora, 1In
addition there were seven femilles of set-
tlers, rctioned =nd provisioned by the king;
other persons attached to the soldiers and
their femilies; five servent boys, muleteers
end vacueros, who conducted about two hune
dred of the kingt's catile and some belong-
ing to the individuels, =nd the mule trzin which
carried the provigions and utensils necesg-
sary for the road. All the foregoing be-
longed to the new presidio. And for vhat-
ever concerned the first mission that vwas
to be founded we two ministers, Father Fray
Pedro Benito Cambon znd I, went with the
two servants who conducted the lozds, znd
three unmarried Indien neonhytes, two of
them from 0ld California (Lower Californisa),
and the other from the mission of Carmelo,
who drove the cattle for the mission, nume
berinz eighty-six head, which were incorpor-
sted with those for the presidio,
The Officers of the vessels, with thelr
pilots wished to accomnany the exnedition, and
T*flhrey ‘a1l ‘did so Tor about half a league., (The
" Princine 2nd the 3an Carlos had come from
Uexico with provisions rfor the California es-
tablishnment, The Srn Cerlog was to go from
Monterey to 3an Francisco with suoplies for
the colonists.) Trom this noint the cantain
of the Principe and all the pilots turned
back; but Don rernando ruiros continued for
the first day's march with the two father
chapleins as far as the lonterey River, vhere
the e xpedition halted znd camped. On the fol-
lowing day, after havinz watched all the people
crogs the river and seen the line formed on
the broad plein by all those people, the
pack treins, cattle, and the horse herd, they
returned to ifonterey 2fter taking farewell in
the hope that we could soon meet in the port
of Our Father 3an Tranciaco, :
The expedition continued by the seme
road vhich was traveled in the exploration of
that harbor in the year 1774 (Palou refers to

3
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an expedition mzade to San Frasncisco Bay

by Rivera in 1774.)....But the days?
marches were shorter, in order not to
fetigue the little children and the women,
expeclally those who were pregnant, and
foxr this resson it was even neceszary to
meke geveral stops. On the whole there
was not a single mishan, thanks to God,

We were well received by 211 the heathen
vhom we ret on the road, who were sur-
prised to ses so many veonle of both

sexes and all ages, for up to that time
they had not seen more than some few sol-
diers,...And they rere astonished at the
cattle which they had never seen before,

On the 27th day of June the exnedi-~

tion errived in the neignhhorhood of the
harbor, end the commonder ordered the

camp halted on the bank of 2 legoon called
by Senor Anza Nuestra Senora de log Dolores,
which is in sight of the bay of Los Llorones
(¥ission Bay) and the beach of the bay or
erm of the sea vhich runs to the scuthezst,
with the intention of weiting here for the
bark in order to select the spont for the
founding of the fort end nresidio, and in
“the ‘meantinme "to explore the lznd. On the
following day he ordered a shelter of
branches bullt to0 serve ss a chapel in
which to celebrate the holy s=acrifice of
¥esa, (The beginning of Mission Dolores,)
In it the first Yasz was said on the 29th,
the feast of the great, holy svostle, San
Pedro end Srn Pablo, and we continued to
oelebrate in 1t every dey until the camp
was moved to the site which i1t occunies
near the landing plesce, when the ground

end the convenience of water permitted it....
) For an entire rmonth the expedition
remeined in thet carmp, which was commoced
of field tents, weiting for the bark 3San
Cerlogr, YMeanwhile soldiers, citizeng,

and servants emploved themselves in cut-
tings logs in order to have this wmuch done
when the bark chould arrive., The lieutenant
busied himself in exploring the land in the
vicinity, where hie found some enrings of
vater, lagoonsg, pastures, =znd good sites
for all kinds of stock,



Near the white cliff (at Fort Point) he
found two springs of water sufficient for
the use of the presidio, and not far from
them he found a good plain (now part of
Yain Post) which is in view of the harboxr
end entrence, and also of its interior,
Ag goon as he saw the spnot the lieutenant
decided that it was sultsble for the pre~
sidio but he delayed moving the people
there, es he was waiting day by day for
the arriveal of the nacket,

Seeing that it did not appezr for a
whole month, and, as they wrote from lfonte-
. rey by the pack train which went to bring
provisions, that it had sailed lons ego
(contrary winds had blovmn the 3an Carlos
as far south as San Diego), the licutenant
decided to move to that spot so that the
soldliers might begin to build their huts
for shelter, since it was nearer at hand
for meking 2 bteginning of the houses,
This he did on the 26th of July, setting
to work immediately to construct some tule
huts, The first was the one that was to
serve as 2 chapel, end in it I said Yass
on the 28th of the same month,...

_ 'When the expedition left I onterey the
packet Ssn Carlos remained at anchor loaded
in that port, while its commznder delayed
gailing until the return of the messenger
whom he had dispatched to Sgm Diego.
(The comm~nder of the Sen Carlos was
Captein Don Fernando Quiros, lis pilots
were Don José Cafiizares and Don Cristdbal
Revilla.) As soon as the courier ar-
rived the San Carlog sailled from that
port bound for San Yrencisco, but im-
medistely after leaving !onterey it be-
gan to experience contrary winds, so
strong that it wezs driven down to the
parallel of San Diego, but very far from
the coast. #rom that point it went on
gredug¥ly ascending and gaining altitude
until’ it renched forty-two dezrees, at
which latitude it approsched the shore
end then descended 28 far as Point Reyes,
There 1t put in between that point and
the northern fearzllones, droppins anchor
on the north coest in the Gull of the
Farallones on the night of the 17th of

17
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August. On the following day 1t success=-
fully entered the harbor, and azbout two
o'clock in the afternoon it anchored not
very far from the spot where the soldiers
were lodged, but not in sight of them, es
the view was cut off by the point of the
hill on whose skirts the camp was placed;
but it was in sight of the white cliff end
the entrence to the herbor,

As soon as the bark was made fast, the
commender, pilots, and Father Nocedal went
ashore, Uhen they saw the site of the camp
they were 211 of the opinion that it was a
very suitable place for the fort and pre-
sidioc.... In view of the opinion of the
captain of the bark and the pilots, work
was begun on the bullding of the houses and
the presidio. A sguare measuring ninety-
two vare each way was marked out for it,
with divisions for church, royal offices,
warehouses, guardhcuses, and houses for
goldier settlers, a map of the plsn being
formed and drawn by the first pilot. (The
mep has not been found.)

And so that the work might be done as
speedily as possible, the commender (nuiros)

~Gegignated -a ‘goued o~ goldters” gnd'the “two

carpenters to join the servants of the royal
presidio in meking a2 good warehouse in which
to keep the provisions, a house for the com-
manding officer of the presidio, and a
chapel for celebrating the holy sacrifice of
the Mass, while the soldiers were making
thelr own houses for their fomilies....

It was then decided that the formal act
of possession should tzke place, the day ap-
pointed for it being that on which our
¥other Church celebrates the impression of
the stigmata of Our Sersphic Fother Sen Fran-
c¢isco, that is, the 17th of Sentember, a
most eppropriate dey, since he is the pairon
of the herbor, the new presidio, =nd the
mission. And for taking formal possession
of the mission the lith of October was desig-
nated, vhich is the day dedicated to Cur
Seraphic Fether 3en Francisco. The com-
mander of the packet, his two pilots, end
the greater part of the orew were present et
the cercmony of taking formal possession of
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the presidisl site, only thms e who were
absolutely necessary remaining on bosrd;
end with the people from the presidio,
troops es well as citizens, they made up
& goodly number of Snanisrds. There were
elso present four friar priests, all of
our Collepe San Fernando de Mexico, thst
is, the missionary fethers of this
mission, Paldu and Cambén, ithe chavlain
of the bsrk Nocedal, and Yather Fray Tomds
de la Pens, who had come from }onterey to
exemine the site for the second mission,
of which he had be'en nemed minister,

A solemn lass was sung by the ministers,
and when it was conciuded the gentlemen
performed the ceremony of taking formal
possegsion, This finished, all entered
the chapel and ssng the Te Deunm Leudemus,
accomnanied by peals of bells and ree-
peated salvos of cannon, muskets, and guns,
whose roar and the sound of the bells
doubtless terrified the heathen, for they
did not =2llow themselves to be seen for
many days, The ceremony concluded, the
commander of the presidio (Yoraga) in-
vited to it all the people, conducting him-
‘self-with €1l ~the 'gpYrendor “thet the place
permitted, and supplving with his true
kindnessa what else would have been lack-

- ing, for vhich 211 the people were grate-
ful, expressing their gratitude in the joy
and happiness which 211 felt on that day,

Thus we have Father Paldﬁ'é accound of the found-
ing of the presidio of San Frencisco., . With one exception,
the good father's narration of that historic event leaves
nothing to be desired. That exception, for our purpose,

" deals with the act of taking formal poseession. Ve know that
the presidio wag formally ectablished on September 17, 1776,
tﬁat in celebrating the event speclal religlious services were
held, end that an impressive military ceremony c¢oncluded the

sctivities of the day. Bubt of what did this sct of taking
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formal posseésion consigt?

The usual procedure in such matters was first to
offer up an invocetion to the Holy Trinity, whereupon it
was ennounced in the name of the Divine Being that vposses-
sion was teken upon the authority of the king of Spain. Then
the neme and title of the commendant were announced, This
vas followed by those present kneeling 4n sdoration of the
Holy Cross, which was erected in the name of the king; "and
that by orders of the viceroy of New Spain the Commandante
(sic) A41d take possession of this land forevermore for the
-Crown of Castile and Leon, as belonging to it by virtue of
‘the 'Donsztion (sic) y Bula rue el Muy Senta Psdre Alexandro
8ixto Sumo Pontifico Romano,? executed'to‘the t¥ui Altos y
Catolices (sic) Sefores Don Fernando V y Dona Ysatel su
Muger, Reyes de Castilla, y Leon,! at Rome ‘on the Uth of
~May, 1493.“14 In taking possession, the commandant, sword
in hend, cut grass, bushes, branches and trees, and moved
stones which were in his way as he walked about.

Two years passed before any substantial progrees
wae made in erecting the presidio.A At the end of 1778 an
"adobe house for the commander had been completed, the walls
of the fort had been raised a few feet, a slaughter house

had been built of stone, and a church, two warehouses and

14, Davidson, Discovery of San Frencisco Bey, 127.
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ouvarters for the troops had been made of earth.15 But this
work wes soon to go for naught. In January of the following
yeer, torrential rains destroyed most of the presidial
buildings.16 The erosive effcots of the driving rain on
adobe reduced the comuandant's house, the church, the ware-
houses, the sleoughter house, and six of the buildings
ouartering enlisted men to rTuins. By the end of the year
there wae not one left of the originel edifices.l?

Work wes agein undertaken to reconstruct the pre~
sldio, It took several yesrs, however, before the garrison
resembled & real ormy post. Iven in 1792, when Cepitain
George Vencouver visited San Frencisco during the course of
his memorable expédition, the precidio was far from being a
-~formldeble -establichment, - -Vencouver -has lelt a-description
of the garrison z2s he saw it:lg

We rode up to the precidio, an eppel-

lation given to their military establish-

nents in this country, ond signifying a

gnfe punTde.e.o Lty wall, vhich fronted

the nerbor, was vielble from the ships;

but Instezd of a city or town, whogse

lights we had so anxiously looked for on

the night of our arrivel, vwe were con-

s ducted into 2 specious vercant plein,

surrounded by hills on cvery side, ex- -
cepting that which fronted the port. The

-

15, Sa2l to Homeu, Sen Francisco, Merch 4, 1792, Provincisl
state pepers, %I, 52,

16, Ibid.
17. Ibvid. :
18, G, Vancouver, A voyasze of discoOVeTrYe..eey II, 5-7
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only object which presented itself, was

& square area, whose sides were sbout two
hundred yerds in length, enclosed by a

mud wall, end resembling a pound for dpt-
tle., Above this wall the thatched roofs

of their low small houses Just made their
sppeerance. On entering the Presidlo, we
found one of its sides s&%ti1ll uninclosed by
the wall, end very indifferently fenced in
by a few bushes here and there, fastened to
stakes in the ground, The unfinished state
of this part, afforded us an opportunity

of geeiny the strength of the ywall, and the
manner in which 1t was constructed, It is
gbout fourteen feet high, and five in
breadth, and was first formed by uprights
end horizontal raiters of lerge timber,
between,vhich dried sods and moistened
earth were pressed as close znd as hard as
pogssible; sfter which the whole was cased
with the earth made into & sort of mud
rlaster, which gave it the goppnearsnce of .
durebility, =2nd of beinz sulfficiently strong
to protect them, with the essistence of
their firearms, ageinat all the force which
the natives of the country might be able
“to ‘collect,

The Snenish soldiers compnosing the gar-
rison amounted, I understood, to thixrty-
five; who, with their wives, femilies, and
e few Indisn servants, councsed the wvhole
of the inhabitents, Thelr houses were along
the wall, within the souare, snd their
fronts uniformly extendsd the same distence
into the n~rea, which is a clear onpen gneace,
without buildingzs or other interruptions.
The only entrance into it, is by e large N
gateway; fecing which, and against the
centrc of the opmosite wall or side, is the
church; which, though small, was neat in
comerison to the rest of the buildings,
This projects further into the snusre than
the houses, and is distinsuishsble from
the other edifices, by beina white-washed
with lime made from.sea-shells; 2s there
hes not vet been eny lime-gione or cale
carcous earth discovered in the neighbor-~
hood. ©n the left of the church, is the
comsandant's houce, coneisting, I believe,
of two rooms and closet only, which aore



divided by massy walls, similar to that
vhich.encloses the sruare, ond com-
municating with cach oiher by very small
doors, lefween these apertrments and the
outrard wall was an excellent poultry
house and yerd, which geemed pretiy well
stocked; cnd belwecn the roof and ceil-
ings of the rooms was a kind of lumber
gorret: Taese werc all the conveniences
the hablteflon seemed crlculated to af-
ford, The rcst of the houses, though

- smaller, were fashioned exectly after
the same menner;/and in the winter, or
rainy seessons must 2t the best be very
uncomfortable dwellings, For though

the wolls are 2 sufficient security against
the inclemcncy of the wezther, vei the
windove, vhich are cut in the front wall,
and look into the scuars, are degtitute
of gless, or any other defense that does
not at the seme time exclude the lizht,

The zpartiment in the commzndantts

house, into which we were ushered, was
aboui thirty feet long, fourtecen icet
broad, end twelve feet high; end the
.other.room, or chember, I judzed o be
of the seme dimensions, exconting in its
length, vhich appeaxed to be somerhat
less, The floor was of the nstive soll
raiped about three feet from i4s oripg—
in2l level, without beinz boarded, paved,
or even redvced to an even surfece; the
roof wes covered in flsgs and rushes,
the wzlls on the insicde had ounce been
vhite—-veshed} the [urniture conzaisted of
& very snering assoripnent of the most in-
dispenseble grticles, cf the rudest
fashion, -tnd of the meenest kind; and
111 accoxded with the idess we had con-
ceived of the sumpiuous manner in which
the Speniexrds llve on this side of the
glObC. LN

Suoh were the beginnings of the presidio of Sen
Francisco, Conceived by Spain as a bulwark ageinast the
designs of hostile Furopcan powers, the precidio has had a

continuous cxistence 2o a militory post, Coloxrful and im-
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portent hes been its history., Soldiers of three nations
have been pusrtered behind its walls, Spain, Mexico end the
United Stafes, each in turn, found the presidio of San Fren-
cisco a vzlucble military base on the Pacifio, and each hes
been indebted to Bucareli, Anza, and ¥oraga for the excellent
site upon vhich it stands. Today only one of the originel
buildings remain as a memorizal to the genius of a people who
conguered more than two-thirds of the Western Hemisphere,
This structure, hardly recognizeble a&s one of those edificeé
_ raiged by the hands of Moraga end his successors, stands re-

modeled as a club for officers of the United States Army,

‘4
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1.

9.
10.

a to k.

87
. LEGEND .
North Boundary 116 varas
East Boundary 120 varas

South Boundary 116 vearas
Vest Brundary 120 Varas

. . rd '
GUARDIA de PREVINOIOY (Sentry Station),
6% vores® long, 4% varas wide, and 3%
vares high.

" CUARTEL (Barracks),
16'vares long, 4% varss wide, and 3%
vareg high,

CALABOSOS (Prison Cells),
2 y=res long, lr verzg wide, and 2 yveres

Ot

ALMACEN de ROPA (Clothing Warehouse),

18 veras long, 6 vores wide, and Lk
verzg high,

ALUACEH de VIVERES (Food Varehouse),
18 verss long, 6 veras wide, and 4z

=
“Yores high.

CASAS del COXANDANTE (Commender's Quarters),
37> veres long, 6 vsrss wide, and U3
Yerss high. :

CASA del SARCENTO (Sergeant's Quarters),
(¥o dimensions given). }

IGLESIA (Church),

19 vrres long, & veres wide, and 43

verzg high, '

CASA MATA (Slsughter House), (Mot epecified).

HABITACIONES de la TROPA (Enlisted Men's cuerters).

. &% A vera is

& Spenigh vnit of measure equal to 2.78 feet.
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Records of the Quartermaster Department, Presidio of San Francisco

The PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, of which Crissy Field is a part, is one of
the oldest military reservations in the United States, having been established
in 1776. It is located within the City limits of San Francisco, which is known
as the "City of Hills," and has a population of 800,000, A short history of the
Presidio is herewith given,

Spain had claimed the Pacifie Coast of North America up to forty-two desrees,
for over two hundred years, but had done nothing to maintain her right by settle-
ment until Seventeen Sixty-nine, when an expedition under Don Gaspar de Portola
was sent to take possession of, and fortify the ports of San Diego and Monterey,
While on this expedition, San Francisco was discovered, and it was then decided to
fortify it.

Under the rule of Spain, the administration of California was purely mili-
tary. The territory was divided into four districts, and under the protection of
& military post known as a "Presidio,®

The Governor of California was an officer of the Spanish Army, a Lieutenanmt-
Colonel, who held his appointment from the Viceroy of Spain, He executed the
orders of the Viceroy and was responsible to him only,

Each presidential district was commanded by a Lieutenant who had full jurise
diction within his district, subject to the approval of the Governor, (In
1805, the rank of a Commandante of a Presidio District was raised from Lleutenan"
-~-to-Gxptain, )

A military reservation of a fort or presidio as laid doun by law, was equal
t0 a square of three thousand varas, or fifteen hundred sixty-four acres.

The word "presidio” comes from tlie Roman word "presidium" meaning a garrison
or fortified camp, A presidioc was a walled camp about 600 feet square, whose
walls of adobe were fourteen feet high and five feet thick, with small bastions
flanking the angles. The walls had but one gate and were surrounded by a ditch
twelve feet wide and six feet deep, The armament was generally eight bronze
cannons - eight, twelve, and sixteen-pounders, Not far from the presidio was the
fort or battery called the "Castillo,” Within the inclosure of the presidio
were the church, officers! quarters, soldiers! quarters, houses of colonists,
storehouses, workshops, stables, wells and cisterns,

The four presidios of California were San Diego, Monterey, San Francisco
and Santa Barbara,

On July 1, 1769, San Diego was occupied by Portola and his men, but it did
not become a repular presidio until seventeen seventy-four,

On April 21, 1782, the Presidio of Santa Barbara was founded by the order
of Governor Neve, and placed under Lieutenant Ortega's comuand,

On March 28, 1776, Lieutenant Colonel Juan Bautista Anza chose, as the site
of the Presidio of San Francisco, the place where Fort Point is now situated,
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When he erected the cross there and directed that the fort be built on the
Point and the Presidio under the shelter of the hill, his act created, under
the laws of Spain, a military reservation of 3,000 varas or about 1,564
acres, After exploring the country thereabouts, Anza left for Monterey,
thence to return to his home on the far-off frontier, Presidio of Tubac, lo-
cated in what is now Arizona, Before leaving Monterey, &nza delivered the
comand of the expedition to Lieutenant Jose Moraga, On September 17, 1776,
Lieutenant Moraga founded the Presidio of San Francisco, He was its first
comuandante, retaining the position from the date of its founding until his
death, nine years later,

After Moraga's death, Lieutenant Gonzales was temporary Commandante for
a year and a half, and Ensiegn Sal was acting Commandante until the arrival of
Lieutenant Jose Dario Arguello, who took command on June 12, 1778, Arguello
remained in command until March 1, 1806, with occasional duty elsewhere, dur-
ing which time Ensign Sal took his place as acting Commandante,

The walls of the Presidio, begun by Moraga in the winter of 1776, were
completed on three sides in 1792, but on the fourth or east side was a pali-
sade supplemented by bushes to cover its sppearance, About the beginning of
the century, the fourth wall was completed to correspond with the others,

In 1812, an earthquake threw down a large part of the eastern and southern walls
and almost all of the northerm wall, It also ruined the church and a number
of buildings within the enclosure, The fort. proper was built in 1794, It was

-a-foymidable-affair of -adobe, -horseshoe -in-shape - -and-pierced-by -fourteen em-

brasures lined with brick, In the middle of the fort was a barracks for the
ertillerymen, The fort was finished in December, 1794, and cost $6,400,00,
It was later rebuilt of brick, It was named Castillo de San Joaquin and was
garrisoned by a corporal and six artillerymen,

When Arguello was sent to Santa Barbara, in 1806, his son, Don Luis An-
tonia, reigned as Commandante of San Francisco until h::.s death, March 27, 1830
Don Luis was made Captain in 1818, and in 1822, was elected Provision-
al Governor of California, He served until the arrival of Governor Echendia
in October, 1825, when he returned to his cammand at San Francisco, The last
two years of his life he was only the nominal commander, being relieved from
active duty by the Governor, During Don Luis! absence at Monterey as Acting
Governor and after his relief from active duty in 1828, Lieutenant Ignacio
Martinez acted as Commandante, Martinez served until his retirement in 1831,
and was succeeded in the cormand of San Francisco by Ensipgn Mariano Guadalupe

" Vallejo, The force belonging to the Presidio had been from fifty-five to sixty

men, Vallejo was elected & member of the "Diputacion" and, during his ab~
sence, Llferez Jose Antonio Sanchez acted as Commandante, and after 1833, Alfrez
Demaso Redriguez,

In 1835, Vallejo was made Commandante of the northern frontier and removed
his company to Sonoma, leaving Alferez Juan Prado }esa in charge of San Fran-
cisco with six artillerymen, LDater, the regular troops were all withdrawn
and the Fort and Presidio suffered to fall into decay, one old artilleryman,
Corporal Joaquin Pera, being left as custodian of Government property,

Vallejo protested apainst the Government's neglect, but in vain, and final-
ly, in 1840, failing to receive troops from Mexico for San Francisco, he sent,
from his own outfit, lesa with a Sergeant and twelve privates to the garrison
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at the Presidio, They were there for two, possibly three years, but after
that, there seem to have been no regular troops at the Presidio, The walls
were down and the fort was crumbling to0 ruins,

On July 9, 1845, Commander John B, Montgomery raised the United States
flag in San Francisco,

The Navy and Marine forces garrisoned the City until March, 1847, when
the Stevenson Regiment arrived in California, and Companies "H" and "K" were
sent to garrison the Presidio of San Francisco under the command of Major
Jemes A, Hardie,

When, by order of Colonel Mason, the reservation, for military purposes,
was laid out in 1848, the land was claimed by a man by the name of Larkin,
but his claim was rejescted. Shortly afterward, the land was apain claimed,
this ¢ime by a man named Wright. As the original reservation was found
to be larger than necessary, the unneeded portion was returned to Mr, Wright,
leaving the boundary lines of the Presidio of today the same as those of the
0ld Spanish Presidio, with the exception of eighty feet cut off the eastern
frontage by an act of Congress in 1876 and given to the City of San Francisco
for a street and some ten acres occupied by the Palace of Fine Arts, the only
remaining building of the Panama Pacific Fxposition, vwhich acreage has been
deeded to the City and County of San Francisco by Act of Congress in 1928,

‘In*Novembér, 1849, Captain Keyes-of ‘the Third-firtitlery succeeded Major
Hardie in command of the Presidio, During the year, some repairs were made,
in order to render the Presidio habitable, and four thirty-two pounders and two
eight~inch howitzers were mounted on the old fort,

In May, 1851, when General Hitchcock took command of the Third Divisionm,
_he moved Division Headquarters to Benicia, but in 1857, it was returned to
San Francisco by General Clark and has since remained there,

In 1853, Lieutenant Colonel Mason was Zngineer in charge of the work at
Fort Point, Mason died and was succeeded by Major J.G. Bernard, The old
fort was taken down and some of the material used in the new construction,
The site was cut down to the water edge and a new fort, Winfield Scott,
succeeded the Castillo de San Joaquin,

The ancient Presidio is no longer protected by its fourteen~foot adobe
wall, but its quadrangle is the Parade Cround of the Post,

The Presidio, during the ereat fire and earthquake disaster in 1906, was
commanded by General Frederick Funston, who was in charge of the relief work
in San Francisco, The Presidio was used as a refuge cemp at that time,

During the VWorld War in 1917-1918, the Presidio was used as a concen-~
tration and training camp for the United States soldiers,

- Crissy Field is a sub-post of the Presidio of San Francisco and is situ-
ated within the limits of that reservation, It is located along the shore
of San Francisco Bay at the north boundary of the Presidio, The site for
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Crissy Field was selected by Major Henry H, Arnold, Air Corps, who

was then Department Air officer of the Western Department, in June, 1519; and
is vhat was previously the site of the Panama Pacific mxposition, The buildings
were completed on June 30, 1921, and the first personnel started to move in

on July 1, 1921, The first plane, however, landed on July 2, 1919, and from
that time on, airplanes landed and took off cccasionally; and on November 3,
1919, it was named "Crissy Field," in honor of Major Dana H, Crissy, Air
Service, who was killed in the Tramscontinental &ir Race on Uctober 8, 1919,

STREETS AND MEANINGS THERIEOF:

LINCOLN BOULEVARD - Named after Abrsham Lincaln, sixteenth Pres:.dent
of the United States,

McDOWELL AVENUE - Named after Major General Irvin McDowell, who
was in command from July 1, 1876 to October 15, 1882,

VASHINGION BOULEVARD ~ Named after George Washington, first President
of the United States,

ARGUELLO BOULEVARD - Named after Lieutenant Arguello, an officer of
the Spanish Army, who commanded the Fresidio from June 1787 to March
1806,

MORAGA AVENUE - Named after Lieutenant Moraga, a Spanish Officer, who
built the original Presidio and commanded it from 1776 to 1785,

ANZA STREET ~ Named after Lieutenant Colonel Anza, who erected a cross
at Fort Point, on March 28, 1776, selecting it as the future site of
the Presidio,

MESA STREET -~ Named after Ali‘erez Mesa, who commanded the Presidio from
18l to 18L3.

MONTGOMERY STREET - Named after Commander J.B. Montgomery, U.S.N,,
who raised the American Flag in San Francisco on July 9, 1846,

GRAHAM AVENUE ~ Named after Brigadier-General William M, Graham, S5th Ar-
tillery, who commanded the Presidio from 1880 to 1896,

FUNSTON AVENUE - Named after Brigadier-General Frederick Funston, who
was in command from April, 1905, to May, 1905; from Febmary, 1906 to
March, 1906 and from May, 1907 to August 1908,

SHERIDAN AVENUE: - Named after Lieutenant-General P.H. Sheridan, who
wag in command from March 1886 to April 1886,

PRESIDIO BOULEVARD - Named after the Presidio; is the longest street
in the Presidio,
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MACARTHUR AVENUE — Named after Lieutenmt-Genera.L Arthur MacArthur, who was in
command from 1508 to 1905,

CRISSY AVENUE ~ Named after Major Dana H, Crissy, Air Service, who was klled
4n the Transcontinental Air Race in 1919,

PORTOLA STREEI ~ Named after Don Gaspar de Portola, who was in camand of the
land expedition which discovered San Francisco,

RODRIGUEZ STREET -~ Named after Damaseo Rodriguez, who was in command of the
Presidio from 1833 to 1836,

BALLICK STREEI ~ Named after Major Gemeral H,W. Halleck, in command of the Pre-
sidio, 1866 to 1869,

VALLEJO STRZET ~ Named after Mariano Cuadalupe Vallejo, who commanded the Presidio
from 1831 to 133,

RUGHR STREET - Named after Brigadier-General T.H. Ruger, who was in command from
April 1891 to November 1894,

BARKARD AVENUE - Named after Major J.G. Barnard, who rebuilt the old fort of
~sthe-Spanish Presidia, -moving -it -end-sbarting-the-Fort-¥infield-Scott -of -today,

MASON STREET - Named after Lieutenant-Colonel Mason of the Engineers, who was
in charge of the work at Fort Point in 1853,
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Meeden, B. L., Cept., Q. ¥, C, — WArmy's
. Finest Club Building---Restoretion
of the Officers! Club at the Pre-
sldio of San Frencisco®, in THE
UARTERMASTER REVIEW, Nov.-Dec., 1934.
With insertion by Capt, Meeden Octo-
ber 28, 1937.)

i The restoration of the Officers! Club at the Presidio

of San Francisco during the current year brought to fulfil-

ment a desire cherished by many Gomhanding Officer; since

the first occupancy of the post by United States troops in

1846, The original adobe building was erected in 1776 by

Spanish'explorers under the command of Lieutenant Joeé’Joaquin

Moraga, It formed part_of a stockade and, together with many

other bulldings, was enclosed by a wéll fourteen feet high and
~;ftve-feetnwide.-vFromwthig1modest»settlementAdeveloped-San

Francisco, the beautiful City of the Golden Gate,

The discovery of the Bay of San Francisco and the site
up&n which the city of that name stands is deserving of men-
tion, On November 1, 1769, Sergeant José’Francisco de Ortega,
in charge of the asdvence guard of the Monterey expedition,
set out with a party of men to examine the country in the
neighborhood of what is now Monterey. On this excursion they
discovered lsrge estuaries which ran far back into the land;

A few days later Ortega, on a second scouting trip, took a

route around the Contra Cogta and came upon another immense
"Estero" on the northeast running far inland and connecting
with the one on the southeast, This proved to be the Bay of

San Francisco,

Unable to find the Bay of Monterey and forced by lack of
1,
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of & misgicn., “n Jure 15, 1’76, the colony orrived, vnder *h
comrend of Crntein Juen Erutlets cde fnza, rnd ntiched their
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first urgent reruect for irmrovements ceme from Commendenie

P4
Iovernor Joage Romeu & nlen of the bvilae

[

Srl, vho forverded ¢

nish seilor-vorkmen ond z bricklsver

H

inss #nd zsked him to fu
to do the work of renmsirs, Tancouver, ceusticrlly writing: of
the neede 27 the Uresidio ot thic time, deccrihed 1% esomern-i
ce follovwss "o crurre cree, vhoce sides ore rbout two kundred
‘y:rds in length, enclosed Ty o mud wrll, ond resewblin~ ¢ ~omd
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horizentel refters of lcroe tirbers, © etween vhich dried sods
. and moistened esrth form 2 kind of rud plester, vhich ~ives to
thé whole on ewnerrance of durability, The church has been
viitreshed snd iz nert in cormericon to the reet, The conm
mendent'c hOusé her a dirt floor raised cbout three feet Iroum
' thé levei, <hd the windove ore mere holes in the thick wells
e \iun out Iese,"
~Commandente %21, renectedly recuesting funds for restor
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building?»were likely.to f211l ot 2ny time, nerticulisrly the
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occunrtion »f the Presidio
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The Cfficers! Club,

teen o congtent chrllenge %o Yosi Commandents end Querter~
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end ie nov the Commendin~ 0Officer of the Post, menifested 2+~

n the restozrtion of this tuvildine, snd Contein

foto

keen interest

‘Berney L. Teeden, QJPrtermaster”Corne,"tho-r»s~plrced in cherce

of the work, cerforwed his duties uncer Onlonel Totts nweresoncl

sunervision., It was cdecided vo renovete the entire building

’

end rectore it, in so fer 2s was possitle end nrzcticeble,
to its orizinrl 1inés. TeserTch 1in Tost cnd ¢ity records re-
verled interesting dete »nd enabled the architectslto rectore
the origincl Commgﬁdent's house, It ras no smell teck. All
the rezin foundetions vere reinforced; in some nlrces velle

rere Teruild -~nd the trugcses throushout the btuildino rere re-—

nlrced v'v stouter ones, on order to rccorrodete the velght »f

2 Imrnieh tile roof; Luge beons were superimmoszed In the cclincs
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to cive the interior en "old lission® {inish, end = trozd fire-

-nlrce designed to re~lsce the sipller orivinel one; cdoors of

hewn tirbers, ornomented with vrou~ht iren work, vere wede ot
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the Fost tnd ~ut into the building; modern hectine cnd elec-
tric lichting systemé were instrslled throuchout.
A replice of the 0ld Jnenish coet-of-eruiss, 1700-1770

=T

4]

eriond, wazc sunerirmosed in ~wlrster ond stucco aver the cent

“3
o

of the hure Jirenlrce in the moin bellroom, Itz vivid colare
were renerted in the lonr drrpes of 3nenish red shot with rold
vhich henc 2t the n*““ors.

The two 0ld cdobe winvs, one occupied by the Lodies!?
Recrestion foom oand the other by the Tfiicers' Rillizrd Roon,
needed little renciring, £z the a2i~inel four~foot wells vere
in zood condition., These wings ~nd the msin building vere re-
Toofed with scusres of 3nenish tile and the exterior walls
were given a2 plaster finish of lizh% ten stucco, Other ex-
terior imnrovements inclucded vrourht iron £rills on 21l win-
dows, 2 tile znd cement plezster fence built zround the bsck
eres, 2 red-bricked netio end carefully nlented florsl teds.

The cluster of smell builﬂln g nttached to the clut rrope

o RN

were reenforced, reroofed ”n~/: inished to conform to the

erchitecturel effect of the mein Tuilding,



{Note : Insert this article where red arrow indicates on Page 72, "The
Quartermaster Review.")

During the process of reconstruction on this bduilding, I had ample
opportunity to observe the original adobe walls of the two sections still left
of the “OLD COMMANDANCIA®. These two sections are known to us as the East end
West wings. Although not 'joined together (there is & gap where the present
Ball Roon width exists), at present, this no Vdoubt vas & continuous building
when first erected and housed the COMMANDANTE, the Non-Commissioned Officers
and a Headquarters Office. All records and historical notes indicate that the
ccx,mmmm or Commanding Officer occupied the Eest wing, the center being en.
office end ths West wing an N.C.0. room. The center section either fell during
the earthquake or was allowed to fall in ruins through lack of funds to keep it
Jupe Somse history notes state that a‘chapel was in this center section, and fell
.during the ee.r;hquake in 1821. No other dbuilding was rebuilt there until the
American occupation about 1850, when the entire building was again roofed and
Joined, the gap being filled in with lumbere.

The East end West wings hsd walls on three sides only of adobe, the
fourth wall of each room being of lumber and plaster. These walls were sbout
14 feot high and sbout four and a half to five feet thick. Upon baring these
valls during this rehabilitation, it was found that while they showed the usual
wear of age, there was no indication that eny repairs or new adobe bricks hed
been used since the original construction. Due to the interior being protected
by the roof and the exterior by a small outside porch, the weather end rains hed
done little or no d=mege. This is not unusual, es it is a well known fact that
adobe walls well made, will outlast almost any other type of construction. (I
have seen sdobe bulldirgs in Mexico that had stocd up for over one hundred years

~even though exposed to the elements). TWhile on duty sbout four years ago in

-lu
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Panama, 1t was ny pleasurs to visit the site of OLD PANAMA mbout six miles from
the present city. On this site still stands the Tower and severel rooms of the
old Cathedral, although this City wes sacked and burned by the English Pifate,
Henry Morgan, in Janusry, 1671, It (is.a;'l. maﬂde’ of edobe.

Upon exemination of the roo;,\?a’ll rafters had to be removed), no
:"indications_ of the original roof remained, although on top of the adobe walls
indentures were found where the old log rafters were once laid. 411 window snd
door openings were found to0 be the seme as originally left when the building was
erected. This was poséible to0 ascertain due to the fact that we hed to remove
and renew all door and window frame casings. These openings were originally left
as openings only, unfremed and unglezed, until sbout the early part of the iAmerican
occupation vhen doors and windows were installed. A door in the East wing (rrqnt).

“*was “found “to-have been blocked out. "No date is-eveilsble as to why or when this
was done, but from the eppoarance of the lumber and plaster used, it must bheve
been about 1850 or 1860, and it was _considered unnecessary to have more than oIS
front door in this wing. It was restored insofar as the ocutside is concerned, by
& false door with iron work grill to conform with &ll other doors in front of the
buiiding. The inside vas furred out and plastered to conform to the walls within.

The method of rehabilitation on the inside was as follows: all adobe
walls were dry-brushed clean and & false wall furred out sbout four inches from
their face. This was covered with metal lathe and plastered and given a Spanish
Stucco finish. This was done to not only protect the walls but to earry out the
plen of concealing 2ll modern conveniences in the walls, such as electric light
fixtures, heating radiators and so forth, end the work was cerried out in such a
manner that none of the priginal charm was disturbed.

‘ The roof, of & necessity, had to be reinforced irn order to carry the
heavy loed of reel Spanish tile (30 tons). This was accomplished by removing all

-2-
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of the old roof rafters and installing Howe trusses with vertical steel truss.
rods es tension bolts in the Ball Room section; the ceiling was raised six feet
and & cross system of ventilation was provided above ceiling. The entire heavy
structure is all above the ceiling., False huge hewn ceiling beams were installed
irmediately below the ceiling, producing the effect of the old original speanish
design.

In the West wing on the Ball Room side of the old adobe wall, a =small
opening was left in the furred plastered wall, with e glass cover, an electric
light, which was installed therein, and by the pressing of a button the opening
is lighted and a section of the originel adobe may be viewed.

In removing the floors {practicsally &ll of which had to be removed),

nothing of interest was found. No indications of any original floor, Jjoists or

_piers were in evidence. This no doubt was due to the fact that the floors had

been renewed many times since the éonstmction of these buildings. No excavations
wore attempted or msde within the area of where the 6rigina.l adobe walls were
built. Al waé kept four feet away so as t0 in no way weeken the adobe. New

plers end joists were lmid where needed, the joists being slid over the ground and
enchored egainst the walls. In excavating for some of the center plers, a brass
sheet was discovered buried under about 'twq feet of earth, badly bent and scarred.
This sheet was sbout 1/8 inch by 8 inches by ten inches. To £ll appearances, it
was very old, although no information could be obtaeined as to what it was or

ite sources It was declided that it would be en appropriate plate to have the names
of the Cozmanding Officer, Colonel Douglas Poits ( who was in command &t that time),
and the undersigned (in charge of the rehabilitation) engraved upon it and the
nlete installed on the well in the hallway of the building. This was done, the

engraving being accomplished in a beautiful manner by & .C.W.A. mechanie on this work

-5-
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In the rear of the Club, a beautiful patio was planned. As no av.ail-
eble data could be obtained as to what kind of a patio existed when the building
waa erected, but the way the building was placed indicates that a patio no doubt,
did exist. So I simply. drew on my imagination and from what experience I had
from viewing Mexican and Spanish patios and designed one. The sketch being
epproved, I had it constructed. The pavement was made of old bdrick, hauled from
old Fort Point { & bullding being demolished there at that time) and laid irn ce-
mént plaster irregularly, to give it en appesrance of years of usage. Plants
end shrubbery were planted, apd with Spenish iron work lamps end grills, the
patio today is a beautiful sight. A Spenish adobe wall was imitated around the
rear of this patio, with hewn timber gates and a Spanish tile cap to carry out

~ the effect.

Barney L. Meeden,
Captein, Quartermester Corps.
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(Article from "The Quertermrster Fevier! continues)

A farce of 2s rmeny oo thirty skilled mechonics ner dey
throuchout the rmonthes of Juﬂe, July and Ausust, 1934, wos
necessary to comnlete the work of restorstion, but no sinsle
de*2il ves overlooked, Then the task wes completed ond the
buildins wes opened %o the members 2t 2 recenition on Aucust
23, 1624, they ctepmed int~ en interior structurslly smmd on
‘ecuieced with £11 the cénveniences necescsary to modern liv-
ing., Yet co cezrefully had besn done the work of remcdeling
that the orizinal charm of the "Commendencia" remeined un-
disturbed.

The-tulldirg, erected the yezr that the Declarstion of
Indepen@ence sas sizned ond once ihe seat of the 3Spenish
i{litsry Power in the Boy Region, stends as a lirk between

~the-ltong-gone days :0f vhe -Spanlish--exvlorers--and the nresent

jng

tire., Tor a century it hes been the soclal center for offi-

cers strtioned on the Vest Coast, hos been the rendezvous for

il

those gettin~ out for or returning from dietent stations in
the CTrient, from Noweii, Philinpine Islends, Druneme, fnd

Even in the yveore vhen it wes dece

unfeilinz 1idy 2
Wirmyls Tinest club tuildinz," o neme destined o cling %o the

&)

pes

remodeled YCommendrucia® vhich todey stends sound znd lovely

in the Floweriny srounds of the Fresidio of 3an Trencisco.



BANCROFT LIBRARY -~ CALIFORNIA ARCHIVES — P.S. P.XI, 49, £ &7

(Translation by Mother Dolores Sarre,
San Francisco College for Women)

1792 March 4th San Frencisco
Hermenegildo Sal to Romero---information about the Presidio
of San Francisco, :

This is accompanied by a copy of the plan made by (for map
his own hand (of which the one that is on the following g?? §§rt
page is believed to be an exact copy) shows the state of the
others (7). How exposed it is to a fire, one may judge by
lack ofseeeeess _

The store houses are built in stone and mud without any
support (?laster) and therefore exposed to ruin,

The guardia, the prison-cells, and the soldiers' houses
are in stone and adobe; its walls are crumbling and for this
reason they have put in the side of the square (plaza) counter—
fort (buttresses) of stone to support (the walls).

The sergeant's house is of stone without support and is
falling down.

The one of the commandant and others are of adobe, The
soldiers' dwellings are not equal to it. (?)

All the walls of the church are crumbling and deteriorating
end (the cracks) are wider in‘the upper-~part than in the lower.
A1l the roofs in what is built in the Presidio are of straw
(Zzacate) and tule and are very much exposed to & fire, as far
as the authorities can realize it (judge of it).

The winds blow in such a way, in the summer from the north-
west, end in winter from the south and the northeast, that they

“are like hurricanes which make notable (tremendous) harm in the

b 8
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caid roefs eand every year one must z2ttend to them with unend-

less work.

The gzrrizon is esmell, ithe cerecs entrusted 45 the Pregidio
well knorm; s92 thet the most nrrt of the verr 1t finds itgelf

mithout more Zorricon then ¢ cergeent or e cororzl rnd the
dz2ily sentry =nd heving to nzess to the Presidio of 'lonterey t»o

-

receive, e ee.eodit is for the lzvnse of two monthe almost
gbandonned az it hervened in the vesr Sl. A serceent, 2 cor-
porzl rnd tvo goldiers remein only in the Fresidio; this, end
merny other dreviteock befsll.us, beccuse the Lozt dces not cone
to thic Port to leszve the necessary (orovisions),

I am eye vitnesc that this Presidio res begun to Te tuilt
on July 27th, 1776 én& 2% the end of 7% the house of the Con-
mazndant wes in sdobe; nne wal} of I yards, height; 2 second
3 yerds, the third, 2%; end the fourth 2leo 2&. The.....house
in stone, stores, church end nabitctions for the troops in
nelizede aznd ezrth, Duriﬂg 2 rein £&11 in the wonth of Jenusry
of 1779, the stores, the slaughter houée, the church, the house
of the commondent znd of the troops znd the grectest nert of
the four nieces of well fell, in such ey thet ¢4 the end
of the vear 80, none of the houses tuilt in the yesr 78 were
standing, The lack of intellicent workers for the construction
snd direction of the works coniributed much to this; eonc ot
precent they are ctill leckins, o
' The ndote is bed in iteelf beccouse of the drmrness it

t is indismenseble thet the roofs in the

ct
ty
o
&)
-~
},J.

crurbles; cnd

South =nd in the 3Zouthwest cilde cover (rrotect) the grectest

nart of the wells.,



o e A i . cea @ L atam e e s e et s R . PR o m——

The lumber is found at ¢ distenée of more then ten lezrues L9
end 1f everything is favorsble a trip may te nmode every tveek
2nd this not in £1) the sezcons of the verr,

One CPﬁ mell inflorm the r~utharities of vhet hre teen don
in certrin occreions in this Frecidio with vhet stends eceturlly,
coneiderin~ that in the veer 20 end 81 the soldiere built ¢
houses of ~rlizzde to chelter themselves end their families.

411 this thot I monifest snd exnmose is notorious snd
therefore I sisn it. — The seme dcte. —— (Terncndo)

Hermenegildo Sal.

p. 175179

Prov, 3tate Papers. XI. 55.

1792 2%th Decenber, — 3J2l.to Arrillega,

The fourth well (lienzo--piece of wall) is of rrlizede;
#s if thev were bYezinning to york znew in the Presidib, in
the Yorih ride for I may szy thet there 2re no more ithen six
houses in & uselul condition rith thet of the Camicndent vhich

vee built the verr Tteiore,

.
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'(From files or "\merican Guide®,
Federal Writers' Project, W.P, i o)

-

SAN FRANCI3CO PRE3IDIO

.

The Presidio 2t Sen Francisco is the headeruarters of the
I'inth Crops Area of the U, 3. Arnmy. Founded originelly by the
Snen isrds,‘it woe one of the four nmrecidins (forts) in the
prevince; the others were =t 'irn Diezo, Zente Ferbers, oud
Zonterev. The orizinel purpose of these militery esteblish-

ments wee to nrovide nrotection to the nedres durint their

'S

‘efforts to convert the Indiens, ©On many nccasions, hovever,

the sctivities of the Spenish soldiery amocunted to'brutal of-
fensive against esczved neophytes or those Indiaps vho held
themselves 2loaf from the nission fzthers, |

The site for the Presidio wes selected by Juzn Bzutista

de fngzz, early in 1776, and founded by Lit. oraze, the dedi-

. 7
-cation fskinz nlece on Jezt., 7 of thet yeer vith Fsther Pelou

-

btlessinz the site ond celebrating Hish llass; efter vhich there

o s

was firing of cennon toth from the fort end from ships in the
harbor,

Constructed on 2 military recervetion coverine #n orea
of11,532 acres, the Presidio proper was built in the form of
2 cruadrengle, 200 y-ords squere,‘surrounded by a 14 foot wall.
The first buildinzce vere ¢ chrrel, 2 ciorehsuse, cnarters

for officexrs and for the troops, #11 buildi‘g were nede of

‘2dnte 2nd thrtched with rush,

In Tfslk the gerrison nuwbered 3% men who with their frii-

lies constituted 2 ceitlerment of 110, Ordinerily Spcaish sol-

- <

diers vere unmerried, but Anza hed sterted his overlend

30



exnedition with entire fomiliee selected from the poor of 3ine-~
loa, intending to found 2 settlement on Son Frencisco Tay, rrd
he zppears to hzve chosen merried soldiefs probebly with the
idez of thus zezurins o grecter decree of vermenency. Joavernar
Riverz of the Province of 3inalaos interfered vith his nlens

end only 2 shmell number of the verty under the lesdership of

Lt. I'oreza reached their destinction there to found the Pregidio
settlerment, 2t ennroximestely the same time the iliseion Dolores
was esteblished,

In 1794, = fort, the Cestille de 3en Joaguin, vrs built

4]

-

on the nromontery overlooking the nerrowest vwert of the Gnllen
Gote. Known as Fort Point todey, Anza hed called it Puntz del

Centil Blznco, The structure, 105 x 125 feet, wes horse-shoe

)]

in shepe znd srmed vith eleven bross cennon cent from Tar Bles

&

e}

Its parepets were ten feet thick,

The cerriron nurbersd about €0 men durins the remsinder
of the Spenish revime in Celiforniz end for several vears under
Yexicon rule it ves meintrined et siwiler strength, EFexmulrr

trocps were withdrewn in 1825, end, zs 2 resuli, toth the
*

Cn July 1, 1%UE, Tremont with 12 nen crossed from
1ito in 2 smell leunch ond took possession of the deserted for
spiking the cennon, lerch C of the followinz vesr, Col. lteven-
. son with ¢ regirent of llew York vclunteers occurnied hoth militery
nogcts, reiging over them, for the firemt time, the Americen flrg,

Under Arericen possession, fol !'rson extended the Presidic
reservation to 10,000 rcreg which included the western nortion
-of wvhet 1is now Golden Grie Perk but the reservriion wes reduced

to its oricinal erec when Thomes O, Lerkin, former consul of

.- v ee . e et e —we

.
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Yonterey, cleimed the lend under s grent mnde by Pio Pico, the
lest Yexicen governor., The ares of the Presidio today remeins
ita original slze except for a strip 80 ft. wide cut from the

rot frontnze for ¢ city ctreet, -

The »recent worede ground occupnles the old Treeidlo site In
1854 the nromontory upon vhich Tort Sén Joacuin stood wrs leveled
and Tort Tinfield <cott res buillt ¢t 2 cest of 72,000.00,

It vas in the Commandente's guarters, en adobe building,
wvhere, in 1506, while her fother wes commender of the gerrison,
thet Teris Concencion iArgiello lived her famous romence with
.the Fucsslzn, Rezonov, -

¥ear the S.W. corner of the pzrade ground is the site of the
house in vhich 3Jen, John J. Pershiﬁg end his forily lived from
1913 to 1915 while he was in comrend of the Fighth levelry Bri-
gede, In the latter veer vhile he was stztioned on the Nexicen
border his wife cnd three daughters_lost their lives in the
fire that comletely deétroyed “he house,

Some of the o0ld Snenish cenron ere still on the zrounds
of the Presidio, 7wo staznd in front of the Cfficers' Club,
end further west, fecing the perede ground, cre two others
broucht from Lime, Peru, rnd deted 1673.

Letterman Hospital, lorgest militery hospital in the United
Stotes, is at the Presidio, vhere a2 lerge number of men injured

in the "orld Ver ore still Teins crred for,



(From files of "American Guide",
Federal Writers' Project, W.P,A, )

S&ll FRANCISCO .,1D PRIZIDIO 33

The Bey of Sen Frencisco and the cite unon vhich the
city is tuilt vere discovered in 1769 ty Zergeant Jose Tren—
clsco cde Crtega, vho wes in chorge of tﬁe gdvence guard of the
onterey exvneditlon, Governor Gaspar de Portola weos conrender
of the expedition end sent Ortegz and his men forvard to ez—
smine the couniry, They left crmm, vhich vas near uonoerey,
cn Vednesday, l‘ovember lst, and returned in the night of Ilov—

ember 3rd, digcharglinzg their firecrms as they zrpr

nroeched, by
which sign 211 knew that important discoveries hzdé been nade.
Ortega reported the discovery of immense estuaries vhich ren
beck for into the land, It pnroved to be the Bay of Sen Fran-
'cisco; A few da&é loter Ortegza weas sent out a2zain, This time
his route lay zround the contra costa. Hé left on the 7th

znd returned in the nizht of the 10th, He revorited that he
hed seen eznother imrense "IZstaro" on the northezst, vhich ren
fer inlend and conunected vith one on the southeast, snd that
to double it would require meny leszues of itrevel, It
intereast to note thrt the Boy of 3rn Troncicsco was celled the

"Eetero" until some time 2fter the establishment of the Pre-

sidio in 1776. .

The “onterey exnpedition was uneble to find the oy of
V'onterey rnd throuch lack of nrovieions ves cormelled to re-
turn to 3cn Diexo, Thén Governor Portole renorted to ¥r, Lerre
thet he he een unsble to loczte the bay of llonterey, tul thet

the exmedition hed treoveled chout £orty leacues further north

- - L e e -



end hed found the bey of Son Frencisco, the holy father's joy
vas unbounded@ - 2¢ he well rermembered thet when Zrlvez the
Visitador-Genersl hed essicned the nemes of Sen Diego, llonterey,
> end Sen Zuenaventurz to the three missions to be founded he heod
not desizneted one for the founder of the Franciscan Crder, 3t.
Frencis ond vhen he remonstreted with him 3zlvez head e0id, "IF
St; Frencis desires a mission, let him show us his herbor snd
he chell heve one" - and lo, here wes the harbor shorn to the
exrlorers vhen they were in se?éch of Konterey,.vhich héd'al—
most mirsculously eluded them, Then notified, the Visitador-
Generzl Galvez accepted the discd#ery 2g & proof that St.
Francis vented » wission.
'The first ship to sail into the Bay of San Frencieco was

the nacket boet 32n Cerlos, also celled the Golden Fleece, com—

. -mended-by Don Jusn lienuvel -de-Avsla, vwhose first pilet wes Don
- , - - . x 3 -
. Jose de Cenizeres znd the second vilot Don Juen Feutiste Aguirre,

~They seiled over the bar into the bey on the nicht of August
5, 1775, end remeined within the nort forty-four deys, meking
exhrustive exrminrtions of the nors of Jan Frencisco., Yis re-
po&t to the viceroy Don Antonio Ilzriz Buareli wes 211 that
could be desired, He cneaks of an zbundence of fresh weatfer,
vood and bsllest, Fe nentions the werther os teiny conld, free
from fors and heslthy, The Indiens friendly and the generesl
‘conditions cs beins one of the test "that I heve seen on this
corst from Cone Horn,'
An Zxpedition for the settlewment of 3sn Frencisco ~nd the

esteblishment of a nmicssion twes ordered,

n

[£S.)



Cn the 15th of June, 1776, the colony srrived under the
commend of Cernt, Jurn Brutiste de Anz?, ond oitched their tents,
fifteen in number, on the tonks of = legune which emmtied into
the Bay of San Frencisco. 2n the following dey, under 2 canépy
of evergreen, Fr, Froncisco Peldu celebreted mess in honor of
St. Peter and Paul, tvhoee ferst dev it was., The en grents re-
meined encerped here for the entire month sweiting the srrivel
df the nacket bort., During the time timbers were cut end »re-
pared for the rresidio #nd the wission estoblichment, vhich ves
to be built near the lagunz on the »nlszin,

Aumust 18th the packet bost errived. The records sav: "lost
speedily ¢ chepel ond storehouses were erected at the presidiog
s chepel, storehouse and drellings for the padres 2t the site
intended for the nmission, 3Soldiers constructed tverrzcks at

~both pleces. They were meade of .timbers covered with tule roof.”

Formel nossession of the presidio vras teken Zeptember }7th,
1776, TFeest of the Stigmeté of 3t. Frencis, vetron saint of
the nresidio #nd the mission. ¥r, Palou sa ng ress, tlessed snd
erected 2 cross, ceng the Te Deum, zfter which the o’ficers %ook
poésession of the nlzce in the nsme of the king, amidst firing
of cennon =2nd mucketry. PalSﬁ seys that the founding of the
misgion wees deleved throuth lack of orders from Rivera, the com-
mzndant.

Y

tuil the sutject of
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Cocst defense ¢nd presidio
voluminous corresmondence tetween the ficials of Crlifornie
znd the viceroys of i‘exico, with but little effect, In llrrch,
17,b, Commandent Ve] sent Jovernoar Jose Romeu ¢ wlen of the
presidio building at Zon Froncisco, accomranied bv en urcent re—

cuest for imnrovements, tozether with eight or ten scilor-
! .



workmen end a2 brick-lasyer to do the work of repairs. Vancouver's
caustic¢ description givesthe best irmrescion of the reeds of

the presidib. It 1s about es follows: The nresidis ves e

sousre 2rea wvhose sides were about two hundred yards in length
enclosed by e mud wall, end resembling 2 pound for cattle. Above
thls wall the thetched roofs of their low smell houses just meoke
their oTcnce., Mme side was very indifferently fenced in ty

2 few brushes here ond there, fostened to stzkes in the groun

hie wolls were about Jourtesn feet Lhizh end five feet in bresdih,
and were formed by unrights eand horizontel rofters of lerze tim-
ber, tetween vhich dried sods and nmoistened earth formed into
sort of rmd plaster, vhich gzve it an eppeereznce of durability.
The church had been vwhitewashed and wes nest in commerison to

the Tect, The comwendont's house hed a dirt floor rzised chout

[e

“three Teet from ‘the ‘level, crd ‘the ‘windows vere mere holes in
the thick rllg, without zlass,

Sal wrote that wmany of the buildingé vere lindle to frll
et arny time, end thet the church was in z perticularly nre-
corious condition, znd in 1312 esrtheueke it fell, one cf
the siructures were those originglly tuilt, e each yesr some

. of the buildinzgs hed fallen and been rebuili in the same feulty

mzuner, It tes necessary to brinz tiuber thirty wmiles ond tule
rine miles, Despite the opnezl ond the evident need-for im-
érovements, 211 the attenti and noney were snent un»on the
construction of the Costillo de Zen Jooeuin on the shore, and
later on the Battery of Yerba Buena,., In 1821 Governor Cola
celled upon the nedres throush the Prefect Poyerec to send a

boat with timbers 2nd laborers 1o meke certecin repoirs at the

L
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presidioc. The frthers sent two bost lozds of meterizl, two
cernenters, ond twelve axumen, in ‘irv, of the some verr., The
Cestilln de Sen Jon~uin wee useless »nd the Botterv no tetter,
In 1824 conditions vere not irmroved,

The Presidiz Cfficers' Club is #n Adobe building. It wes

erected in 1776 by the 3nenish explorers under comrmend of Lieuw- °
tensnt Jos€ Joacuin iloracge,

The Club formed »=rt éf & ctockede 2nd together with m-ny
otﬁer t1uildin~e vrs enclosed by r well fourteen feet hich end
five feet wide,

About fifty men garrisoned the Presidio from its discovery
until the rexicen Sceunctieon in 1822,

The Officeret! Club mroper was used by the Snenish aﬁd Mexi-
cen Comsendants 2s living cuerters and‘wes not actuslly christened
~znd -furnished-os on-officers! club until Awericen occupation,

Thé Presidio farrison Tes, until the Celifornie =old rush
"in 1248, very smell #nd no immediste denger wes ever feered
-from the Irdisns in this locelity £s they vere not inclined to
be nostile, in frct were very Iriendly.

‘ The Officers' Club end the Islesiz {church) were the first
buildines erected snd in 1792 »nrecticelly the entire ctockede
exceptiny the esst side ves cormleted,

During the eaTthouske of 1812, nracticclly 211 the buildinrce
¢nd vells of the stock-de were dewnlicshed, =nd %the mresent Cf-
ficers' Club vithstood the shock end only susteined :ainor in-
juries, The Church vhich wes built directly eest of the Club
bulldins wes demolished énd never retuilt,

The Commzndenis of the Presidio gzrrrison who used the Club

vith their o ficers ond Temilies little dreamcc that » century

. ] 5
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hence their humble adobe would become one of the historicol
spots of San Frencisco.

In 1853 the old fort wes demolished by itroops under com-
nend of Yejor J. . Epfnard and the selvage materlal used in
new construction, The club building wes left untouched under
this construction nlan,

This club building has been used 2s a herdnuesrters under
Sbanish, "exicen, and Americzn rule, In 1850 the building vwas
slightly remodeled., In 1900 this building veg etill further re-
nodeled, In 1912 electric fixtures.were installed., The light-
inz system czused 2 fire 2nd the roof wes domaged, rensired,
and reverped., In 1915 gtill further remodeling wes accomnlished;
ceiling fixtures and chendeliers were mut in snd the ceiling
lowered. Precticelly no repesires to this buildinz hove been
mede from thest dote to the present time. In Jemuery 1934, under
a Federsl end Local Civil iorks Administration project, the
Commendint Cfficer, Colonel Douglas Potts, Z0th Infentry, re-
stored the Clud to its original architecture, This consisied
of rebuilding the roqf.and side well of the esserbly roon,
bringing teck the Spanish ceilings, with imitation flat teans,
renodeling the firerlece in old Snenich effect, stuccoins the
entire Tront of the building, #nd ronfing =with Spenish tile
in place of the fire-nroof shinrles,

7ith the gwlendid co-operstion of the City end County of
37n Frencisco in crrrying the work on to conclusion, it heving
been gierted s2 » Tederel CUA nroject end cerried to commletion

o8 a Locel OWA project.



ith slight chenges during the meny vesrs the Presidio
Qfficers! Club now holds the distinction of tein: the oldest
~8ote buildiny in the Citv of Sen Froncisco,

The Club merberchin commences from the time of Sener=l
George Tachington and continues throush the zges of precticelly
every general officer or the United Stetes Arnmy, vho during
his service wes either ¢ mewber or ¢ wisitor of this now femous

Presidin COfficer=? Club.

Authority: Parney L. !feeden,
Ceptein, ~.10.C.,

Officer in Charze of Construc-—

- tion of this Restorstion,
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The Precidin of 3~n Freoncisco.

Federel .riters! Froject, V. r. A, 3en
¥Franclisco Heedouzrters. — loterisl
extracted from files ard historicnl
reports thereof,

The w?llé of the presidio, tegzur by l‘oraTe in the
winter of Zeventeen Zeventv-six, were commleted on three
sides in Zeveniteen Yinety-two, but on the fourth or ercst
sidé wes a palisede supplemented by bushes to cover its
apnearence, About the beginning of the century, the
fourth well was cormmleted tb correspond with the others.
In Eighteen twelve, an earthcucke threw down a large
pert of the esstern and southern walls znd nearly s1l
of the northern well. It also ruined the church znd
ﬁafnumher"of tuildings within the enclosure. (After 1835)
e...ethere seems to héve been no regulzr troops at the

presidic. The walls were down znd the Fort was crumbling.

C e e e s - -
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PART II

EXTRACTS FROM HISTCORIES-AND PERIODICALS, RELATIKNG
TO PHYSICAL CONDITION OF BUILDINGS OF THE PRESIDIO
OF SAK FRAHCISGC IN SPAXISH, MEXICAN, ARD AMERICAX
PERIODS TO DATE,



4
. . Bancroft, Hubert Eowe. ~- History of Coli- e“
fornia. 32n Frencisco. The History '
Commany, 1384-90,

»

v. I, ch. XIII, p 289. (At founding July-Sevntember, 1776).....

' ‘I

work ves imzedistely bezun on rermenent cuildings for the

Presidio, 211 loceted within a square of ninety-two yezrds,
eccordiny to ¢ »len nzde by Cefizeres., Qpir5§ sent zchore
his two cearmenters 2nd 2 scurd of seilors to work on the
storehouse, comruendant's drelling, =nd chapel, while the

soldiers erected houses for themselves end families, All

the buildings were of nzlissde walls, snd roofed vith

earth,

s~ch. XV, p.--33L, --At -San Prencisco .walls -were 2lso being

built, but of adobe,‘which tﬁe rains of Jenuery end Feb-
Tuery of 1779 undermined end destroyed, showing that here
2lso stone must te used....At San Frencisco Presidio 2
new chevel wag in course of erection 2% the beginning of
1780.....4 house was burned zt the Presidio Cect, 11, 1779,
end with it the hogpitel tent of the two vessels Princess

e2nd Fovorite.

“v. 1, ch. ¥XII, ». 472, (1783-90) The nresidisl force wee

thirty~four men tesides the officers, from fifieen to
tventy of vhou served in the gerrison tvhile the rest éid
7

currd duty ot the mission, ot Sente Clerz, end 2t Sen Joce,
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. With their femilies they rmounted to 2 nopulstion of

gbout one éundred end thirty. Of the Presidio tuildincs
there is nothinc to be s~id beyond the fzct that from
went of timber, bsd ~uality of adobes, end lack of skill-
ful wqumen, no permznent piogress was made during the
deczde. Some nortion of the welle was generally in Tuins,
and the soldiers in some coses had to erect thenold—

feshioned nelisede structures to chelter their fenmilies,

v. 1, p. 473 (1784).....in Februery 2z chepel was comnleted.....

v. 1, p. 695-7 On larch 4, 1792, Comendante Szl sent the cov-

ernor z description szccommanied by 2 plen which I re~-
produce. Three sides of the sguere of 120 yerds were
occupied by 2dobe wdlls-znd houses, both of zdobes and
of rouszh stones lezid in mud; and the_fourth side wes vro-
tected by » nrimitive pelisade fence. All the structures
were roofed with strzw 2nd tules, exposed to fire znd =2t
the mercy of the winds, All, excent the commendent's
house lztely comwleted a2nd two or three of the soldiers!
houees, were, through the poorlauality of meteriels and
went of knowledge znd czre on the vart of the builders,
lisble to f211 =2t eny moment, the cﬁurch beini in 2 por-
ticularly'precerious condition. 1i‘one of the structures
were those originelly »ullt; ezch yezr some of them hrd
fezllen =nd been restored in the seme foulty menner with

the seme nerisheble meteriszl., Timber had to be brought
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thirty miles, ond tules nine miles. The garrison was so . B;
grall end its duties so meny thet 321 deemed it irmos— |
sible to accomplish the necessary renairs. At the end

of the yersr the seme condition of effairs existed, znd

82l urged the government to send eizht or ten s2ilor-work-
men znd 2z bricklsyer; othervise zn ernronriation of £3,C00
would be recuired to hire Indien loborers, Ieenwhile Ven-
couver visited and described the Presidio in November,

2nd he describes it as @ "scuare sres vhose sides were
about two hundred ysrds in length enclosed by 2 rud well,
and resembiing a pound for cattle, Above this wall the
thatched roofs of their low small houses just mede their

" gpoearances." One side was "very indifferently fenced in
by 2 few bushes here 2nd there, fastened to stekes in
_.the ground." The wall was "about fourteen feet hich, ond
five feet in breadth, 2nd was first formed by uprights

end horizontsl rafters of larze timber, between which

dried sods and moistened earth were vressed as close znd
hzrd 2s nossible, after which the vhole wes cesed with

the ezrth made into 2 sort of mud plester, vhich geve it
the‘appeerance of durability." The church hed been vhite~
veshed a2nd was nest in commarison to the rest., The floor
in the commendanit's house ves the native soil rzised cbout
three feet obove the originel level, The windows were mere
holes in the thick walls, without glass....;ﬂel to Ar-
rillega dates Dov. 29th, steting thet work on the Tuild-
ing wes finished, tile roofs on the church, warehouses, end

nine new houses for soldiers; but this does not agree with
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the other records.....August 20, 1793, the governor in- : t5
forms the viceroy of the bed condition of the tuildings,
elthough 1,400 have been snent on remsirs since the foun-
dation.....Jen, 31, 1794, commandent to covernor; house
of 2d officer in 2 bed state; 2dotes ond tiles melting
evey; will try to s=ve the timters,...,.Feb, 1, 1794, roin
ceme ne2r snoiling the nowder, tut hides end tileg were
eTTenged to seve it.....Jen. 22, 1796, = heavy gale did
much demege to church and one house,....June 2Z0th, the
coming reins will bring the old tuildinss down, and a rew
Presidio should be begun,....Aug. 3, warehouses bzdly
_built end in grest denger from fire.....In January 1200
>a hurricene tore off seversl roofs; 1,799 were spent in

repeirs during the year; znd commleints continued.

v. 2, p; 127. Early in Februery 1£02 2 hurricene mede wild
work with nmany of the Presidio roofs; znd two vears later, .
efter hasty renmeirs hed given the gerrison one winter of
comearstive protection, the heevy szles and reins of Jén—

uvary 1804 =gein wrought havoc with the freil structures.

Ve 2, D. 123, 7o lLanzsdorff in the spring of 1806 Sen Fran-
cisco had "the apnezrznce of ¢ Germen metzirie, The lovw
wooden houses consist of one guedrsnguler room, The home
of the commendant is smzll end reen. 4 sort of operlour,
with only vhite-weshed vells, very scentily furnish, =nd
ebout hali the floor covered vith strew-metting, served

2s the onertment for receiving commony."

b
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V. 2, p. 128, 1In July of the eame year Arrillaga in a renort
éo the viceroy represented the buildings ag in 2 ead stcte,
The commendsnt's houce ves covered with tiles, but not
those of other officers. The tezrreck ﬁad only helf ¢

roof and was not secure for the convicts.

v. 2, P. 129. On July l7th.Argﬁello wrote to the governor:
I notify you that since the twenty-first day of June
there hsave ?een felt &t this presidio some esrthcuzkes,
eichteen shocks to date, and zmonT them some so violent
that 28 2 result of them the wa2lls of my house hzve been

- ocracked, beinz badly built, so thet one of its rooms wes -

ruined; and if fthe shockse heée done, until now, no further
demage, it is becruse they found no chance for lack of
dwellings.....Finslly in 1810 Argiello sent in the last
comnlaint of the decade, stzting that continuous storms
hzd reduced the granzry end four soldiers! houses to ¢
‘woeful state; 2lso the old berrzcks and the other struc-
tures, including the chanel, the wmerlons, were entirely
destroyed. The ertillery dberreck znd cavelry cusrters -
were in so bed'a conditién that serious accidents were to
be feared; the warehouse with its zacate roof had been~

robbed,....

v. 2, n. 371°(1813) The force ves 68 soldiers, twelve invelids,
snd four esrtillerymen, of whom about Lo 1ived 2t the nre~
gidio until 50 men of Centein Fevarrete's 3an Elas infentry

were stationed here in 1819 under Lieutensnt Vsolle ond
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V. 2, Do 3?2. .+ eesTebullding or extensive renzir of the

Presidio nrover. At eny rzte the old chepel wos torn

down to be rebuilt, znd 2 provisionel tuilding fitted wp
in vhich the first mess wes said on Februesry 25, 1516.
Osio tells us thot Argliello 2nd his soldiers begen the
“work of reb;ilding the Presidio scusre in 1815, and neerly
finished it tefore Sols found it out gnd ordered e sus—
vension.....Amador 21lso sz2ys the presidio was in process
of reconstruction 2bout 1818, Choris gives 2 lithogreghib
“view of the buildinzs as they spnesred in 1816, 2 nic-
ture vhich imperts but very slight informetion, and seems
to renresent the struétures es éomplete. Chamisso, how-
ever, éays that the Presidio was newly built 2nd covered
with tiles, though the chapel hed‘not been begun, In |
Aoril 1818 30lz informed the viceroy thet the couthern
bléck where the church wvzs to be was yet uniinished, es
were the correls on the four sides, thus inplyinz 2 re-

construction, resnecting which, more or less cormlete.....

v. 2, p. 372-3. Sept. 16, 1816, one of the soldiers' houses
was burned, #nd 14 nrisoners employed to nut out the fire
escened, éhoris s2ys of the Presidio, 'sa forme est cerréé.
I1 & deux nortes tonjours occupé%s var une garde; les
fenltres ne sont ouvertes gue sur la cour.! Amadox s2Ys

the o0ld siructures vere of pelo neredo, the new ones of



edobes., OCslo, Hist, Cel., 13., 5-21, seys that 30la with 68
tis stick ond Argliello with Liis sword mede some hostile
demnnétrations, whereupon Sole threw avey hie stick end
extended hils hend, decsirting to be friendly with so brecve

a man! He soys a boat wes built by en Inglish carpenter

in thich timber was brought from Zen Refezel, Alverzdo seys

s the toet was built by three English cemmenters, decerters

from the Colurbtiz River, cestured in Alsmeda county, in 1716,

%)

The bost wes lrsunched in ov., 1519, Dona lle~dolenc ITstu-
dillo conming up from ilonterey to serve a2s medrina 2nd neming
her the "Pgulina®, This lrsnchz wes of zbout five tons.

Feb, 131€, cdrrespbndence betrween ArsUello and 3olz, show
ing thet the 0ld boat hzd teen tadly dameged and zfter re-

peirs destroyed in = gele. A 2ew one to be built.....

m

“April '3, I£18, "Solas *to "viceroy on PreSidiQWbuildings.....
ziéSO in wrong in seying the tuildings were of stone.

quuefeuil seys that in 1817 the church which had reen

bﬁrned had not been rebuilt; but the temnorary hell used

2s a chenel wmas kent in excellent condition.

v.-2, p.- 584, .....the presidial compeny of San Trenciesco hed

dwindled to fifty men or perheps less in 1830,

v. 2, p. 58U~5, Thus the effective militery force was not
over 70 men, of whom 25 were zbsent from the neninsula on

escoltz duty. (1830)
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Ve 2, Ds 558, .....Ceptain llorrell was here in 1825, Fe de-
scrites the »residio as ¥tuilt in the srme menner 2s on-
terey;" thet is, "surrounded by 2 well of ten feet in
height, built of freestone, btut much sméller, comorising
only sbout 120 houses zand 2 church." In 1826 occurred the
visit of the Inzlish nevigotor, Seecher., Of the buildinzs
he seys! "The Tovernor'ls zbode ras'in a corner of the
presidio, znd formed one end of 2 row of which the other
weg occunied by o chanei; the onnosite zide wes broken
dowvn a2nd little better then 2 he;p'of rubbish znd bones,
on which jeckels, dogs, end vultures were constently
pégying; the other two sides of the cuadrengle contzined

'storehouses, ertificers'! shops, and the gsol, 211 built _
in the.hubblest style, with badly burned bricks, znd roofed

-with tiles. The chevel end the covernor's.house were.dis-

tinzuished by being whitersshed.®

v. 3, p. 700. The presidizl cevalry compeny veried in 1831-U4

esssethe effective Torce of the zarrison teing from 18 to

ten soldiers.

Ve 3, pP. 703-5. leetinzs 2nd electionsw=-the former not very
numerous, nresunably—-~were recquired to be held, and were
held, so fer as the records ghow, 2t the ﬁresidio, thouzh
sonte of the officiels ond most of the citizens lived else-
wnere, the presidio,'as we have seen, teing zlmost entirely

abendoned after 1826, (1528) The Qjo de Figueroz nesr the
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presidio grented to Apolinerio Uirenda by Con. Sznches(?),

¥, hed elrezdy = house there., Drinelle, »dd, 545,

Ve 3, D. 709, Jose Remon Senchez s2ys that in the oresidio re-
gion, but distinct from the nresidioc buildings, were two
houses, one occupied by the Sra de Higueia, built of tinmbver
ty the Russians} the other of zdobe at the 0jn de 2guc

del Polin,

v. 4, ». 431, (1844) A beginning wes mede on 2 small building
to serve as a kind of branch custom-house, the lcborers
o - 2 + I s
~ being Indiesns from 3en Jose and 3onome, and the meterial

being teken from ruins e% the mission znd nresidio,

ve 4, p. 667. (1845) The sub-prefect was much troubled, ond
he 2lso complzined of the lack of office end prison, de-
eiring permission to obtein building meterial from the
presidio or mission ruins. (original corresp. in Doc.

Eist. Cel. ¥X., ii. 108, 127,140,156,158,180.)

Y

~ wv. &t, p, 669. lehh) Feb, 26th, diez has received the order;
no material cen e hed from the mission; wents euthority
to teke tiles and luwber from the ruined tuildings 2t
the presiéio. Feb, 22th, more on the seme subjects. The
materis1l of unoccunied buildings st the :ission hes been
czrried off, es thet at the'presidio 711l te sgoon if nothing

is done,



v. 5, p. 659. (1816)

Francisco Senchez wes nominelly comen-

dente a2t Szn Frencieco until the end of ilexican rule,

though prectic:liy ro nilivery duties vere performed by

hir or enyv other,

10
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Betecs, lirs, D, B, = Incidents on land

end water, or four years on the
Pacific Cocest, Tositon, Published

for suthor, 1560,

. 98 It consists of eeverszl blocks of sdobe tuildinzs, cov-

ered with tiles. The wells of most of the buildinzs are

crunbling for the went of care in protécting them fronm

sannuzl rzins.
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Beechy, Ceptzin F, V., R. ¥, — ¥arrative 73
of a voyace to the Pacific ond Beer-
Inzs 3trait, London. Henry Colborn
#nd Richard Fentley., 1831,

De L (1826)......2 sickly colurm of smoke rising from within
some dilerid=ted wells, mimnemed the Predidio or r»ro-
tection, wes the only indicetion vwe hed of the country

being inhabited,

p. 9 The governor's sbode was in 2 corner of the Presidio,
and formed one end of 2 row, of vhich the other wes oc-
cupied by 2 chepei; the ovprosite side was brokeg dormn,

“and little vetter then é hezp of rubbish and bones, on
which jackels, dogs, snd vultures were constently prev-
ing, the other two sides of the gcuadranglé contained
storehouses, artificers! shops, end the gzd, 211 built
in the humblest stvle with badly burnt bricus, apd roofed

s TLasv? .
with tiles. The x£hrrpel end the governor's house were
distincuiched by being rhiteweshed.....The nezlect of the
government to its estzblishments could not be more tho-
rouzhly evinced than in the dilspidsted condition of the
buildings in cuestion;.....The gerrison of n Frencisco
consists of seventy-six cevalry soldiers and s few ertil- "
lerymen, distributed between the Presidios and the lie-

sions, end consecuently not more then half e dozen are

et any time in one »lace,



Cepron, E. S, —- History of Crlifornia; 74
. fronm its discovervy to the nresent
time, Boston, John P. Jevett &
Commeny. Clevelsnd, Ohio, 1854,
-

Pe 9. The visitor to the nresidloof San Frencisco, znd the
edjecent fort, will see comneratively little of their
origzinel outline, srrangement, or zprnearcnce, The for-
mer is situated sbout four miles west from 3en Frenecisco,
and two wmiles north from the missicn., The fort stands
on zn eminence ¢y the seaz———shore, frowing darkly over
the waters of the 3Jolden gete,

The presidio is on a pleiyn, surrounded by rising

oundg, which szre alwesys covered with 5 mentle of green

0.3'_

rass, Mo tree or shrub has ever diversified the scene

1k}

-

~around it. »The.old~qdoc° buildings, ond a2 noxrtion of

the wells, are there; but the hend of modérn refinement

hes swept awey the dusit and dilepidetion vhich, in the

B mind of 4the traveller, throw esround these ezncient struc~

tures their hishest cherm. The castle of the Mexicen com-
mendante and the fort ~re now occupied by Americen troops;
and nent, whiteveshed, nicket fences supply the nlzce of

g lerge iart of the 0ld wanlls. The presidio is cuadrengu-
lor, ezch eide being in length about oné hundred verds,

At erch enzle, on the outeide, wes formerly o hollow bretion
as hich pg the main wells, but much thicker, eond about fif-
teen feet sounre, These were erxbresured on tvo sides for
cennon, The buildings within the enclosure sre situsted

on three of the sides, extending the whole length of one side

1
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end about helf the length of the other two, ere of egual 75

height with the wells, and are covered with eerthen tile.



. - D m e U s e e Bk sl - AV e A8 s W TR e B T

76

Dana, R, H., Jr. — Two vears tefore the
riest end tventy-four vezrs sfter.
Yew Yorkx, P. ¥, Collier & 3Zon, 1509,

(1835) ro informstion of vrlue tecring on Presidio.
p; 399 (Sec. ~-Twenty-four yeers ofter) (Aug., 1859).....the
ruinous Presidio,....visited.....The walls stand as they

éid, with some changes made to accommodeate a small gar-

rison of United Stetes troops.

e — . . e - . N I -



Davidson, Georse. —- The discovery of San i
Frencisco Bery, the rediscovery of the
port of !'onterey; the estzblishment
of the Presidio, ond the founding of
the I'ission of 3~n Frerncisco, 3an
Francisco. Pertridge Print, 1907,

(1792) Gives Vencouver's sccount first.

(Later) Father P21du tells us thet the Prgsidio-covered a
sguare of ninety-two veras each side; this would be about
two hundred and fifty-two feet, or smzller than Ven-
couver’s estimate, Ve suppose it was enlarged between
the detes 1776 end 1792. 4 '

We have before us 2 plan of the Presidic made in
1820 to chow the effects of the greest earthcuaké of 1812,
which .destroyed the Ilission huildings of San Juan Cenis-
freﬁo and Santa Ynez. This plan is 2 rectangle iﬁ DTOo-
portion of eleven north endAsbuth and ten-east and vwest,
The whole arrangement is btuilt to fzce north, the
. chapel wes =t the south or higher end of the prrade
ground, and extended intﬁ the square and beyond the wall,
On *the ecst side of the pﬁegel were the cuarters of the
Comendente; on the west those of the officers, The cuar-
tel was ﬁe?r the northeast angle, the "calazbozo" at the
east side of the entrance, the gﬁard—house on the west
side, All buildings were stout ten feet from the inner
side of the well; and around the whole nparade éround wes

2 line of trees, The flagmole was neazr the middle of the

area,



Assuming Father Palod's size correct, and that.the 78
plen of 1820 wes in proportion, we estimeste the chepel
to haﬁe been seventy-five feet long 2nd twenty-five feet
wide. |

The whole varade was surrounded by buildings which
were twenty-five feet deep.

The chapeliwas destroyed by the earthquake mentioned,
sixty feet of the buildings in ruins, a2nd one-helf of tﬁe '
surrounding wall,

This plaﬁ 2lso marks the snchorsge, the "pozo de los

marineros",'and beyond the socutheast aﬁgle the houses of

¥ercos Briones y Mirsmontes, snd the "ojo de agua" El

Polin,
_Ceptain Beechey surveyed the Bay of San Francisco

in 1826, =znd found the Presidio in very dilepidated con-

ditiog with broken down walls, and eguipned with three -

Tusty iron guns.
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Davis, ¥illism Heath, — Seventy-five years . 79
in Celiforniz: A history of events :
end life in California. Sen Francisco,

John Yorell, 1929,

" pe 4 (1823) The presidio wes the military post, where all
the white inhabitents lived, and was commaznded by Captein
X, 5. Vellejo, later General Vellejo. There were probebly

at the barracks, including soldiers,betveen two znd three

hundred men, women, snd childrern,

P. 1 Drewing —— same as Choris.
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Duhzut = Cilly, &, ~—= Voynge sutour du monde,

nrincirnezlement o l2 Crlifornie et ~ux
Ilés Sendwich, —endent les ennees

1826, 13827, 1828, et 1829, Prris, Chez
Arthus Sertrend libraire, 1834, Trons-
lzted from the French by Charles Frank-
lin Czrter. Zen Frencisco. Celifoarnie
Historicel 3ociety Querterly, v, VIII,
1¢2g.

p. 140 (1827) (Seiling into the harbor "Héros") elmost at

once vwe found ourselves opnosite a cluster of houses which
21l of us took for 2 ferm; but on exsmining them more
closely, and consulting the sccounts of the navigetors

I have lately cited, Vencouver and Roquefeuille, I recog-

nized the presidio,



Dwinelle, John Whipnle -- The colonial
history of the city of 3an Francisco.
. . San Frenciscoj Printed by Towne &
Becon. 1866,

Hist. Intro., DXVII Quotes Vancouver's sccount.

p. 18, pers. 25. Description of s Presidio.

7 _ "All the Presidios were estzblished on the same
plan: Chooasing 2 favorable place, they surrounded it by
a ditch, tweive feet wide and six deep. The earth of
the ditch served for the outwork. The enclosure of the

~ Presidio wes formed by a cuadrilesteral, zbout six hundred

- | feet squere. The rarmert, built of brick, was twelve to

fiffeen feet high, by jhree in thickness; small bzstions
flanked the engles; the Presidio had but two gates, Its
armément cenerzlly consisted of eight bronze cennon, eicht,
twelve, 2nd sixteen pounders; Although inéapeble of re-
sisting en 2ttack of ships of war, these fortificetions

were sufficient to repel the incursions of the Indisns."
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Eldridse, Zoeth Skinner, — .The beginnings
of Sen Frencisco from the exredition
of Anze, 1774, to the city cherter
of Anril 15, 1850, 3an Francisco,

42, 3, Eldridge, 1912,

Pe 720 The wells of.the Presidio, begun by lorzzz in the vin-
‘ ter of 1776-77, were, =2t the time of Vancouver's visit,
1792, comgleted on three sides, but on the fourth, or
easterly side, 2 commronice wes effected ty 2 peslisade
suopleniented by bushes nlanted to cover its spnesrance,
The adobe wells were fourteen feet nigh and five feet
- thick., Avout the beginning of the century, the fourth,
or ezst wezll, wes cormleted to correspond with the others,
In 1812 zn eerthcouzke threw dowm 2 large nart of the.
eastern znd southern walls end nearly 211 of the northern

vall, It 2lso ruined the church end a number of tuildings

rithin the enclosure,

p. 722 (After 1835), Lster the regular troops were 21l with—
dravn 2nd the fort znd Predidio suffered to fell into de-
cey: one 0ld zrtillerymen, Corporal Jozguin Peﬁh, veing

left 23 custodiesn of the government property.

p. 722 (1342). After this there seems to have been no reculrr

troops et the nresidic. The walls were down and the fort

was crumbling to ruins,
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Eldredge, Zoeth Skinner. — History of
Californie, 1Ilew York, The Century
History Compeny. 1915. 5 v,

v. 1, p. 403 (1776).....Captein cuiros soon hed his seilors
2t work with the soldiers on the presidio buildings.
Plans had been vrevared by Pilot José Cefizares for on
enclosure of pélings ninety-tvo vares--—or sbout 253
feet~-~scuare, with houses for the officers, barrzcks
for the soldiers, a storehouse, chzpel, etc., rithiﬁ it.
These, like the presidio rall, were built of nalings,

but were plestered with rud 2nd roofed with a thatch of

tules, -

¢3
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- Elliott, George ¥, — The cvrecidio of Sen
Frerncisco -- in Overleond onthly, IV,
San Frencisco, April, 1370.

De 337 Gives Peldu, Vancouver, 3Beechey sccounis.

.

P. 239 (1203) <Cuctes Luis Arcielle....!3ince the 2lst of June
lest to the nresent dzte, trenty-one shocks of esrthsusckes
heove been felt in this Presi&io, some of vhich heve been
so severe thet 211 the wells in my house have beeﬁ
cracked, owing to the bad consiruction of the some, one
of the sntechrumbers being destroyed; znd if, wup to this
4time, no srecter demagze hes been done, it has been for
the want of materisl to destrcy; %here teing no other

~-hrebitztions.®

p. 344 Todey there are but few mementoe of the old regime. A
few of the o0ld =zdobe bulldings have been nreéeserved z% the
prezidio, »nd had been cccunied by our itrcops from the
connuest till the>present. Tithin our thirteen yeers?
knowledge of the garrison, severcl have been removed to
give »lrce to nore comfortetle hatitetions., In the "Cla
Adobe", now siznding on the southerly side of the souere,

heve lived meny zellent officers,
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Engelhart, Fr. Zenhyrin, 0, ¥, Y, — Sen
Frencisco or Mission Dorlores, Chi-
cego. Frenciscen Hersld Press, 162k,

" pe 51 (August 1776) The nlen folloved vas drevm by the first
pilot of the 3an Crrlos, José CeRizores, rnd nrovided for
8 stronghold ninety-two veres or two hundred snd fifty-
three feet sguare, ¥ithin this enclosure were to be
erected of nelisades end reoofed with tules the church,
officers! cuerfers, rarehouse, guerrdhouce, znd the bor-
racks for the soldiers, colonists, end their families,
In order thzt the buildﬁngs mizht be cormleted s soon rs
- pogsible, Cantein Juiros éent over 2 souad of spilors znd
two carnmenters, who, together with the workmen, might con-
struct a good warehouse to receive the suprlies, 2z house
for the commender of the nresidio, and 2 chapel for cele-
brating the holy secrifice of the l'zes while the soldiers

vere tuilding houses for their femilies,

p. 106 (1787) <cuotes Bencroft,...."the gerrison consisted of
thirty-four ren besides the officers,....of the nresidio
buildinge, there is nnthinz to be sa2id beyond the fect
that from vent of timber, Tad cuelity of sdobes, end lack
of gkilful Qorkmen no nermenent nrogress vas mede during
the decade, Some portion of the ralls wes generzlly in

ruins, end the soldiers in gome cases had to erect the
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old-fechioned velisade ctructure to shelter their femilieg, "

p. 110 (1757) <quotes Vencouver's descrintion of the Presidio.

p. 120 (17%€) .....thirty (soldiers ot Presidio). -

v. 120 (1791) .....twenty—eicht (soldiers at Presidio),

p. 1bli-5, 1In July, 1806, Governor Arrilleze reported the build~

irge of the rresidio to be in a sad state. The commancer's
house wes covered with tiles, but not those of the officers,
The berrack hed only hzlf 2 roof, znd was not secure for

the convictis. At Yerbz Buena there weas not even 2 hut for

~the gunners.end the guns were.useless .from exnosure, TFort

Sen Joasuin wes well locsted, but needed renairs, COnly
three of the ten guns were in good coﬁdition. In June cnd
July, 1808, the severest eartheouzkes ever experienced on
the neninsuls visited Sen Prencisco »residio., m July 17,
1808, Arguello wrote to the Jovernor: "I inform you thet
since the 2let nf June theré have been felt at this nre—
sidio eichteen chocks, 2nd some euonz them so violent thrt,
a8 2 result of them, the walls of my house, beiny badly
built, heve teen craclked co thzt one of the rooms wes ruined;
end if the shocks until nov heve done no further demege, it
is becruse they found no cheace for lack of dwellinze",....

In 1210 Ar-uello comolsined thet continuous storms hed



reduced the grenery and the houses of four soldiers to »
woeful state. The old barracks and the other structures,
1ncluding the chapel, the merlons, znd esnlrnade =t Fors
San Jorouin vere entively destroyed., The artillery ter-
recks and cevelry ousrters were in so bad a condition thet

serious eccldents vere to e feared,

p. 194, Rotinscn.....czme in the Brookline.....in 1330.....

writes: ",....7e soon couzht ¢ zlimmse of the low build-
ingze, with their dark tile roofs, resembling nrisons more
than dwellinz houses, znd the residence of our Commendent
was the most cﬁnspicubus srongst them, This was the vre-~
sidio. In i%ts nlen, it is simila; 40 those 2lresdy de-

gcribed, but it is in & most ruinous state., There are 2

few fremed houses scatiered zbout outside the squere, and

2 short distence beyond,....

. 50 Plen of the Presidio. (seme 2s Besncroft v. 1, p. €95).
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Engelhart, Fr. Zeshyrin, 0, ¥, Y, — The
- . missions and missionaries of Jeli-
fornia, (IV, V), 3on Trencicco.
The Jrues ¥, Eorry Coumeny, 191€.

£8

v. II, III, IV (index) consulted, Yo a2dditionrl dota given.

v. II, n. 205 (1776) <Zuotes Paldu's sccount of foundinc of

presidio.

8 it et b e o et i



€9

*  Forbes, lrs. A, 3. C, =~ C-lifornis mis-
gions znd lendmerke; E1 Cerino Real,
(o Put, riven.) Los Anreles, 1925.

4
n. 243-50 Gives Polou =nd Vencouver eccounts.,

p. 250 3S21 wrote thet meny of the'buildings wvere licble to
f2ll 7t e2ny tinme, end thet the church tae in ?‘particu-
lerly nreczrious condition. Mone of the structures were
those originelly bﬁilt, s esch yvear gome of the buildinrzs
hed fellen znd had teen rebuilt in-the seme faulty menner,
it wes necesséry to bring timber-thirty miles and.tule
nine miles, Desnite the zppezl a2nd the evident need for
improvements, 211 the ettentioi end money were spent unon
‘the construction of the Caetillo -Ge -San Jozguin on the
shore, end later on the battery of Yerbe Buena, In 1821
Goverﬁor Sola celled uron the voires through the Prefect
Pzverzs to gend a boat with tirbers and laborers to make
certein repzire et the presidio, The fzthers sent two

bost loads of meterisl, two cerpenters end twelve axmen,

in ¥ey, of the seme year.
p. 246 Officers Club Presidio (Gomendenté's Home) 1920-25.
v. 248 Plen -- sezme as Bancroft,

' s a d
. 249 Drawing —- scme 2s 3oule,
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: Giffen, Helen S, —--"Presidios of Spanish :
California®, in Westways, Automobile
Club of Southern California, v. 29,
No. 6, part 1, June, 1937.

p. 29. On September 17, 1776, under the command of Lieutenant
José’Joaquin Yoraga, the adobe ramparts of the Presidilo
of S8an Francisco were begun, By 1792 its walls were com-
pleted on three sides, being 14 feet high and 3 feet
thick; It was eight years befoxre the fourth wall was
finished, This militery post suffered from wind, weathe:
and earthquakes, the temblor of 1812 wrecking two walls
and damaging the church, In 1835 the San Francisco com-
pany, under General ¥, G. Vallejo, was removed to Sonoma

-and by the following year thevpresidio consisted of noth-
ing but the chapel and one row of buildings, while the
inventory of 1837 showed its defenses to consist of
eight guns of iron, of which three were useless; elght
bronze cannon, one pistol, one machete and a few odds
and ende; It is interesting to note that the present
boundary lines of the presidio are almost the same as
those established by Anza, March 28, 1776. One originsl
edobe building remains---the Officers! Club;
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Guinn, James lliller., -- History of the 91-
st~rte of California ond biorresphi-
cal record of coest counties, Czli-
fornia, Chicrgo., The Chepmen
Publishing Commeny. 1904,

Pe. 71 Vencouver, who visited the presidio in Fovembver, 1792,
describes 1t as & "sgusre eree whose sides were atout two
hundred yerds in length, enclosed by a mud well 2nd re-
sembling a pound for cettle. Above this wall the thazitched
roofs of fhe low srall houses just mede thelr zppearsznce.®
The wall wes "about four%een feet high and five feet in
brezadth and was first formed by upright and horizontal

- rafters of large timber, between which dried sods 2nd
moistened earth were pressed éé close 2nd hard s possitle,
gfter which the whole was cased with-the earth made into

g sort of mud plaster which gezve it the appesrcnce of

durability."

Guinn, Jemes iller. —— History of the
stzte of Californisz end ticgraphi-
cel record of O2kland and environs,
Los Anveles. Historic FRecords Co,
1907. — 3eme coniexts 2s in above
book.
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Hittell, Theodore Henry. —- History of
Czlifornia. Theodore H, Hittell.
S8en Frencisco, 1885-97.

v. 1, p, 401 (July, 1776, At founding, one lieutenant, com—
mending, two corporals, sixteen soldiers, znd seven
settlers #11 with families, excent lieutenant; 2nd =2
nurber of servents znd five muleteers).....immediztely

began erecting huts of brush and tules and a2 cligpel,....

p. 402 (1776, founding).....a Sguare snace of ninety-two veres
or two hurndred and forty-seven and a half feet on esch
side was laid out and nlaces designated in it for church,
head-quarters, store-house, guard-house, barracks and

_houses for the pobladores or settlers. Caflizeres drew 2
plen or mzp of the whole, The work of building houses
immediztely commenced; two carpenteré and a compeany of
sailors from the ship essisted at the labor; and in a
shat time 2 store-~house for the provisions, @ houée for
the comendante and g chepel, all made of palisades of
wood plestered with mud édd thatched with tuies, were con-

structed znd 2lso many of the houses for the soldiers and

femilies.

pe 551 (1793) 'hile Arrillege wes building his fort 2t Sen
Frencisco, he geve s description to the viceroy of the

different nresidios. That of Sen Francisco consisted of
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the housé of the comandante end six others, constructed
of thick edobe and mud walls and roofed with a thetch

of tules, vhich hcd to be renewed every yesr., There vwes
elso & small chepel 2nd 2 few store-houses, built in the
gseme monner end 211 lizble to te desiroved in the course
of 2 single reiny seeson, These formed two sides of the
vpresidio sguare; the other sides were open and entireiy
exposed, excent for the guard-house, which, however, was

g0 badly planned and built thet it afforded no protection,

D. 582-3. Then Cordoba and Alberni, in their surveys for new
- pueblos in the early vart of 1766 examined 3San Francisco,

they found it in very tad condition., The entire militery
establishment consisted of lees thazn 2z dozen sma2ll =zdobe
houées thatched With.tule gnd psrtially surrounded with
2n adobe ta2ll nlastered over with mud. They were 211 ih
2 ruinous state and lizble to te overthrown by every storm;
nor did 2 winter nass without demage to them., Such vas
the Presidio.....06}doba set himself st work to meke such
rensirs and irmrovementes =s were immedictely necessary.
He devoted his sttention first to several sentry boxes,
which he tuilt in place of one'that had veen blomn down
by 2 storm the nreceding Februery. FHe also repesired the

povder-rmagazine, which hed also been injured,

p. 610, During the last eight deys of 1798 and the first
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twenty dsys of 1799, there had teen 2 hurricane of wind '
dnd rein 2t Sen Frencisco, which bezttered dowu the adote
wclls of the fortificctions there; ond in Februsry, 1502,
enother furisus storm et the sazme plece bler of £ roofs
and beat down pelisedes, commleting, so to epezk, the de-
struction of previous years, The ordnence, which had

never been of ruch account, was ruined,
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Hoover, lildred Prooke. -~ Fistoric evots ) 89
. in Celifarnie. Counties of the conmrt
range, Stenford University, Cali-
fornie, London, 1937.

P. 322-3, The site of the Presidio of 3Szn Frencisco was se-

lected by Juen Ernutistz de Anza on llerch 23, 1776. On
June 27, 1776; Lieutenant Joraca and the litile tand of
settlers, which had treveled 211 the wey from 3onoro to
Yonterey with Anze, made termorary corm on the Legunz de
Menentizl, now Eighteenth end Dolores 3Streets. There
they stayed throughout the summer while the Presidio ves
being built, On 3Sentember 17 the Presidio was dedicated
and Yorege took formal vossession in the nezme of the Xing
of Spain,

.The Snenlsh and llexicen governments never supmorted
the Presidio of 32n Frencisco adecuntely, and, consecuently,
it was never well garrieoned, After iS}E reguler troops
were no longer stetioned there, znd by 140 1t wes in
ruins., 3ince the Americen occunetion on July 9, 184,

1% hes been one of the »rincipzsl United Stetes Army reser-
vations on the Pecific Coes%._

The sites of the 0l1ld Snenish Presidio buildinas heve
been marked, A bronze tazblet set in o grenite block wes
pleced by the Cslifornis Chepter, D.A.R., in 1923 ot the
southreet corner of the originel Fresidio wilding, ond
the other three corners vere clso located end meorked by

concrete nosts bearing bronze inscrintions. The only
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building left from the Snanish period 1s the adobe
cdmaq@ante‘é headquarters on the south side of the pareade
ground; This ves the.officers' currters under Srenish,
Yexicen #nd Americen Tule, and is now used as the Of-
ficers! Club House, Four 0ld Swenish cennon, dated es8

early =8 1673, stend in front of this building.
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. Lengsdorff, G. ¥., von, —— Vovoreg ond trovels
in verious verts of the vorld during
the vears 1803, 180k, 1805, 1 406 and

1307, Bert II. London. nrinted for
Henry Colburn. 151k,

(Frem on Inzlieh tre sle*ioﬂ by Thores
C. Russell, 3Jen Frrncisco, Celiforniz.)
The privete nress of Thom-s C Russell,
1927,

P. 40 {1906) The vhole estzblishment of (the Presidio de)

S9san Francisco exiternslly hes the look of 2 Germen farm-
stead., Its low one-story tuildings surround 2 somewhet
lonz quadranzuler court. The house of the comendante

is smell end meen. A whitewashed room, held of the floor
of which was covered with strew matting, hed but little
furniture, znd that of en inferior guality. The furnished

-<half -serwed-as.a..recention. room.

p. 26, X1 Presidio De 3an Francisco (original drawings

by en unidentified ertist, and engraved on copper, etched
on copper——-private press of T. C. Fussell, Orn Froncisce.)
(Explznation on p. 36 regarding this photograph as fol-
lovs:) This is-the first view of any »art of Zzn Frencisco.
The boat in the foreground is made of tules tied together,
end is the worlr of the Indiens ond used by them, The

group of higﬁ hills in the distence erbrzce the two veaks
crlled by the Openlerds Los Pechos de la Choca (the brezsis
of the Choce), but now cclled the Twin Peaks, The road

running tomqrdq +he shore lesde to E1 Pozo &e los ‘arineros

(the deep vater of the meriners, i.e., enchoring-ground),

e i o ———ma e R e VSO,
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now called the Presidio Hertor, prokebly the nlece vhere
thé San Cerlos enchored in the lzte évening of Saturday,
Ausust 5, 1775, the first ship to pess through the stroit
now known 2g the Golden Grzte. This novw historic plete
was evidently not deemed worthy of re-engraving for the
first English'trenslation of Lengsdorff's Voyeges ond

Travels.
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The Lewis Publishinz Commeny (Author's
r.ere not given), — The Btey of Zon
Prencisco, @ history. Chicago.

The Lewis Pubtlisghing Commeny, 1392,

pe 159 (1776-86) 1In Sen Frencisco, during the first ten yvears
of the Presidio's existence; no imorovements were mede
in the tuildinge. The walls being in 2 ruinous condition,
the soldiers often had to erect pzlisade struciures for

their families.

p. 201 In 18thk had rebuilt (in Portsmouth Plaze) a custom
house or receptor{é, at the cost of £2,800.C0.....The

.materiecls ceme from the ruins of the Presidio.
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Ushr, Autust C. —-- The visit of the "Rurik" 133
. to Zrn Troncisco in 12165 IV Choris!
descrintion of %en Frencisco, 3Stenford
University, Crlifornie: Stanford Uni-~
versity rresc, 1932,

P. 259. The presidio of San Frezncisco is zbout one merine

cen

wile from the fert znd on the seme side; it is spurre in

form and hes two gates which are constantly guarded by s

considereble conpany of men, The buildings have windows

on the side toverds the interior court only, The nresidic
is occupied by ninety 3seonish soldiers, 2 commendant, 2

lieutensnt, 2 commissary, and s sergeant, !‘ost of these

.are merried.

v.- 90 (Plzte II-b) View of the Presidio of Sen Francisco

in 1316, (drewing)
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¥enzies, Archibald (naturslist on the 101

- "Discovery" with Cerntein Veancou-

ver, 1790-94) —- Yenzies' Crli-
fornies Journel, edited by Alice
Ergtwood, 3Sen Froncisco. Ccli-
fornie Historicel Society Cuerterly
v. II, ¥o. ¥, Jenusry, 1929.

p. 265 (Fovember, 1792.) (¥e entered) through s breech in the

Wall, which might poessibly be intended or léft unfinished
for a2 Gate,....0ccunied 2 souare space of ground sbout
four hundred yvzrds on each side, walled in on three sides
with Turf or lortor Vell of twelve or fourteen feet high
and rudely fenced in on the other or esstern side with
2 dezd hedge. The Vazlled part is lined on the iﬁside
with e row of shabby mean houses irregularly built of
the seme materiels and thatched with coarse long gress
#nd bulrushes, 2s Habitations and Store-houses for the
Soldiers 2znd their Femilies who were zbout thirty-six
in pumber under the commend of the Governor =s Comiendent
znd a Serjeant, The Commandent's own dwglling could herdly
be distinguished from the rest $ill we got on the inside
of it,'and‘then the friendly treszt znd hearty welcome we
received from his Ledy end Family made azmmle recompense
for the poverty of its exterior apnearance.

AThe Houses and Wall of the Presidio were built of
Turf end Yortaer in the form of lorge bricks worked up and
inéorpor?ted with straw or graes ond ofterwsrds dried in

the sun %ill they beceme hzrd end enveared to be durable,



102
_ We 82w noe guns or 2rtillery of eny kind if we ex-
cept & shattered one that lay before the entrence of the

Gerrison.

A et 8 Gt B S it 2 et e - ® P




103

: /

Pelou, Frey Frencisco. —- Life of the Ven-—
ercble Prdre Frey Juninero Serra (ck. 45
--The founding of the nresidio ond
mission of Cur Fether 3aint Frencis)
1737. WYewly trensleated by George ¥zre
Dene, Sen Frazncisco, Crclifornis Fis—
torical Society guarterly v. XIV, 3935.

p. 105 (1776) With the aid of the sailors whom the master
of the ship divided between the Presidio and the Missionm,
two structures were built =zt the Presidio, one for =z
chepel and znother for s storeroom for provisions, esnd
"at the llission one likewise for a chapel and znother di-
vided into living cuarters for the Fethers, The soldiers
made thelr owvm houses 2% the Presidio end at the Mission

s well, 211 of wood fith roofs of tule thetch.
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Purdy, Felen Throon. -— 9a2n Francisco zs
it wes, es it is, 2nd how to see it,
Sen Frencisco. P. Elder & Compeny,
1912,

p. 92 (Beeching 1£26) A visit to the Presidio in 1825 is

thus described: "The Governor's szbode stood in a corner

of the Presidio and formed one end of a row, of vwhich

- the other weas occupied by 2 chepel., The opposite side
was broken down znd little better then a2 hean of rubbish
end bones on which jeckals and vultures gnd dogs were

' constently preving. The other iwo sides of the guad-

rengle contzined storehouses, zrtificers! shops, znd the

" Jeil, 211 built in the humblest style, with bedly burned

bricks, and roofed with tiles, Whether viewed at a dis-

tence or nesr, the establishment impressed the spectator

with any other gentiment than thzt of its being 2 rlace
of zuthority and, but for the tottering flzgstaff uoon

vhich was occasionelly displayed the tri-colored flag of
Eekico, three rusty field nieces, end a2 half-zccoutered

sentinel prrading the gatewey, 2 visitor would be ignor-

ant of the imnortance of the place."
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Rezéhov, Iikolai Petrovich. — The Rezée
. - nov voyvege to Mueve Celifornie in
: 1806, 3an Frencisco. The Private
Press of Thomes C. Russell, 1926,

p. 101 (1792) ruotes Vancouver's account.

p. 102 (18068) .....Lengsdorff, in describinz his first vieit
to thé Arcliello fomily with Rezenov, says thet the whole
esteblishment =t 3an Frencisco hed the zanpearance of a
German farmstead, with low one-story houses inclosing a’
somewhat'long duadrangulcr yverd., The house of the coman-
dante ves small end mean. A whitewashed room, scantily
furnished with but 1ittle furnitufe, end thet »oor, had

~<half- its floor-space-covered - -with-strow -metting, this helf
serving for recention purposes. Lengsdorff notes the sur-
prise of the Russians when e rich service of silver wes
used 2t the dinner-table,

In the Trranscctions of the Zeogrsmhicel Society of
the Pecific (vol. X, ser. 2, 1907), Zeorge Davideon tells
the Presidio's size as given by Fr, Frencisco Peldﬁ,———

2 scuare of ninetv-two veras esch side; 2bout two hundred
end fifty-tvo feet, or smaller then the estimete of Ven-
couver (ahoﬁt tvo hundred vards)., Ye sunnoses the s~uare
ras enlsroed tetveen 1776 end 1792. A »len of the Presidio
es it stood in 1820 is described by Davidsdn, “madé," he

seys, "to show the effects of the grest earthouske of 1512,



The plen is # rectancle, in the rronortion of 108
eleven north znd south and ten east and west; the whole
arrenzenent 1is built to fece north; the chapel 2t the
south or hicher end of the narsde~zround, extendincg into
the sruere 2nd beyond the wall; emst of the chepel, the
ourrters of the comendante, and on the west those of the
officers; the cuertel, near the northeast entrence, the
calabozo at the east side of the entrance, the zuerdhouse
on the west side, All the buildings were zbout ten feet
from the inner sides of the walls, and were twenty-five
feet deep. Around the whole parade-ground was a line of
‘trees, with the flagpole near the center, The plan also
indicates the Pozo de los Mferineros, or anchorage; the
'"ﬁojo de agua," or El Polin, and the houses of ilarcos
Briones y liremontes, bevond the southeast zngle,

Otto .von Kotzebue, on his first ioyege,'visited the
Presidio on October 4, 1816, end wes received at the gate
by the couzndante, Don Luis -rgﬁello. He szys he found
it es Vencouver described it., This is not satisfying,
tut Adelbert von Chenmisso, %he naturelist of the expedivion,
does betier. Ez saye the Presidio is rew-built with stone
end covered with tiles, tut the building of the chznel had
not vet been tequn. Tiled roofs were nrotedly in evidence,

bui Chremiszo rust heve been wisteken s to "stone Luildinse.”

]

=

. .
Xotzebue, on his cemnd voysze, orrived 2% Sen Fren-~

cisco on Sentember 27, 1324k, The Mexicen colors were now



waving over Fugrté de 3an Joaquii; California, no longer
e provincis of llueva Espaﬁé, was now a2 territorio of the
fepublic of Yexico; 2 soldier wes sent from the casiills
to beg from Kotzebue enouzh rowder to ensvwer his saluse.

g
Don Ignecio llartinez was not comandente a2t the Presidio,

107

but wes 2tcent; Don Luis Antonio Arglello wes now governa-—

dor, end resided =t Ilanterey, Kotzebue visited the Pre-
sidio, znd seys that it wes in the scme state as on his
firszt vigit, |

Captein Frederick ¥, Zeechey visited Crlifornia in
1826, in the Blossom. His description of California cc-

cupies two chepters of the second volume of his Farrative

.{London, 1331). Visiting the Presidio in lovexber, he was

' Cd
vell received end entertesined by Don Ignacio Martinez,
the comcndente, whose atode, he seys, ves in one corner,

forming one end of 2 row, the other end being occunied

€ .
by a chepel, The opposite cide was broken domwn, end 1little

better then 2 hesp of rubbish and tones, on vhich jackels

(coyotes), dogs, and vultures were constently wnreying.,

Storehouses, artificers' shopes 2nd the jell, comosed the

other two sides of the guadrangle. All were built in the
humbleét style with bedly burnt brickes, and roofgd with
tiles, The chapel and the comandante's house were dis-
tinguicshed b& weing whitewashed, A near vier or one from
a distence, intimztes Eeechey, irprecsses a spectetor with
eny other sentiment then that of its being o place of

suthority.
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The history of the Presidio de San Frencisco has
never been written. As constructed in 1776-77, neither
the walls nor the Tuildings remained intszct sfter the
gecond winter, By the time Vancouver arrived, nrotably
nothing remained of the originel construction. The Te-
marks of foreign visitors chronicle changing conditions,
the work of eartheouczkes, of wind end rsin storms. o
attempts to repair or reconstrﬁct resulted in snything
permenent, The little that does remzin bears the un--
mistakezble marks of the destroying anzel, the irrepres-
sible znd inexterminable vendal, the destroyer at cnce
of art #nd of the art nreservative of arts, May the

Indisn's "good father szt Vashington" come to the rescue,

108
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Richmen, Irving Rerdine. —— Celifornia
under Spain and llexico. 1535-1847,
Boston »nd I'evw York. FHoughton
1iff1in Compeny, 1911.

p. 286. Finelly, Sen Frencisco, vhich in 1825 had es 2 Pre-
sidio "120 houses znd o church,".....At 3en Frencisco
(1776), where !ission ond Presidio were sensrate, the
space for the latter was 92 yerds soquare, and the wells
wvere of pveligszdes.....By the energy of Feve, in 1778,
the nelisades of Sen Frezncisco were replaced by.edobes.
esessIn resnect to dwellings, Presidio and pueblo were

Aarchitecturally alike: single-story =dobes, with white-
washed wells and roofs of asvhaltum, or red tiles, but

~Gith..small harred windows end without gardens,

109
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Rider, Tremant, (Cnrriled by F, T. Cooper)
Rider's Crlifornia, z suide-book for
trovelers, I"ew York. The l'rcmillen
Commeny, 1927. - 110

P. 87-9. The Presgidio, vhich conteins neerly 2,000 scres, althougﬁ
not under the jurisdiction of the municipel suthorities, may
be properly regrrded as & part of 3Szn Frenciscols perk system,
The Federzl Governwment has done wuch to meke it attreciive, eond
has shom 2 disnogition to increszce its exvenditures for that ‘
purp&se. The Presidio is transversed by excellently built end
well-maintzined roesds, which are connected with those of the
city, 2nd the driveway, which ewbraces views of the Golden
Gate, the pay, the ocezn, and lerge'parts of 3an Frencisco, is
unrivezled in attractiveness by sny toulevard in America,

The Presidio of a government reservetion snd headquarters
of.the U, 3. Army, 9th Corps area, znd it occunies the extreme
¥.%, section of the city overlooking the Golden Gate,

The Presidio is open to the public and is practically
included zwonz Sen Francisco's populesr drives. Historically
it is immortont s werking the officiel tirth-plece of San
Frencisco.

The Presidio reservetion dates from l'arch 28, 1776, when
Lieuténent Colonel Jusn Rrutisté de Anze ereccted 2 cross on
Foar t Point, +hich he nemed "Puﬁta del Centil Blenco" (Point
of the eheep white rock): ond ordered = fort to be built on
-the noint 2nd the Preesidio wunder chelter of the hill., 1In
Aurust the firct Luildinzs were erected under Lieutencnt Jose”
Jopeuln llorega,

The festivel of the stliawete of St., Frencis, took formal

posgession in the nrme of the King of Spain. In Cctober 1777



Fether Junipero 3erra paid his first vieit to Sen frencisco Iétl
end looking won the waters of the Golden Gate said: "Thanks
be to Jod, now hes St. Frencls, with the Holy Cross of the
procession 6f the "lesions rrrived ot the end of the Continens
of Celifornir, for to get any ferther it vill be necessary to
teke the vaters." | _

As in el1l preeidios under Spenish lew, the ares of the
reservetion ecucsled e‘squsre of 7,000 or 1,362& ecres, The
Presidio nrorver, or enclosed zrez, wes a saurre of sbout 200
yerds, surrounded by a 1k foot zdobe wall, Then the Enclish
exnlorer, Vancouver, visited the Presidio in 1792, this wall
was still unfinished, znd his descrintion of one entire side,
indifferently fencealxme end there by bhushes, meas resgented by
the Spenish governor Arrillega, vwho reprimendéd the Comendeonte
for ellowing a foréigner to see the delenseless state of the
post. The fort ordered by .Anza ves finelly built in 1794 end
the well finished in 1800, but the earthguske of 1512 threw
domn o lzrge nert of it, elso wreckins the chepel and severel
-other buildinzs. The gerrison of the 3an Frenciscs Presidio
nurkered epnroximetely £0 wen dotm to 1830, vhen it vas reduced:
and after 1835 the rezulecr troops were withdrawn, 2nd the Pre-
gldio #nd fort sllowed to f#ll into deczy.

After the 2mericen occunetion & reservetion meny times
lsarger then the oid Presidio, wac leid out by order bf Colonel
ﬁeson, comnrisiﬂg 10,000 escres and including the W, helf of
what is now Golden Jnte Park. This nroved to be so reedlessly
larpge that ¢ joint commission of navy 2nd crmy enzineers weas
eppointed to define new bounderies, Yeanvhile thé ~overnment'ts

title was disputed by Thomas 0, Lerkin, former Consul % llonterey,

2
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vho cleimed tvo lercues of lend including the Presidio under

e deed grented by Plo Pico, la§t Texicen covernor, It recuired
long litization to cleer title znd 2 year's work by the corm-
mission to rezlore the reservetion to its original bounderies,

The present Presidio confirmed by executive order of Presi-
dent Fillrmore, Decewber 31, 1851, is nrzcticrlly identicél vith
the old 3nenish reservotion, with the excention of €0 ft., cut
from the enstern frontrce for a city street by act of Concress
in 1876.

Following the mein drive f. from the car terminal ve pasé
on R. the Letter&an General Hospital, 2t time of erection the
most extensive militery hoenitzl in the United Stetes, A fer
rods ferther on L,, is the parzde ground occunving the site
of the old Spenish Presidio although no trace remains of the
.gdobe.wall, .vhich once .surrcunded it. In Vancouver'ls-.day the
sides of this souere aree were about 200 yards long and re—
sembled 2 pound for cattle, '

_ Abvove the wall the thriched roofs of their low small houses
just mede their apnearence,

. The vhole eTrenzment 1s built to fsce the north, the chepel
was 2t the couth or hirher end of the nezrade ground 2nd extencded
into the sqguere ond Tevond the vell, ©On the ezst side of the
chapel were the cucrters of the Comendante on %he west side
those of the officers.

The Cucrtel (currier) weas nesr the northeesst esncle, the
"Golzbozo" (joil) at east cide of entrence, the guard house on
the vest, Around the whole perade ground was a line of trees,

The Comendente Headguarters, the only csurviving landmark

of 3panish rule, still stends on the 3. side of the scuere and

> ' )
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is occupled ty the army Cfficers! Club, On the B. of entronce 113
door is 2 tronze toblet inceribed: "Presicdio of S, ¥, Comrne
dente Headgquarters A,D, 1776"- Officers cuarters under Speanish,
tlexicen ond dmericen rule and the oldest adobe tuilding in 3an
Francisco,

In 1206 the Coucndente was Don Jose Arziello, fothes of

Dofia leria Conceacicn Arziello, whose trazic story hes bteen
relzted Ly Zret Feorte in verse znd by Gertrude Atherton in her
novel "Rezonov®, In this old 2dobe house Count Rezonov, Chrrber-
lain of the Rusgian Czar, met znd won the love of Dolz Concep-
cior. After some opnosition, due to religious differences, the
Arﬁue1lo frrmily consented to 2 betrothal, tut the Czar’s sznc—
tion had st1ll to be obtzined, znd Rezanov impetiently sailed
restwerd, promicing an early return, Yeazrs passed znd the girl
84111 -wsited, but.nothing was ever heard from_ her lover until

lonz efterward., An Znglishman, Sir George Si irmson, brought the

news thet Rezenov hed Teen killed on his way home vhile cross-—

~ing Siberia, Dofia Concencion entered the Dominicen Convent

of 3t. Catherine =% l‘onterey, ¢évinz in 1857 at Eenicia,

Four zncient Spanish'guns, two in front of the clubhouse
znd two frrther V. foce the Dereﬁe,sround. ™e oldest two rre
ated: Liwve, Peru, 167%. Teor the 3.V, corner of the narade

zround is the site of the house occunied Yy Jeneral Pershing

‘end nhis frmily from the £211 of 1913, vhen he ook comrend of

the &th Cevelry Brigade, to JAugust 15, 19215, rhen the house

.

Vexi-

vas desiroved by fire, during the 3Jeneral's cbsence on the
cen border, snd his vife ond three druchters were turned to death.

At Fort Point, ore mile .¥W, from the perade jround, Oover—



looking the nerrovest point of the Jolden Gete, is Fort Vin- 114
field 3cott, erected in 1854-€7 ot 2 cost of ©2,000,000, Richsrd
H. Dan;, who saw it in 1839, describes ii a8 "very expensive rcnd

of the lotest siyle.” Z

[N

Tort Point, inzals ®Punte del Cantil 2lrnco’, wrs originclly
2 promdntory of sercentine rock, rising 100 feet zbove high
weter. The fort built here in 1794 =nd neomed "Castillo de Ion
Joacuin" was a huge adobe horseshoe, meésuring 125 x 105 feet
and was exmed with 2 cross cennon sent from San Blas on July
L, 134€, Fremont vith trvelve men crazsed from Jsuselito in 2
lzunch ~nd sniked thece guns; mithout ovvoscition, since the
fort.was deserted. In 1854 the nromontory wees leveled to the
waterls edge to mcke way for Fort Zcott, which wes built in
nert from the demolished ruins of the older fort., -

Headquaiters of the divisiqn of the Pacific ves removed
in 1951 to Benicia, btut wes returned to Son Frencisco in 1857
znd has remainéd here ever since. Among the distinguished
soldiers vho heve held commend in Celifornie are included:

" Alvert Sidnéy Johnston, Fdwin Y, Sunmmer, Zeorge Vricht, Irvin
}'cDovell, Henry V. Felleck, Ceorge H. Thomas, George I'. 3cho-—
field, 0, 0. Hoverd, znd Nelson A, Miles.

On the 3, side of the Presidio is the U, 3. lerine Hoes-
pitel freiny e smell body of water called l'ountain Lezke, the
Lezunz de Presidio of Snanish tines, F%om this Lzke, Lobos
Creek nered by inza "irrovo del Puerto," flows down to the
ocecn 8t Brker'!ds Zeach. In early deys the flow was seid to be
gufficient to drive 2 mill, 2rd in 1855 it beceme the source

of S2n Frencicco's veter supnly, brought bty o flume over 2 hizh
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trestle clonT the north shore ~nd over Blrck oint. Eest of 115
'ountein Leke sre the Presidio G0lf Links (membership over 5CO0),
edjoininc the Presidio on 3, i3 Tountain Lrzke Pork (19 acres)

end Tunnings 3. betreen Funston ond 1bth Avenue, is the Presicdio

Parkwey, ¢ fine modern boulevard, one mile in length, forming

2 connecting lin% vith Solden 3ete Pork,



116
Roguefeull, ', Cemille D. -- A voyace
", round the world, between the vesrs
1816-1819, Londan: printed for
3ir Richerd Phillips and Co.,

1823,

p. 26 (12816) On the 10th, with most of the officers of the
- crew, I zitended divine service a2t the presidio, wﬁich
wes nerformed in 2 grest hall, till the church, which
had been turnt, should be rebuilt; this chapel, which wes
vwhite-washed and neatly kepnt, bad en eltar in pretty good

taste, some pictures, and benches on the sides,
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- Senchez, Yellle Van de Grift. — Celifor-
nia end Celifornians; the Spenish
veried. (v, 1 of 5 v.) Chicago,
The lewis Putlishing Corpeny, 1926,

v. 1, p. 225, The fortresses consisted of souesre enclosures

surrounded ty 2 ditch end rampért of esrth or brick,

wvithin wvhich wefe the church, cuerters for the ofiicers
znd sgoldiers, settlers! houses, storehouses, workshops,
wells, and cisterns, Cutside were croured 2 few houses,
end 2t a2 little distance was the ¥ing's form (El Rencho

del Rey), which furnished pessturage for the horses end

‘mules of the gerrison,
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Soule, Frank, Gihon, Joha H. ¥, D., ond

Xisbtet, James, -~ The annals of Szn
Frencisco. New York, 1855.

‘Pe 71 (The presidios) were tuilt in the form of = squere of
gbout three hundred feet on each side, surrounded by a
wall twelve feet high, made of zdobves, and most of tﬁem
sre now little better then 2 confuczed heap of dried mud,
ranidly crumblinz into dust. Within these bounds were
included the commendante's house, barrzcks for the troovs,

s church, store-houses, snd various other buildings.
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Stodderd, Chorles VWerren, — In the foot-

prints of the nadres. San Francisco.-
A, ¥, Rotertson, 1902,

oop. p. 114, Yo 2dditionezl information, but one old photo-
creph of the distent view of the Presidio tcken in 1856

from Bleck Point,
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Vancouver, Centzin leorsme, — Szn Fron- 120
- . cisco in 1792; Yerbe Ruens Cove, the )
mission end the nresidio of 3sn
Frencisco. Celifornis. Tistorical
Society Qurrterly, V. XIV, 1935,

p. 11415 (1792) Ve rode up to the presidio, zn ewmellation
given to their military establishrents in this country,

end signifying 2 -gefe susrd.....Its well, which fronted

the harbor, wes visible from the ships; btut instesd. of a
city or towvn, vwhose lights we had so anziously laooked
for on the night of our errivel, we were conducted int&
a,spacious verdent plszin; surrounded by hills on every
-side, excenting thet which fronted the port. The only
object vwhich presented itself, wes a2 sgusre area, whose
sides ﬁere 2bout two hundred yerds in length, enclesed
by e rmud well, znd resembling 2 nound for cettle, Above
this w2ll the thetched roofs of their loﬁ smzll houses
just made their sppesrance. On entering the Presidio,
we found one of its sides still uninclosed by the wall,
and very indifferently fenced in by a few bushes here 2nd.
there, fostened to stekes in the groond. The unfinished
stzte of this nart, afforded us an orportunity of seeing
the strencth of the well, and the menner in which it wes
constructed., It is sbout fourteen feet high, end five in
breedth, end wes first formed by uprights and horizontel
refters of lerge timber, btetween which dried eods end

moistened earth were pressed as closge and as. hard as
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possible; after which the whole wes ceased with the eerth 2’
nmede into 2 sort of mud nlaster, vhich ceve it the eppeor-
ance of dbrezbility, znd of being sufficlently strong to
vrotect them, with the assistezrce of ftheir firearms,
against all the force which the netives of the country
might be able to collect,

The Svanish soldiers composing the gerrison amounted,
T understood, to thirty-five; who, with their vives,
femilies, 2nd 2 few Indien servents, comnosed the whole
of thé inhebitants, Their houses were along the wall,
- within the scﬁare, end their fronts uniformly extended
the sgme distance into the eres, which is 2 clear open
space, without buildings or other interruptions., The
only entrence into it, is by 2 large geteway; facing
which, 2nd ageinst the cenfre of the ovposite wzll or
side, is the church; vhich, though smell, was reat in
comperison to the rest of the buildinzs., This orojects
further into the scuere than the houses, and is dis-
tinguisheble from the other edifices, by being white-
washed with lime made from sea-shells; as there has not
~ yet been zny lime-stone or calcsreous earth discovered
in the neighborhood., Cn the left of the churcﬁ, is the
commendent}s house, consisting, I believe, of two roonc-
end closet only, which are divided by messy walls, simi-
lar to thet vhich encloses the scuare, znd communiccbing

with each other by very small doors. Between these anert-



ments and the outward well was an excellent noultry house

;ﬁd yerd, rhich seemed nretiy wellvstocked; 2nd between
the roof 2nd ceilings oi the rooms was 2 kind of lumber
garret: These were 21l the conveniences the hebitation
seemed celculzted to 2fford. The rest of the houses,
though smaller, were fashioned exectly =fter the séme men—
ner; end in the winter, or rainy sezsons rmust at the best
be very uncomfortable dwellings. For though the walls
ere 2 sufficient security zgainst the inclemency of the
vezther, vet the windows, which ere cut in the front
wail, end look into the square, are destitute of gless,
or zny other deiense that does not 2t the séme time exclude
the licht.

The apartment in the commandant's housé, into which

we were ushered, was zbout thirty feet long, fourteen feel
broad, znd twelve.feet high; end the other room, or chzm-
ﬁer, I judged to-be of the scme dimensions, excepting in '
its length, vhich epresred to be sémewhat less. The
floor wes of the native soil raised 2bout three Ifeet .
from its originél level, without being boarded, paved,
or even reduced to an even surfaece; the roof was covered
in flegs and rushes, the walls>on the insiﬁe had once
been vhite-weshed; the furniture consisted of 2 very sn~Ir-
inz essortment of the mosd indisvensable articles, of the
rudest fashion, z2nd of the mesnest kind; end 111 accorded
with the idezs we had conceived of the sumptuous manner in

which the 3nanizrds live on this side of the globe.....

2



Wilkes, Charles, Comdr., U.S.N, — Narro- 123
tive of the United Strtes Exnloring
Expedition., Philecdelpnia: Lea & Y
A Blenchard. 1845, v, 5,

v. 5, p. 151 After pessing through the entrance, we were

scercely-eble to distinguish the Presidio; and had it
not been for its solitary flag-steff, we could not have
escertained ite situation. From this steff no fleg
floated; the tuilding was deserted, the walls had fallen
to decay, the guns were dismounted, znd everything sround
it lay in quiet. e were not even saluted by the sten-
torian lungs of some soldier, so customery in Spaniéh .
A places, even zfter 211 politicazl power as well zs mili-
tzry end civil rule hes fled, I afterwerds lesrned thet
the Presidio was s5till 2 garrison in nesme, -end-that it
héd not been wholly 2bandoned; tut the remmant of the -
troops stetioned there consisted of no more than an
officer znd one soldier, I was not zble to learn the
renk of the former, azs he was a2bsent, and apneared, =t

least zmong the foreigners, to be little known.
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Young, John P, == San Frencisco. The S.
J. Clark Publishings Compmeny. 3an
Francisco. Chicagzo, 1912, V, 1,

v. 1, p. 118, The I!ission ond Presidio were widely senzrated

in Zen Francisco. The latter was a2t first consiructed

2]

of palicedes, but these vere renlaced by adobe walis in
1778. 1t is cuite certain when the presidio buildings
were erected. There was no longer any fear of Indian up-
risings, but the originel stvle of single-story, vhite-
washed =dobee, with roofs of red tiles seen in other
varts of the provinée, wes adhered to by the builders,
and sixty vears later the seme style of construction
was still nursued, Richerdson tuilt zn zdobe house on
_what .1s now Dupont 3treet (3Grznt Avenue) west of Ports-
mouth Scuare and 2 widow nemed Jusna Briones caused zn-
other to be erected on the snot thet is now the corner

of Powell &nd Filbert 3treets.



P

Hutching's California Magazine, v. III, 1235
Fo, 12, June, 1859, '

Pe 537. The original buildings were comstructed in a quad-
rengular form; these having fallen into decay, but
three remain, two of which at the present are used as
atorérooms. At the close of the war, thie post was
occupled by a company of dragoons, who were relleved
by a company of the 3rd Artillery, under Capt, Keyes,
who reported continuously for ten years; Its present
garrison consists of two companies of the 6th Infantry,

numbering sbout 180 officers and men. (1859)
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MAPS, PLANS, AND DRAWINGS
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lotes written immediately below the trocing of fhe Presidio

¢

Scele vhich shows the hzbitations of -the Presidio deé Sen Fren-~
cisco:

'l; The Gu~rd12--tpe Sentry «tﬂtlon, has length 6 yerds,
viath LY ena 23 of height.

2. Cuarue ( -rreks), lenzth 16 yards, height 3% and
Vldth 20

3. e§q I, Prison-cells, 2 ysrds height, 2 length and
1 width,

5. 3tore of clothes, 18 yrrds length, Y height and 6
vidth.
6, Provisions etore, ¥ " " ® " “on

7. =nd &, Housec_of the Commendent, 3 T yards length,
6 width znd K heimht. :

. .9. .Serzeenti's. house. )
10, Chuxrch; 19 yerds length, & width end I height,
(1) II. Slsuchter houee, 4 verds in scuere znd 2% height
Habitetions of troops from (a2) to (k)
(Copy déresm from the origi inel)
The rest thet relstes to this building is copied in
the folloving neges)

(2)

I Turker IT is not indiceted in the trzcing
Fest is net cleerly written
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Map of Presidio, 1792, Drawn end modified by
Hubert Howe Bancroft, ‘
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Sal, Informes sobre los I'dificios de Sen Francisco, 1792,1S.
1, Commendent's house, U roows ond yerd, 37 x 6 vares, of adobes,
2. Serieant's house, of stone, without mortar. 3. Chapel 19 z 6 varas.
4, Borrecks, gusrd-~house, =nd csalebooses, or adobe and stones, 5,6.
Barehousen for food end clothing, of stones end nud, The other strue~
tures arc the goldiers! dwellings,
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Apparently based on Sal's map of 1792, but modified,
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the 0fficars?® Clube.)

Apparenfly based on Bancroft,
Thirtieth Infantry, Presidio,
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- PLAY OF 3.1 FRACISCO PRIZIDI0, 1792
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, 1 - Cozmancant's Mouse, 4 roomg and yaxd, 111 x 18 ri., of acots.
i 2 - Se"“ean'cs' Fouse, 0f stoune witheus ZorLar.
3 « Chavel BT x 24 Fl.
i L - Barrac';cs, gaord house and jsily of 2ddbe and "‘"fwe.
3 A ke P &g orve,
5 & 6 - Storghuuse zor to0d andé clothing; of stons and 1my Remaini rg’; st Uy es.,
soldfers! dmollings. {NOTE: Yo. 1, Ucrrandanttc Ho Se is on ire l,.e.,em sit

From Historical Section,
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PART IV

S¥ETCHES, BTEEL ENGRAVINGS, WOODCUTS

-

" PHOTOGRAPHS,
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ETCHED on COPPER — PRIVATE PRESS of T, C. RUSSELL, SAN FRANC’

AN FRANCISCO

EL PRESIDIO DE §

ORIGINAL DRAWING by an UNIDENTIFIED ARTIST, and ENGRAVED ON COPPER
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PART V

SOURCES AND BIEBLIOGRAPHY



7.
8.

9.
10,
11,
12.
13.
1k,
15.
16,
17.

18,
19.
20.

21.

SOURCES OF MATERIAL

University of California, Bancroft Library.
University of Californis, Department of Agronomy.
Public Librarﬁ, City of 8an FranciscCoOe.

Mechanicse! Institute and Librarye.

public Library, City of Oakland.

Glerk's Office, U. S. District Court, Southern Division
of Northern District, California.

Lew Lidbrary, City and County of San Franocisco.

Law Library, Supreme Court, State of California (at
San Francisco).

Law Library, Circuit Court of Appeals, Federal Govern~-
ment (at San Francisco).

Californis Historical Society.
San Francisco Museum, Golden Gate Parke.

Ninth Grop Aresn Héadquarters, U. S. Army. -

phirtleth Infantry Headgquarters, U. S. Army.

Post Quartermaster and hig assistants, Presidio of
San Francisco.

The Presidio Library.

San Francisco College for Women, Library (Msgr. Gleason
Collection).

City of San Francisco, vater Department (Spring Valley
Water Company Archives),

Federal Writers! Project, w.P.A., San Francisco Headguarters,
v American Guide", W.P.A., 9an Francisco Headquarters,

Historical Records Survey Projecf, w.P.A., State Head--
gquarters, San Francisco,

Higtorical Records Survey, San Francisco District,

7



22; Oalifornia State Automobile Association,

23 Private Sources.



AUTHORITIES AND WORKS CONSULTED 57

A BIBLIOGRAPHICAL AIDS:

1.

COWAN, ROBERT ERNEST and COWAN, ROBERT GRANNISS
2~ A bibliography of the history of Cali-
fornia, 1510-1930. 3v. San Francisco, 1933.

B MANUSCRIPTS:

I"’A 1 ..
I"B"l 2 .

I-0 4,

I-‘D 5 .
I—D—-2 6 .
I-E Te

The Founding of the Presidio of San Francisco,
The Presidio of San Francisco;

tArmy's Finest Club Building--Restoration of the
Officers' Club at the Presidio of San Fran-
cisco", by Cept, B. L. leeden, Q.M. C.y In
. THE QUARTERMABTER REVIEW, Nov.-DeC., 1934,

Descriptive Report of Presidio in 1792 by
Hermenegildo Sal, Commsndante, Tr. by
Mother Dolores Sarre, San Francisco College
for Women,

# American Guide", San Francisco Presidio, Calil-
fornia Division, Federal Writers' Project,
WePele .Resesrch material-obtained -frou
files thereof.

W pAmericen Guide", San Francisco and Presidio,
Galifornis Division, Federal Writers' Project,
w.P.A, Research material obtained from
files thereof.

Federsl Writers! Project, W.P.A., Sen Francisco
Headguarters. Research data.

. Muybridge, Edward.J. —~ The flying studio:

Photograph studies. Photographs of San
Francisco,

¢ PERIODICALS AXD NEWSPAPERS:

1.

2.

CALIFORHIA STAR (THE) Descriptive editorisl of
Yerba Buena (San Francisco). Jen. 30, 1847,

DAVIDSON, GEORGE —- Presidio of San Francisco, in

TRANSACTIONS OF THE GEOGRAPHICAL SOCIETY OF
THE PACIFIC, v. 1V, ser. 1907.

—1—



3.

9.

10,

11,

12,

13,

. 158

DUHAUT-CILLY, . — A voyage autour du monde,

principalcment a la Californie et aux, Iles

Ssndwich pendant les annees 1826, 1827, 1828,

et 1829, Paris, chez Arthus Pertrand,

libraire, 1834, Tr. from the French by

Charles Franklin Carter in CALIFORNIA HIS-

TORICAL SOCIETY QUARTERLY, v, X111, 1929.

ELLIOTT, GEORGE H. —- The Presidio of San Fran-
cisco, in OVERLAKD MONTHLY, 1V, April 1870,

GIFFEN, HELEN — Presidios of Spenish California,
43 WESTVAYS, AUTOUOBILE CLUB OF SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA, v. 29, ¥o. 6, Part I, June 1937.

GILLIS, GEORGE S.,~LIEUT—GOL., U. S. ARMY —-.
Water for the Presidio, in WATER, July 1932.
San Francisco Vater Dept. archives (spring
Valley Water Company). '

HISTORIC LANDMARKS in MOTOR LAUD, May 1936, -
California State Automobile Association, .
State Parks Commission registration data.

LISTENING POST, Letterman Hospital, Presidio,
San Francisco, History of Letterman Hospi-
tal. e et

MEEDEN, B. L‘., CAPT.’ QOMQG. - uAI'mY'B finest
club building--Restoration of the Presidio
of San Francisco", in THE QUARTERMASTER
REVIEW, December 193k. v _

VENZIES, ARCHIBALD (naturalist on the #Discovery",

Capt. Vancouver 1790-9l) . — Menzies'® Cali-

fornis Journal, edited by Alice Bastwood in

CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL SOCIETY QUARTERLY,

v. 1I, No. lt, January 192k,

NEVE, FELIPE DE —- Four reports by Neve, 1777-79.
Tr, by Lindley Bynum in ANNUAL OF HISTORICAL
SOCIETY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA, v. 15, Part 1.
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lated by George Ezra Dane in CALIFORNIA
HISTORICAL SCCIETY QUARTERLY, v. Xiv, 1935.

SAN FRANCISCO NEWS LETTER., San Francisco descTip-
tive, Diamond Jubilee Edition, 1925.

+

- 2—-



1t,

15.
16,
17.

.18,

D PUBLISHED

-

SANCHEZ, NELLIE VAN DE GRIFT -- Historic Oali-
fornia romances; Concepclon, Comendante
Argiicllo's daughter and Count Rezanof, in
MOTOR LAKD, February 193%. California
State Automobile Association.

SHERMAN, W, T, -- 01d Times in California, in
NORTH AMERICAN REVIEVW (No. CCCLXXXVIII)
March 1889,

VANCOUVER, GEORGE, CAPT. ~- San Francisco in
1792; Yerba Buena Cove, the Mission and
Presidio of San Francisco, in CALIFORNIA
HISTORICAL SOCIETY QUARTERLY, v. XIV, 1935,

WEEKLY CALL (THE) -~ California as it is, Written
by 70 of the leading editors and authors of
the State. 34 edition, San Francisco,

The San Francisco Call Compeny, 1882,

HUTCHIHG’é CALIFORNIA MAGAZINE, v.III, No, 12,
June, 1859. (Addendum)

VOLUMES:

a, CALIFORNIA -~ HISTORICAL

L.
2,

3.

ATHERTON, GERTRUDE FRAKKLIN, MRS, —— Cslifornia:
en intimate history. New York snd London,
“Harper & Brothers, 1914

BANCROFT, HUBERT HOVE -~ History of California.
San Francisco. The History Company, 1884-30,
(7v., 5vs. consulted.)

BEECHEY, F. V., CAPT., R.M. — Narrative of a
voyage to the Pacific and Behring's Strait,
L%ndon. Henry Colburn and Richard Bentley,
1831,

" CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL SURVEY COLMISSION -- Guide

to the county archives of California, by
Owen C. Coy, Ph, D., director and archivist,
Sacramento, California State Printing Office,

CAPRO!N, ELISHA 8, — History of Californie from
ite discovery to the present time, DBoston.
J. P. Jewett & Company, 1854,

CHAPMAN, CHARLES E., Ph, D, — A history of Cali-~
fornia., New York. The Macmillen Conpany,
1926,

OLINCH, BRYAN J. -- California and its miselonsc.

159

San Frencisco. The Whitaker & Roy Company, 1904,

s



9.

10.
11.
12,

13,
1,

15.
163

7.

18,

ig.

COY, OWEN COCHRAN -— Guide to the county archives
of California. California Historical Survey
Commission Publications, v. 1. Sacramento,

1919.

CoY, OVEN COCHRAN ~— Pictorial history of Califor-
nia, Berkeley. University of Californie,
Extension Division, 1925.

DAVIDSON, GEORGE -~ The discovery of San Fran-—
cisco Bay, the rediscovery of the port of
Monterey; the establichment of the Presidio
and the founding of the Mission of San
Francisco. San Frencisco, Partridge Print,

1907.

DAVIS, WILLIAM HEATH — gixty years in Californisa.
dan Frencisco. A. J. Leary, 1889.

ENGELHART, FR. ZEPHYRIN, 0. F.¥, — The migsions
and missionaries of California. (Iv,V)
SansFrancisco. The Janes H. Barry Company,
1916,

ELDRIDGE, ZOETH SKINNER —- History of Galifornié.
New York., The Century History Company, 1315,

GRAY, A. A., M. A, - History of California, Xew
~York. JD.GQ.,Heath“&mcompany,“15k2.

GUINN, JAMES MILLER —— History of the State of
Galifornia snd bicgraphical record of Ozkland
and environs, Los Angeles., Higtoric Record

Company, 1307.

GUINN, JAMES MILLER == History of the State of
California and biographicel record of coast
counties, California. Chlcago, The Chap-
man Publishing Company, 1g0k,

HARTYANN, CARL, DR, — Geogrephisch statistiche
beschribung von Californien, Erster Berucht.
Weimar Bernh, Friedr. Boigt, 1849,

HITTELL, JOHN SHERTZER -— A history of San Frean-
cisco and incidentally of the State of
California. San Francisco., A. Ls Bancroft
& Company, 1878,

HITTELL, THECDORE HENRY -- History of California.
San Francisco. Theodore H. Hittell, 1885-
1897. (v. 1 and 2)

le .

1}



20, HOITT, IRA G, — Pacific Coast guide and pro- 161
gramme of the Knights Templar Triennial
lggmittee. San Frencisco, 1Ira G, Hoitt,

3o

21. HUISH, ROBERT, ESQ.’ FgL.A.&oZQ SOO. — A narra-
$ive of the voyage and travels of Captain
Beechey, R.N.F.R.S.&.C., to the Pacific and
Behring's Straits, performed in the years
1825, 26, 27, and 28, London. W. Vright
Southwark, 1839, - ‘

22, HUNT, ROCKWELL D. — California the golden, New
York, Boston, Chicago, etc, Silver Burdett
Company, 1911,

23, HUNT, ROCKVELL D, —- California and Californians.
The Spanish period, by Nellie Ven de Grift
Sanchez. The American periocd by R. D. Hunt,
Chicago, New York, etc, The Lewis Pub-
lishing Company, 1926, (v. 3 & 5)

24, LANGSDORFF, G, H, VON -~ Langsdorff's narrative
of the Rezenov voyage to Nueva California
in 1806, FRussiznized by Thomas C, Russell,
San Francisco, Private press of T. C.
Russell, 1927. .

25; LEIGH, H. IRVINE — A history of the new Cali-
fornia. New York and Chicago The Lewis
Publishing Company, 1905. :

26; LEWIS PUBLISHING COMPANY (THE) —— Memorial and
biographical history of northern Califoxrria,
_ Chicago. The Lewis Publishing Conmpany, 1851,

27, LEVWIS PUBLISHING COMPANY (THE) —- (Author's name
not given) The Bsy of San Francieco: A
history. Chicago. The Lewis Publishing
Company, 1892,

28, MAHR, AUGUST CARL — The visit of the "Rurik® to
Ssn Francicco in 18163 IV, Choris' descrip-
tion of San Francisco, Stanford University,
Californiaz. Stanford University Prees, 18932,

29; LCGROARTY, JOHN 8, -~ California: Its history and
romance., Los Angeles, Grafton Publishing
Company, 1911,

30, MARINO, HENRY MANUEL -- Marino's dictionary of
Spanish-named California cities and towns,
Chicsgo. M. A, Donahue Company, 1916,

7

5=



31, NORTON, HENRY KITTREDGE — The story of Calil- 162
' fornia; from their earliest days to the
present, Chicago. A. C. McClurg &
Company, 1921,

32, POWERS, LAURA BRIDE -~ The missions of California:
The establishment, progress and decay. San
Frencisco. Payot Uphem Comwpeny, 1503.

33, RICHMOND, IRVING BERDINE — California under
Spain and Mexico, 1535-1847. Boston and
New York, Houghton ﬁifflin Company, 1911,

3k, ROYCE, JOSIAH -~ California from the concuest
in 1846 to the second vigilance committee
in San Francisco 1856, Boston snd New
York, Houghton Mifflin Company, 1886.

35, SANCHEZ, NELLIE VAN DE GRIFT - Czlifornia and
Celifornians: the Spanish period. (v. I
of 5 vs,) Chicago, The Lewis Publishing
Company, 1926.

36, SEXTON, ELLA N, —- Stories of California, New
York, Macwillan Compeny, 1905.

37, STEEL, JAMES — Old Celifornia days. Chicego.
Belford Olark Company, 1889, :

38, STODDARD, CHARLES WARREN —— In the footprints of
the padres, San Francisco. A, ¥, Robert-
son, 1902, )

39. TUTHILL, FRANXLIN — The history of California.
8226Francisco. H, . Bancroft & Corpany,
1566,

40, WOOLLEY, L. H, —- California 1849-1913; or,
The rembling sketches and experience of
64 years' residence in that State, Oakland,
Californiz., DeWitt & Snelling, 1913.

T

B. CALIFORNIA -~ DESCRIPTIVE

1, BREWER, WILLIAM BENRY ~- Up and down Cslifornia
in 1860-1864, New Haven, Yale University
Press; London, H., Milford, Oxford University
Press, 1930,

2. DAVIDSON, GEORGE —- Pacific Coast: Coast pilot
of California, Oregon, and Washington. lgh
‘edition. Completely rewritten. Vashington,
D. C, Government Printing Office, 1899,

-6~



3, DRURY, AUBREY —~ California? An intimate guide, 163
New York and London, Harper & Brothers, 1935.

4, DAVIS, JOHN F, -~ California romantic and resource-
$u1. Sen Francisco. A. M. Robertson, 191k.

5., EVANS, ALBERT 8., COL. —— A la California. Sketches
‘ of 1ife in the Golden State., San Francisco,
A. L. Bancroft & Company, 1872,

6. JOHNSOK, ARTHUR T, -- California, New York. Duf-
fied and Compeny, 1913,

7. PATTIE, JAHES — Pattie's personsl narrative of
a voyage to the Pacifioc and in Mexlco. Cleve~
lend, Ohio, The A, H, Clark Compeny, 1905,

g, REZANOV, NIKOLAI PETROVICH — The Rezanov voyage
o Nueva California in 1806, Trenslated, re-
vieed snd corrected, with notes, etc., by
Thomas C. Russell. San Francisco. The Pri-
vate Press of T. C. Russell, 1926.

9, RIDER, FREMONT —- Rider's California., Compiled
by F. T. Cooper, New York, The Macmillan
Company, 1927.

30, RINGGOLD, CADVALADER, COMDR., U.S.MN. — A series
of charts with sailing directions embracing
surveys of the Farallones, entrance to the
San Francisco Bay and San Pablo, Stralt of
Carguines Suisun Bay, confluence and Deltic
branches of the Sacramento and San Joaguin
Rivers, etc. Uth edition with additions.
Washington. dJno, T. Towers, 1852,

11, TAYLOR, FRANK J. — Land of homes., Los_Angeles,
San Francisco, and Chicago. Powell Publish~
ing Company,.l929.

12. TAYLOR, WILLIAM —- California life. New York,

Carlton and Porter, 1858,

13, TURRILL, CHARLES B, — Californis notes. Sen
Francisco, E. Booqui & Compeny, 1876,

o. SAN FRANCISCO —-HISTORICAL AND DESCRIPTIVE
1, BAILEY, MILLARD -~ History of the San Francisco

Bay Region. The Americen Historicasl Society,
Inc. v. I1II, New York, 192k,

’

-7~



1A

2, BATES, D. B., MRS, — Incidents on land and water,
or four years cn the Pacific Coast. DBoston.
J. French and Company, 1860.

3e BROWN, JOHN EEKRY - Reminiscences and incidents
of early days of Sgn Francisco (1845-50) »
Douglas Sloene Vatson. San Frencisco. The
Grebhorn Press, 19332

i, BYINGTON, LEWIS FRANCIS ~- The history of San
Francisco. Chicago and San Francisco.
The S. J. Clarke Publishing Company, 1931.

(3 vs.)

Se CAREY, JOSEPH, p.D, -- By the golden gate, OT
San FranclscoO. Alvany, N. Yo The Albany
Diocesan PTess, 1902, )

6, CHORIS, LUDOVICK —- San Francisco one hundred
years 8g0. TT. from the French of Louis 3
Choris. San Francisco. A. M. Robertson,

1913,

7. OLARK, JOSEPH G, — Lights and ghedows of sailor
iife. Boston, John putnam, 1847,

[P PSP S

&, OOLTON, WALTER, REV., U.3.N., — Deck and pori;
or, Incidents of & crulse. New York. A.
g, Barnes, 1850.

RS B e i o

g, DANA, R. H.,AJR. —— Two years before the mast
and twenty-four years afver. New Yorke.
p, F. Collier & Son, 1909.

S b e

10, DAVIS, JOHN . -- The founding of San Francisco
Presidio and Misslocn. Pernan~Walsh Print-
ing Company, 1926,

11; DAVIS, WILLIAM BEATH —- geventy~five years in
Californial A history of events and 1ife in
California. San Francisco. John Howell,

1929.

12, DELANO, ALONZO -—— Alonzo Delsno's pen-knife
sketches 0T chips of the old block. San
Francisco. The Grabhorn Press, 193%.

%
§:
¥
i
i
!
H

13, DWINELLE, JOEN VHIPPLE -- The colonial history
of the city of San FrenciscO. gan Frean-
cisco, Printed bY towne & Bacon, 1866,

1}, ELDRIDGE, 70ETH SKINNER —- The beginnings of Ban
Francisco from the expedition of inza, 1774,
to-the city charter of April 15, 1850,.. San

Francisco. 2. g, Eldridge, 1912,

I

~&-



15.
16,

17.

18,

29,

20,

21,

22,

23,

oly,

25,

26,

. . 165
ENGELHART, FR., ZFPHYRIN, O.F.M, -- San Francisco
or HMigsion Dolores, Franciscan Herald Press,
Chicago, 1924,

FORBES, A.3.C., MRS, —- California missions and
landmarks: El1 Camino Real, Los Angeles,
Mrs, A4.8.C., Forbes, 1925. '

GRAHAM, MARY -— Historical reminiscences of cne
hundred yearp ago. The lission San Fran-—
cisco de Asis, Maria de la Concepcion
Agggéllo. S8an Francisco, P, J, Thomas,
1876,

HOOVER, MILDRED BROOKE —— Historic spots in
California, Counties of the Coast Range.
Stanford University, California, London,

1937.

KEELER, CHARLES -- San Franocisco and thereabout,
San Francisco, The California Promotion
Cornmittee, 1903,

LANGSDORFF, G. H. VON —— Voyages and travels in
various parts of the world during the years
1803, 1804, 1805, 1806, and 1807, Part II,
London, Printed for Henry Collins, 1814,

_(from an English translation by Thomas C,
Russell) San Francisco., The private Press
of T. C, Russell, 1927.

YEVILLE, AMELIA RANSCME -— The fentéstie city;
Boston and New York, Houghton-Mifflin

Company, 1932,

NEWCOMB, REXFORD, M.A.M. ARCH,, A.I.A. -~ The
. 01d mission churches snd historic houses of
California., Philadelphis and London, J.
B, Lippincott Company, 1925,

POTTER, ELIZABETH GRAY; and GRAY, MABEL THAYER
—-= The lure of San Francisco, San Fran-
cigco, Paul Elder & Company, 1915,

PURDY, HELEN THROO? —— San Francisco: as it was,
as 1t 1s, and how to see it, San Francisco.
Peul Elder & Coupany, 1912,

RAKD, MCNALLY, & COMPANY -~ Rand, McNally guide
to San Francisco, Cakland, Berkcley, and
environs of the bay cities, New York,

Rsnd -Mclally & Company, 1925,

ROQUEFEUIL, ¥, CAMILLE D, -—- A voyage round the
world between the years 1816-1819, London,
printed for Sir Richard Philipps & Company,
1823,

~9~



PART VI

PUBLISHED OFFICIAL DESCRIPTIONS OF THE PRESIDIO, 1854190k



S - N | 2| 167
| MANSFIELD
~ onthe

CONDITION
o ofthe |
- WESTERN FORTS

C8s3se

Edz'tea’ and with an I nt}'adacz.‘im éy
"Robert W. Frazer

(Report of Colonel Joseph King Femno
Mansfield, Inspector General's Dept.)

UNIvErRsITY OF Oxranoma Press : Normaw




The Dcportment of the Pacific, 1854

€ Presidio of San Francisco—roh May >

This post was under the command of 1t Lieutenant and Brevet
Captain J. H. Lendrum of the 3rd Artillery since the 1t Febru-
. ary, 1854. The command consisted of Company M (Captain
E.D.Keys [Keyes] absent with leave), 1t Lieutenant J. H. Len-
drum commanding company and 2d Lieutenant Richard Arnold
absent on detached service, 3 sergeants, one corporal, 29 privates
for duty—8 privates sick, 9 privates on extra duty, one corporal
and 4 privates confined. Aggregate present: one commissioned
officer and 55 privates. Absent on detached service: one commis-
sioned, one corporal. Absent with leave: 1 commissioned officer
and 7 privates. Absent sick: one private. Total present and ab-
sent: 67. Attached to this post was Assistant Surgeon J. F. Ham-
mond and Assistant Quartermaster Captain J. L. Folsom.

_ The disdpline of this command was good, but the company

was not well instructed in the infantry drill and not at all as skir-
mishers. This is in consequence of many recruits having recently
- joined. A squad was selected of the old soldiers who were carried,
by Captain Lendrum, through the artillery drill with two pieces
handsomely.

The arms and equipments of this company were in good serv-
iceable condition for the field. The quarters for the soldiers were
miserable adoby buildings, the leavings of the Mexican Govern-
ment, but were kept in good police and order. And the quarters
for the officers [were] not much better. A temporary barrack for
the soldiers has been subsequently erected by order of General
. Wool. A remodelling and rebuilding of this post and quarters
will be necessary at a future day when they will be required for
troops to man the fortifications & ¢ &c. The store houses for arms

+
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and clothing badly ventilated and not suitable—and there is no
musidian at this post.

The Medical Department, in the charge of Dr. Hammond,
who had been here but a short time, was in good order, but there
was a deficiency of bunks, and the hospital building [was] a poor
structure, and it should be levelled as it occupies the ground
suitable for drills, parades, &c. —

The Quartermaster’s Department was in the hands of Captain
Folsom, who had been here since the 1t April, and the supplies
- suitable, but all the buildings for stores & ¢ & cworthless. He had
expended 3,496*7100 dollars, and had on hand 885%%o00 dol-
lars, deposited in the private banking house of Lucas Turner &
Co. which, for reasons heretofore given in like cases, had not yet
been deposited with the sub treasurer. He had in his employ one
dtizen clerk. '

The Commissary Department was in charge of Captain Len-
drum and the supplies good and accounted for. He had in his
hands 854 %% 00 dollars, of which 813" %00 dollars was in the pri-
vate banking house of Lucas Turner & Co. and, for reasons here-
- tofore given in like cases, had not yet been deposited with the sub
* treasurer. These funds are all presumed to be safe for the present.

There were here ten long 32-pounders which required over-
hauling, and the carriages cleaned up, and there is a large supply
of balls here; and the post battery of four 6-pounder field pieces
required painting. A garden existed here, but it was in very bad
order and not, in my opinion, sufficiently large, yet there is land
enough.

This post is three miles by land and about the same by water
from San Frandsco and about one mile by land or water from
Fort Point, and is on the leward side of the heights which shelter
it from the prevailing northwest wirds, and is in full view of Al-
catrazes Island, about one and a half miles -off, and the only
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spot about here suitable for 2 command of troops, either for the
forts or for instruction, and is ample and convenient.

Brevet Captain Lendrum 1s an ambitious and meritorious
young officer, but the duty of commander of post and of company
and acting commissary, and the instruction of troops cannot be
performed by one officer to the advantage of the service.

I found, at this post, Company L, 3rd Artillery, commanded
by Lieutenant J. Kellogg, temporarily attached to it, and 2d
Lieutenant E. H. Day. The men were all recruits, and just
landed from the Alantic States, and did not know the manuel .
of the musket and had not got cleaned up, and were occupying
tents for want of quarters. As I found this company subsequently
at Fort Vancouver in a very different condition and highly credit-
able to the young officers in charge, I shall not further notice it
here. ' :

This post was last inspected by Colonel McCall, late inspector
general.”™ There are no Indians about here. .
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. CIRCULAR No. 4. -

WAR DEPARTMENT,
' StreEox GENtraL’s OFFICE,
Washington, December 5, 1870.

‘The following report on the Barracks and Hospitals of the United States Army,

with descriptions of the principal military posts, is published for the information of

Officers of the Army. ' . .

. JOSEPH K. BARNES,

Surgeon General United States Army.

THE PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA.

INFORMATION FURNISHED BY SURGEON J. C. BAILY, ASSISTANT SURGEON CHARLES S)iART, AND
ACTING ASSISTANT SURGEON L. H. PATTY, UNITED STATES ARMY.

‘The Presidio of San Frahcisco, California, is situated in the northwest suburbs of the town,
on a gravelly slope which ascends gradually from the sands and salt-water inarshes on the southern
margin of the harbor of San Irancisco. 1t overlooks the bay, and has in view the posts of Fort
Point, a mile to the northwest, near the harbor mouth, that of Aleatraz Islaud to the north and
eastward, and that of Point San José to the east.

The reservation contaius about 31,5340 acres, and has a frontage on the bay of about a mile and
a halfl Back from the post the ground rises more rapidly into grass-covered hills, There are no
shade trees in the vicinity. The climate is varied and variable; oftentimes mild and pleasant
during the carly purt of the day, and chilly and damp toward its close. Strong winds frequently
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prevail toward the end of sumnter and aatumn, while in winter there is much moisture in the
atmosphero, cither fulling as a heavy rain orenveloping the post iu a thick penetrating mist, which
creeps in from the ocean and spreads itself over the lower-Ising portions of the harbor boundaries.

Mean annual temperatare, 52500 F.

The site of the post is well drained uaturally, by a fall of one foot in twenty, but thisis aided by

shallow ditches around the various buildings,

so that even immedintely atter heavyraius, there arevo

standing pools. The parade ground is grassy during the whole year.
The post is built on three sides of a parallelogram, 550 by 150 yards, which is open to the bay
or northeast side. The general arrangement is shown in Plate No. 11. ’
Thirty-six feet in front of the row of ofticers’ buildings, and extending aloug their whole length,
- js a wind-fence or lattice screen of lath, 12 feet high, with brauches extending at right angles from

it to the buildings. This has recently been

built to shelter these quarters from the strong winds

that sometimes blow from the ocean. Trees, pine and acacias, have been planted at 18 feet intervals

between the main fence and the buildings.
of wood, and well Jighted and ventilated by

All the buildings, with the exceptions noted below, are
the windows and ridge.

The men’s quarters cousist of one building, S0 by 13 feet, one 95 by 18 feet, and four, each 51

by 18 feet, each one story and accommodat

ing oué company, with kitcliens and messrooms ad-

joining; kitchens furnished with monitor ranges; one building, 117 by 25 fect, two story, for two
companies, with kitchen and mess-room in an adjoining building, 117 by 16 feet; four buildings, 120
by 30 feet, each for two companies, with kitchens and mess-rooms in basements.

The officery’ quarters consist of one building, 114 by 32 feet, three story, with a wing, 40 by 30

feet, thirty-nine rooms, for bachelor otticers’

quarters; twelve oue and 2 balf story cottages, 31

_ by 18 feet, with water-closets and bath-rooms attached; comafortable and neat, for married otlicers.

The laundresses’ quarters consist of one

building, 90 by 28 fect; one story, twelve rooms; one,

45 by 37 feet, two story, twelve rooms; eight, 60 by 27 teet, one story, eight rooms each; one, 160 by
29 feet, with eighteen rooms; one 87 by 53 feet, with fourteen roomns; one, 45 by 26 feet, with three .

. -ToOmS youe;60:hy-23 feetpwitinthree rooms-—one-storvs.adebepocenpial.by-geven fwmilies,.. -
+ - The post buildings consist of one building, 36 by 30 feet, one story, four rooms, adjutant’s

office; one, 40 by 30 feet, two stoties, with porch in front; upper story a guard-roomn ; lower,
divided into a main prison-room, 33 by 20 by 12 feet, and cells, each 10 by 5 by 12 fect; chapel, 45
by 30 feet; school-house, 30 by 18 feet; bake-honse, 42 by 18 feet—oven tarns out & batel of 412

rations ; hospital, 80 by 40 feet.

The workshops cousist of a wheelwright shop, §0 by 30 feet; blacksmith shop, 50 by 20 feet.

The store-houses consist of a magazine,

93 by 23 fect; quartermaster's and subsistence store-

house, 110 by 30 fect, one story, brick foundation ; store-house for hay and grain, 66 by 24 feet;

store-house for hard-wood lumber, 51 by 18
in loft.
The stables consist of two buildings for
each, well ventilated; forage loft overhead ;
The bospital at the eastern angle of the

feet; gunsheds, 175 by 30 feet, with ordnance stores

battery horses, 215 by 30 feet, with eighty-seven stalls
mule shed, 430 by 16 feet.
parade ground, in line with the oflicers’ quarters, is a

two-story building, 80 by 40 feet, with a wing, 33 by 22 {eet, on brick basement, with porch in front,

and small inclosure behind. It is arranged

for fifty beds, to each of which it gives an area of 76 -

feet, or 1,025 cubic feet. Its average occupancy is seventeen. "It is divided into four wards, 40 by
22 by 14 feet, a smaller ward for prisoners, 20 by 10 by 13 feet, and an attendants’ room, 20 by 18
by 13 feet; each is furnished with water-pipes and machie basin, wardrobe, bedside tables, and
chairs. They are well-warmed by grated fireplaces for coal, aud lighted and ventilated by the
windows. In addition to these, there is a dispeusary, furnished with hot and cold water and the
pecessary fixturds; a libravy containing alarge and very good sclection of books; a post-mortem
room with table, and two well-ftted up bath-rooms. The kitchen is likewise furnished with hot
and cold water, has a good range, and an adjoining pautry and store-room. The mess-room, 30 by
20 by 10} feet, is fitted up with the necessary tables and benches, and cupboards for erockery. In
the basement, besides the kitchen and pantrics, are two store-rooms for medical supplies, and a
coal cellar.  On the upper floor are two water-closets, which empty through the main sink in the

jnclosure into the sewer. .
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The regimental library of the Second Artillery is Lkept at tlns post, aud contains about 1,478
volumes. The bospital library contains 500 volumes, comprising travels, biography, history, fiction,
and books of a religious character.

The water supply of this post is derived from the flume of the Spring Valley Water Company.
Itis forced by a windmill and mule-power into a reservoir at the southern or higher end of the post,
whenee it is sapplied by pipes to the different buildings. The supply is abundant, and the quality
excellent. The waste-waler pipes and latrines empty into a large covered sewer, which runs on
ither side of the post, aud discharges into tide-water.

A cow is kept for hospital use. A small garden yields all the vegetables necessary for thebos-
pital, and is cultivated by oune of the attendants.

About ten acres are cultivated as post garden, producing potatoes, cabbage, turnips, onions, &e.

The post is arranged for sixteen companies, but during the greater portion of the past year
its garrison consisted only of the field, staff, band, and Battery M of the Second Artillery, giving a
mean strength of 8 officers and 170 men.  The quarters oceupied by these troops are fitted up with
jron bedsteads, and 1,223 cubic feet of air space is allowed per bed. Transient troops have fre-
queatly gone into quarters in some of the other buildings. Their diet has been of good quality and
variety. A'large company garden, well cultivated, renders the post almost independent of other
sources of vegetable supplies. The sick list has been mostly composed of venereal diseases cou-
tracted in San Francisco, and rheumatic aftections, to which the winds and damnpuess give origin.
The daily per cent. of sick to comm'md has been 19.  Percentage of mortality to cases treated, .53.

Statemcnt showmg mean strength, number of sick, and principal diseases at the Presidio of San Fran-
cisco, California, for the years 18638 and 1569.
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*Include laryngitis, broachitis, preumonis, sod pleurisy.
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Department of California.

Presidio of San Francisco, California. Established 1847.

LOCATION ........Latitude 37 deg. 48 min.; longitude 122 deg. 21 min. Post office st San Francisco, Cal., three miles from
post.

OFFICERS’ QUAR- Twelve cottages 31x18 feet, bath room and water closet sttached: and one frame building 114x32 feet, with
TERS ..vue ooo...wing $4x30 feet, three stories high: divided into thirty-nine rooms.

BARRACKS........Nine frame buildings for 300 men.

LAUNDRESSES' Eizht frame buildings x27 feet, divided into eight rooms ench. One frame building 90x28 fect, divided
QUAKTERS......into twelve rooms.  Oue frume building 45x37 feet, two stories high, divided into six rooms. Ope rdobe
building 160x29 feet, divided iuto eivhteen rooms,  One adube building 87x55 feet, divided into fonrteen
rooms. One adobe building 49x26 feet, divided into three rooms. Oue adobe building 60x23 feet, divided

into three rooma,

STORE HOUSES...Quartermaster's and Commissary store house 110x30 feet: frame, with fonndation built of brick piers:
eapacity for supplies for nine Companies for three months, For grain, one frame building 66x24 feet.  Oue
gun shed with orduance store room in loft; frame; 17550 feet.  Une frame building 51x18 feet, for storage
of hard-wood lumber.

WORK SHUPS .. Oge wheelwrizht and blackswnith's, 8x3) feet; frame. QOane frame bnil;ling 50x20 feet, divided in center,
. making two Company blackswith shops.

STABLES, ETC ...Two f;nme buildings 215230 feet, eighty-seven stulls each, aud small loft for forage. One male shed 430x16
* feet, frame.

HOSPITAL. . ....Frame, 80x40 feet, with L 33322 fect: two stories hich. and brick basement. Four wards 40x22 feet, and
foarteen feet hizh; capaeity for itty beds ench. A prisou ward 20x13 feet, aud ten feet high. Library room
sud dispensary. ’

RISCELLANEOTS One frame building 36530 feet, Adiuntant’s oftice.  One finme buildivy 45530 feet, chapel  One frame bnild-
BUILDINGS......ing 3Ux13 feet, school honse.  Oue frame building 40x30 feet, two stories, gnard house.  Oue frame building
2823 feet, magazine. Une frine buiiding 42318 feet, bake honse,
-SUPPLY DEPOT. ..San Fraucisco, Cul., three miles distant. ‘The ronte of snpplyis hy wagon road.

SUBSISTENCE. . ... Two months’ supply is uasnally kept on band.

WATER............The post ia supplied with water by water wagons, aud pipe from the Tanuel Spring, about 2,300 feet from
" reservoir. -

WOOD ............Wood is furnished by the contractor.
COMMUNICATION. Between post and nearest town is by wagouw,

RESERVATION. ... The :eserv&tiou on which the post is situated has been declired by the President, aud 1,520 acres are beld
as reserve

DESCRIPTION OF Surrounding country hilly; soil sandy. Where sheltered, all kinds of vegetables can be raised. Tiuber
COUN CItY, ETC. .aut water scarce.  Climate mill.  Fogs prevail the greater part of the year. Average temperature, 5314
’ Health of loculity good

Juformation furnished by Licutenant J. H. Logp, R. Q. M., 21 Artillery, June, 1870

Ju
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EEN

PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA.
' ‘(Established 1847.)

mromwmox FURNISHED BY LIEUTE\'ANT J. H. LORD, PE(.I\KB\I‘AL QUARTER.\IAbl‘Ell SECOXD
ARTILLERY, JUNE, 1570,

Locmrmx—LMnude, 370 4%'; longitade, 122° 21, Yolt-office at San Fr:mctsco, California,
three miles from post. . .
OFFICERS' QUARTELS.—Twelve cottages 31 by 18 fect bath-room and watex-clmet attached ;
and one frame building 114 by 32 feet, with wing 44 by 30 feet, three stories high; divided into
thirty-nincrooras.
BARRACKS.—Nine frame buildings for ninc hundred men. . .
LAUNDRESSES QUARTERS.~Eight frame buildings 60 by 27 feet, divided into eight raoms
- each. Oue frume building 90 by 28 feet, divided ivto twelve Tovms, One frame building 43 by 37
feet, two stories bigh, divided inio six ruoms. One adobe building 160 by 29 teet, divided iute

b

DESCRIPTIO.\'S OF MILITARY POSTS AND STATIONS. .93

elf’bteen rooms. One adobe building 87 by 53 feet, divided into fourteen roows. One adobe bunild-
jug 45 by 26 fect, divided into three roows. Oune adobe. bmldum GV by 23 feet, divided iuto three
fooms.
STORE-ROTSES.——Quartermaster’s and comnmissary store- houﬂe 110 by 30 feet; frame, with
foundation built of brick piers; eapacity for supplies for nine cowpanies for three mont‘.xs. For
. gnm, oue frame buildiug 66 by 24 feet. One gun-shed, with ordnance store-room in loit; frame;
175 by 30 feet. Oue frawe building, 31 by 18 fect, for storage of hard-wood Jumber.
WoRK-sHOPS.—One wheeiwright and blacksmith’s, S0 by 30 feet; frame. Oue frame building
50 by 29 feet, divided in center, making two cowmpany blacksmith-shops.
S1ABLES, &C.—Two frame buildings 215 by 30 feet, eighty-seven stalls each and small loft for
forage. One mule-shed, 430 by 16 feet, frame.
. HOSPITAL. -—I‘mme, 80 by 40 feet, with L 35 by 22 feet; two stories high, and brick hasenrent.
Four wards 40 by 22 feet, and 14 feet bigh; capacity for hfty beds each. A pran ward 20 by 15
feet, aud 10 feet high. Library roow and dxtpmmry
MISCELLANEOUS BUILDINGS.—Oue frame building 36 by 30 feet, adjutant’s office. Omne frame
boilding 45 by 30 feet, chapel. One frame building 30 by 18 feet, schivol-house.  Oue frame build-
ing 40 by 30 feet, two stories, g csuard-house. Ouc frame buﬂdmg 28 b) .33 feet, magazine. Oune
frame building 42 by 18 feet, bake-bouse.
SuPPLY DEror.—San Francisco, Califoruia, three xmk-s dlstant. The route of supply is by
wagon road.
SUBSISTENCE.—Tiwo months' supply is usually kept on hand.
WATER.~The post is supplied with water by water-w J"uua, and pipe from the Tuunnel Spring,
about 2,300 feet from reservoir.
\Voon.—\Voud js furnished by the contractor.
COMMUNICATION.—DBeétween post and nearest town is by wagon.
REseRvVATION~The reservation on which the post is situated ha’s been declared by the Presi.
dent, and 1,020 acres are held as reserved.
DESCRIPTION OF COUNTRY, &C.-—Surrounding country billy; soil sandy. Where sheltered,
all kiuds of vegetables can be raised.  Timber and water searce.  Climate mild, Fogs prevail the
greater part of the year.. Avex.we temperature, 55.14. Health of locdmy good.

.
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Quazrsraastre-GreEsan's Orrice, WasamartoN, D. C., May 19th, 1870.

Bazvar Mas.-Gexn, R. O, Trrer, Chief Quartermaster,
Military Division of the Pacific, San Francisco, Cal.

Grevzrar—Pleasa prepare and cause to be printed, in suitable book form  * ¢ . & & & * anontline
description of the Posts and Stations of Troops in the Military Division of the Pacific . LA

This work should also embody a brief preliminary statement, showing when the Military Division of the Pacific was established;
“what changes may have tuken place in regard to the section of country therein comprised; a tabular summary of the estimated

population, description, etc., of the Indian Tribea within its boundaries, the names and addresses of their Agents, etc.

Very Respectfully, your obedient servant,

M. C. MEIGS, QuarTErMASTIR-GENERAL, Brevet Maj.-Gen., U.S. A,
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PEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA.

Presidio of San Francisco, California. Established 1847. .
LOCATION. ........Latitude 37 deg.48 min.; longitude 122 deg. 21 min. Pout office at San Fruacisco, Cal., three miles from
post.

* . QFFICERS’ QUAR- Twelve cottnges, $1x18 feet, buth roont und water closet witached: aud one frame building, 114132 feet, with
TERS., wing, 4430 teet, three stories high; divided into thirty-niue rovms.

BARBRRACKS..........Nine trame buildiugs for 900 men.

LAUND RESSE 8.Eiuht frume buililings, 60x27 feet, divided into eight rooms ench.  One frume bailding, 90x28 feet, divided
QUARTERS. into twelve rommns.  Qne frame building, 43307 feet, two stories high, divided juto six rooms. One adube
building, 160x2Y fect, divided into eighteen reoms.  One adobe brilding, NTX35 feet, divided iuto fourteen
rooms.  One adobe building, 45526 fect, divided into three roouis.  Que adobe building, 60x23 feet, divided

into three rooms.

STORE HOUSES....Quartermaster's and Commissary store house, 110x30 feet: frame, with foundation built of brick piers:
capucity for supplics for nine Cowpnnies for three mouths. For gruin. one frame buildiug, 66324 feat.

. : Oune gun shed with orduunce sture room in loft; frume; 175x30 feet. Oune frume building 31x18 fewt, tor
storage of hard wood luwber, .

WORK SHOPS......Ove wheelwrizht and blucksmith’s, 80x30 feet; frame. One frame buildiny, éOrZ(' feet, divided in center,
making two Compuny bluckswith shops.

STABLES, ETC.....Two frame buildings, 213130 feet, eighty-seven stalls each, und small loft for forage. One mule shed,
430x16 teet, frame.

BOSPITAL ........Frame, 80x40 feet, with I 35x32 feet; two stories high, and brick basement. Four wards, 40x22 feet, and
fourteeu feet high; capucity for fifty beds each. A prisou ward, 20213 feet, and ten feet high. Librury
room and dispeunsary.

MISCELLANEOUS...Oue frame building, 36x30 feet, Adjutant’s office. Oue frame building, 45330 feet. chapel. One frame
BUILDINGS.  buikling, 3018 tect, school honse.  Oue frame building, 40x34 teet, two stories, guard house.  Oue trawme
bailding, 20x23 feet, magazine. One frame building, 42518 teet, bake house.
SUPPLY DEPOT....San Francisco, Cal., three miles distant. The route of s&pply is by wagon road.
SUBSISTENCE......Two months’ sapply is usually kept ou hand.

WATER.............The post is sapplied with water by water wagons, and pipe from the Tunnel Spring, about 2,300 feet from
. the reservoir. .

WOOD.....e........Wood is furnished by the contractor.
COMDIDNICATION. Between post and nearest town is by wagon.

RESERVATION ....The reservatiou on which the post i sitaated hus been declured by the President, November &, 1630, and
. moditied December 3}, 1851, and 1,520 ucres are held as reserved.

DESCRITTION OF..Surronndig country hilly; soil sandy. Where sheltered, all kinds of vegetubles can be raised. Timber

COUNTRY, ETC. aud waterscarce. Clitste mild.  Fogs prevail the greater part of the year.  Average temperuture, 83.14.
. Health of lucality good.

.
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DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA. . 390

" PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, California. Established, 1847.

Lgcation...........

Quartert...... ....

§ivre-Rouscs, §e.....

Latitude, 37° 48’ north ; longitude, 122° 21’ west. Post office at 8an Francieco, Cul,, three miles from Post.

For afficers, twelve cottagres, 31 by 18 feet, bath-room and water-closet attachied, and one frame building,
114 by 32 feet, with wing 44 by 30 feet, three stories Ligh, divided juto thirty-uive rooms. The barracks
coneirt of nine frame buildings, for nine hundred men.” Laundresses’ quarters, eight frome bLuildings,
64 by 27 feet, divided into eight rooms each. One frame building, 90 by 28 feet, divided into twelve
roome.  One frame building, 45 by 37 feet, two stoties high, divided juto six 10oms.  Oue adobe build-
ing, 160 by 29 feet, divided into eighteen rooms. One adobe buildiug, 87 by 55 feet, divided into four-
teen rooms.  One adobe building, 45 by 26 feet, divided into three rvows. Oue adobe building, 60 by
23 feet, divided into three rovmns. .

Quarterruaster’s and commissary store-houre, 110 by 30 feet, frame, with foundation Luilt of brick piers;
capacity for supplies for nine companies for three months.  For grain, one frame building, 66 by 24 feet.
Oue guu-shed, with orduance store-room in loft, frame, 175 by 30 feet. One frame building, 51 by 138
feet, for storage of Jumber. One wheelwright's and blacksmith's hop, 80 by 3U feet, frame.  One frame
building, 50 by 20 feet, divided in center, making two company blucksmith’s shops. Tlhe stables are”
two firarue huildings, 215 by 30 feet, eighty-seven stalls eacli, and sinall loR for forage. One mule-shed,
430 by 16 feet, frame. . . . . :

Hoc;;ita.l.-.;...-... Frawe, 80 Ly 40 feet, with L 55 by 22 feet, two stories high, and brick basement. Four wards. 40 by 22

Aiscellaneous build-

ings.
Supply depot. eme-

Water and wood....| The Post is supflied with water by water-wagons and pipe from the Tunne} Spring, about two thousand

Communication. ....| Between Post and neurest town is b): wagoui.

by 14 feet, capacity for fifty beds each. A prison ward, 20 by 15 by 10 feet. Library-roow and dispeusary.

One frame building, 3G by 30 fvet, adjutant’s office. One frame building, 45 by 30 feet, chapel. Oue
frame building. 30 by 13 feet, school-house. One frame building, 40 by 30 feet, two stories, guard-house,
One [rame building, 23 by 23 feet, magazine. One frame building, 42 by 18 feet, bake-Louse.

San Fraucisco, Cal., three miles distaut. The route of supply is by wégoa road.

three hundred feet from reservoir. Wood is furnished by the contractar, .

Reservation. .......| The reservation on which the Post iz situated declared November 6, 1650, modified December 31, 1831,

““Deacription of the

Garrison ceeeeecvenafo o

country, dec.

Fifteer bundred and tweunty acres are beld as reserved.

Surrounding country hilly. Soil sandy. Where sheltered all kinds of vegetubles can be raised. Timber
and water scarce. Climate mild. Fogs prevail the greater part of the year. Average tewmperature,
53.14°. Health of Jocality good. . = .

Commanding Officer. ‘ .
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CIRCULAR No. 8.

War Departyexst, SusceoN-GENERAL'S OFFICE,
Washington, May 1, 1875.
The following report on the hygiene of the United States Army, with descriptions
of military posts,is published by authority of the Secretary of War, for the informatioun
of officers of the Army. )
J. K. BARNES,

" Surgeon-General, U. S. Army.

518 DESCRIPTIONS OF MILITARY POSTS.

~THE PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA.

INFORMATION FURNISHED BY SURGEONS J. C. BAILY AND J. C. MWEKEE, UNITED STATES ARMY.

The Presidio of San Franeisco, Cal, is sitvated ip the northwest suburbs of the town,on

8 gravelly slope which ascends gradually from the sands and salt-water ma}§hes on the southern
margin of the harbor of San Francisco. It overlooks the bay, and has
in view tbe posts of Fort Point, a mile to the northwest, near the har-
bor-mouth, that of Alcatraz Island to the north and eastward, and that
of Point San José to the east.

’ The reservation contains abont 1,540 acres, and bas a frontage en
the bay of about a mile and a half. Back from the post the groend
rises more rapidly into grass-covered bills. There are po shade-trees
in the vicinity. The climate is varied and variable; oftentimes mild
and pleasant during the early part of the day, and chilly and damp.
toward its close. Strong winds frequently prevail toward the end of
summer and autumn, while in winter there is much moisture in the
atmosphere, either falling as a heasy rain or enveloping the post in a
thick, penetrating mist, which creeps in from the ocecan and spreads
itself over the lowerlying portions of the harbor boundaries.

The site of the post is well drained naturally, by a fall of one foot
in twenty, but this is aided by sballow ditcbes around the various
buildings, so that even immediately after heavy rains there are no
standing pools. The parade-ground is grassy during the whole year,

The post is built on three sides of a parallelogram, 550 by 150 yards,
which is open to the Lay or northeast side. The gencral arrangement.
is shown in Figure 75.

Figore 75,
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- THE PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA. 519
A, B, C, D, officers’ quarters; E, F, barracks; @, guard-house ; H, adjutant’s oftice; I, wagon-
shop; J, quartermaster; K, bakery; L, storehouse; M, chapel; N, hospital; O, P, Q, plank
walks; R, small streaw, (sometimes dry;) S, gate in rear of barracks; T, sutler; U, V, picket
fence in rear (east) of oflicers’ quarters; W, X, picket fence in rear (west] of barracks; Y, road to
Presidio wharf and beach; Z, road to mountain-lake.

Thirty-six feet iu front of the row of officers’ buildings, and extending along their whole length,
is a wind-feuco or lattice screen of lath, 12 feet high, with branches extending at right angles from
it to the buildings. This has recently been built to shelter these quarters frow the strong winds
that sometimes blow from the ocean. Trees, pine and acacias, bave been planted at 18-foot inter-
vals between the main fence, and the buildings. All the buildings, with the exceptions noted below
are of wood, and well lighted and ventilated by the windowsand ridge. .

The men’s quarters consist of one building, S0 by 18 feet, one 95 by 18 feet, and four, each 51
by 18 feet, each oue story aud accommodating one company, with kitchens and wmess-rooms ad-
joining; Litchens furnished with monitor ranges; one building, 117 by 25 feet, two story, for two
cowpanies, with kitchen and mess-room in an adjoining bailding, 117 by 16 feet; four buildings,
120 by 30 feet, each for two compaanies, with kitchens and mess-rooms in basements.

The officers’ quarters cousist of one building, 114 by 32 feet, three story, with a wing, 40 by 30
feet, thirty-nine rooms, for bachelor officers’ gnarters; twelve oue-and-a-half-story cottages, 31 by
18 feet, with water-closets and bath-rooms attached, comfortable and neat, for married officers.

The laundresses’ quarters consist of one buiiding, 90 by 23 feet, one story, twelve rooms ; one,
45 by 37 feet, two story, twelve rooms; eight, 60 by 27 feet, one story, eight rooms each; oune, 160
by 29 feet, with eighteen roows; one, 87 by 35 feet, with fourteen rooms; oue, 43 by 26 feet, with
three rooms; one, 60 by 23 feet, with three rooms-—one story, adobe, occupied by seven families.

The post-buildings consist of one building, 36 by 30 feet, oue storyy four roows, adjutant’s
office; one, 40 by 30 feet, two stories, with porch in front; upper story a guard-room; lower
divided into a main prison-room, 35 by 20 by 12 feet, and cells, each 10 by 5 by 12 feet; chapel, 43

--by 30 feet ; school-house, 30 by 18 feet;: bake-house, 42 by 18 feet—oven turns out & batch of 412

rations; hospital, 80 by 40 feet.
The workshops consist of a wheelwright-shop, 80 by 30 feet ; blacksmith-shop, 50 by 20 feet.
The storehouses consist of a magazine, 23 by 23 feet; quartermaster’s and snbsistence store-
bouse, 110 by 30 feet, one story, brick foundation; storehouse for hay and grain, 66 by 24 feet;
storehouse for hard.-wood lumber, 51 by 18 feet; gun-shuds, 175 by 30 feet, with ordnance stores
The stables consist of two buildings for battery borses, 213 by 30 feet, with eighty-seven stalls
each, well ventilated; forage-loft overhead; mule-shed, 430 by 16 feet.

- The hospital at the eastern angle of the parade-ground, in line with the officers’ quarters, is a
two-story building, 80 by 40 feet, with a wing, 33 by 22 feet, on brick basement, with porch in front,
and small inclosure behind. It is arranged for fifty beds, to each of which it gives an area of 76
feet, or 1,023 cubic feet, Its average occupaucy is nine. It is divided into four wards, 40 by 22
by 14 feet, a smaller ward for prisoners, 20 by 10 by 13 feet, and an attemdants’ room, 20 by 18
by 13 feet; each is furnished with water-pipes and marble basin, wardrobe, bedside tables, and
chairs. They are well warmed by grated fire-places for coal, and lighted and ventilated by the
windows. In addition to these, there is a dispensary, furnished with hot and cold water and the
necessary fixtures; a library containing a large and very good selection of books; a post-mortem

‘room with table, and two well-fitted up bath-rooms. The kitchen is likewise furnished with hot

and cold water, bas a good range, and an adjoining pantry aud store-room. The mess-room, 36 by
20 Ly 10} feet, is fitted up with the uecessary tables and benches, and capboards for crockery. In
the basement, besides the kitchen aud pantries, are two store-rooms for medical supplies, and a
coal-cellar. On the upper floor are two water-closets, which empty through the main siuk in the
inclosure into the sewer,

The hospital library contains five hundred volumes, comprising travels, biography, history,
fiction, and books of a religious character. . :

The water-supply of tlis post is derived from the flume of tho Spring Valley Water Company.
It is forced by a windmill aud mule-power into a reservoirat the southern or higlier end of the post,
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wheuce it is supplied by pipes to the different buildings. The supply is abandant, and the quality
excellent. The waste-water pipes and latrines empty into a large covered sewer, which runs on
eitber side of the post, and discharges into tide-water.
A cow is kept for Lospital use. A small garden yields all the vegetables necessary for the
hospital, and is enltivated by one of the attendants.
The post is arranged for sixteen companies, but during the greater portion of the year 1874 its
. garrison cousisted only of the field, staff, band, and four companies of the Fourth Artillery, giving
a meaa streugth of nineteen officers and one hundred aad sixty-two men.. The quarters occupied by
these troops are fitted up with iron bedsteads, and 1,500 cubic feet of air-space’is allowed per bed.
Their diet has been of good quality and variety. Large cowmpany gardens, well cultivated, render
the post almost iudependent of other sources of vegetable supplies.

Meteorological report, Presidio of San Francisco, Cal., 1870-74,

1870-"11. 1871-"2. 1873-"T3. 187374,
5 2 a =
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i &3 g2 g3
z3 28 52 28
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631 35 322 5231 €3+ 36 9.96§ S5L13}! &1v} 371 8.58 43,71 58+ 38 9.57
63 37* 219 5185} 61°] 42¢ 5.03| S1 4L} 67| 40° 4251 4311 2! 37 396
551 36~ 3301 54.001 63*! ¢2*! 10.50| 49.71} 66*| 38 7.33 1 49.50 60% } 36* 1.3t
T 39 Q.61 33.33¢ 60 ] 47 2611 83.39§ T 40° 0.581 49.561 66} 35* 257
] 41 .81} S2511{ 73« 38 LO3 | S295( 8| 38 Q.46 54.03 74Y ;42 Q.57
67§ 40* 0.38 ] 54.321 85°] 45* 0. 5392} T} 45 [ 3] 55.6T 1 26"} 44° 0.18
i S0 0.00 | 53.25; &9* ! 43 0.0} 3350} 66 L ad 0.06 7. 99 81 : 45* 0.00
Yor the year ...... SL 83 85} 35*{ 1205} 5534 92* i 36%{ 2270 l 5631 95| 31*| 2318} M7 i G ‘ 33 §9.64
* Theso obesrvations are made with self-regi iog th The mean is from the staadard thermometer.
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OUTLINE DESCRIPTIONS OF MILITARY
POSTS IN THE MILITARY DIVISION
OF THE PACIFIC

1879

PRESIDIO OF SAN FRANCISCO, CAL.

Eistabliched as a militury post by the Spanish; the exact date is ot krown., It

wes first occupied by United €
coropany, of Culonel J. D, Stevensew's pegiment, First New York Voluntecrs.

ites troops Murch 7, 1847, by Cuptain F. J. Linpitt's
Sit.

ated fu the north-west suburbs of Sun Franeiseo, on a slope which ascends omdually

from the saud and salt-wator tnarslee® on the sauthern margin of the harkor of Sy

It overlooks the buy aud Las in view the posts of Fort Point, a naile
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the porth.west, near the harbor mouth; that of Alcatraz Island, to tho north end
esstward; that of Point San José, to the east; aud Angel Island, to the northcast
Latitude 37° 47" 29°” 8’77; longitude 1227 257 15,7/ Elevation above the ses sbout e
The post Is built on the sides of a parallelogram, 53 by 150 yards, which is partly
open to the bay on the north-west side. The nearest Post oftice is in $an Francise,
distance four miles. - :

%W DKPARTMENT OF CALIFUENIA.

- *

Buildings. Division headquarters established st the Presidio, July 1, 18i8, by
Act of Cungress, approved Juue 18, 1874, occupies two buildings (807X30°}, futwertly
barracks, in the center of the parsde. -

Fugineer office (43°X28”) two stories, eight rooms. :

The adjutant’s offive is a one-story building (36°X30”) four roems.’

Chapel (30°X43%).

School-house (30°X18%). ~

Engiue-house (207X28%).

The ofifcers’ quartors consist of fourteen (14) buildings (the largest 114”X32) thre
story, with s wing (407 X30") thirty.uine roowms i all, comprising 6iX seven-rooi ects
and six two-room sets of qrarters. Thirteen one snd & half story cottages, twith ail
modern improvements; very comfortable aud npeat. They f{ace from the patade
ground snd are numbered from right to lest. All buve ive rooms on the ground tlour
{except No. 7, whickh bas one additional); the pariors zre 13°X15%, bedrooms 18°X16%,
dining.rooms 13°X13’, kitchens 12’X17°. ‘There are {our rooms, and in some tive, un
the gecond floor, for bed and servants’ rooms. All are supplicd with Dot aud culd
‘water. ° ’

Barracks for enlisted men consist of six buildings, and can accommodate six cow-
panies or batteries. Four are ome story (£0°x3Y’) with Kitchens in resr: one, one
story (80/X30’) with squad room, orderly roum, wmess hall, kitchen, ete., complute:
one, two story {120"X30°) orderly roow, fuess hall, kitcheu, library, etc., on firmt
ficor, and squad room upstuirs; very complete and comfortable; all have wash aud
bath roows sttached.

Laondresses’ quarters. There are quarters for 19 married men, in nine frame
buildings. Eight of the buildings arc (0”X 27/, €ight rooms in esch; aud ene s X367
12 rooms. There are three old sdobe structuress built by the Mexiczn nutives, uow
much delapidated, but with modern roofs in guad repair; one (160°X297) one story.
twelve rooms, one buudred years old; oue (W0X23°) oume story, KiX roumis; oue
(20”X23’) one story. three rooms.

Tho hospital is & two-story building (207X 40%) with basement, and awing (35 X:52°).
porch in front and rear. . It is divided into four wards ({1 X227X2¢7) for Gty bedo; &
small ward for prisoners (207X107X1387} and one atteudsut’s room (20°X18° X134}
Each is provided with water pipes and warble basing; also the usual huspital furoi-
tare. Thcy are all warmed by grated fire-places fur coal, and - Jighted and ventilated
by the windows. In addition to theso in # dispensary, furnished with hot sud cald
water, and the necessary gixtures, The kitchen an the Dascmont is Hle wise furnighed
with hot und cold water; bus o good runge sud an adjoining pantry, store-reem., Oﬁa
mess hall, '

The Luke-Louse is a one-story building {27X18%); oven turns out s . bstch of 412
zations. . )

The guard-house is two story (30’ X40°) with porch in frunt; the first fluor {8 occT-
pied as a guard-roon, with cclls attached for genersl prisoncru; aud the second flour
-i8 divided into & muin prison-room S XA X1Y and colls 307 X5 X127,
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Store-houses. One for Subsistence and Quartermuanter's stores, one story {1107 X30")
with offices, etc., complete. One for orduance stores, voe story (867X337). One
{35/X20”) one story, fur lumber lime, ete., with paiut shop attached. Oune (627X22)
obe story, for wagnas, ete. (out of repair), aud ouo magaziue (28’X30°). Forage is
stured in loft of stables and coul in sheds.

The earpenter and blacksmith shop is 3 one-story building (8¢ X:07).

Stables. Oue for private horses (L6/X24) elzht stalls and carriage room. Two for
artillery or cavalry (213/Xi0%), with seventy-one stulls in one and seventy-six in the
other, with lofts for grzin and hay. A small guanl-house is near each.

QOne bailding (175°X50°) is divided, one-balf is used by Quarteriuaster's animsls,
with twenty stulls, ten single aud ten double; the other half as a gun shed for the
Battery, aud store-room in the loft. :

The buildings are all of woud, with the exception of the magazine, which is of

stone, 20d twu sets of laundresses’ quarters snd two store-houses are built of adobes

and sre very old. All bave shiugied roofa,

Supplies. Quart ter's, Subsist , and Medical stores are coutrzcted for
by the chiefu of the respective departments at Division Headquarters. The water
supply is derived from the flume of the Spring Valley Water Company, which passes
by the post ov the north-east side. It is forced by a steam engine intoa reservoir at the
southern or higher end of the post, whence it is supplied by pipes to the ditlerent
buildings. The supply, as a rule, is awple, aud the quality excellent. The waste
water pipes emupty into large cuvered sewers, running both in front and rear of the
quarters, and discharge iuto tide water. -

Reservation declared by the President on November §, 1830, and contains 1,542
acres. :

Description of country, etc. The reservation has s frontage on the bay of
sbout a mile and & half. Back from the post the ground rises rapidly into grase-
covered hills. There are no shade trees, except about the officers’ quarters. The
climate is varied and variuble; gencrally mild and pleasant during the early part of
the day, but chilly and damnp toward its close. Strong winds generally prevail after
11 A. . daily during the stnnuer and autumn, while in winter there is much mois-
ture in the atmosphere, either falling as beavy rain or enveloping the post in o thick
penetrating mist, which creeps in from the ocesn and spreads itself over the lower
Iying portion of the harbor boundaries. The site is well drained naturally by a fall
of ono fout in twenty, so that eved immbediately afier beavy raius there are po stand-
ing pools. The parnde ground is grassy all the year round. 3Mean annual temuper.
sture 52.50 Fahrepheit. The soil is wrll adapted for raising vegetsbles when
{rrigated. Esch company and the hospital enitivate a small garden and raisc a
varjety of vegetubles, The hcealth of the command is excetlent all the year roand.
The climatic diseases are acute rheumatism, coughs, and cstarrh.

Furnithed by Colonel Josrph Roberts, 4th Artillery, Marck 21, 1877, Amended at
Dirision Headquarters April 30, 1879,
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r
PRESIDIO OF 8$AN FRANCIECO, CAL. 19\)

Latitude 37° 47 29"; longitude 122° 26' 15",

Elevation above the sea about 58 feet.

Situated in the northwestern suburbs of the eity of San Francisco,
on the southern margin of the harbor of San Francisco, and overlovk-
ing the bay. '

Reservation.—Established as a military post hy the Spanish, exact
date.unknown. Continued as a military post by Mexico, successor to

Spain, and by Mexico ceded to the United States by treaty.
" Reserved for military purposes hy Executive order dated”Novem-
bert, 185 Afterwards modified by Execcutive order dated December
81, 1851.
~ Area, approximately. 1,500 acres.  Sce also act of State legislature
approved March 8, 1897, as to tide-water Jands, ete.

y Generial Orders, No. 133, of 1884, u part of the reservation ut
the Presidio,” including the post cemetery situated therecon, was
announced as u nntion:zfccmotery of the fourth class, to be known &3
the San Francisco National Cemelery. Area about 8.5 acres, which
was enlarged by General Orders. No. 7, Adjutant-General's Ofiice,
1896, by the addition of about 15.5 acres of the military reservatiou.

Under an agreement hetween the Secretary of War and the Secre-
tary of the Treasury a tract of land was set apart, January 25, 1874,
for a mwarine hospital. The site was surveyed by the engineers in
1898, It iz au irregular tract on thesonthern bhorder of the reserve,
and embraces Mountain Lake and adjacent lands. .

By zct of Congress approved May 9, 1876, a strip of land 80 feet in
width, along the eastern side of the reservation, containing 62.79 acres,
was relinquished to the city of San Francisco for strcet purposes.
(General Orders, No. 44, Adjutant-Generai's Office, 1876.)

Under an agreement with the commanding general, Division of the
Pacific, epproved by the Sceretary of War, Mayv 2, 1851, the Presidio
Railroad Company was permitted to extend its tracks over the Gov-
ernmeunt reserve to the officers’ quarters at the post.

Licenses have been given the Western Union Telegraph Company te
Jand a submarine eable at Fort Point: the Bell Telephone Company.
and later to its successor, the Sunset Telephone and Telegraph Com-
pany, to maintain a line across the reservation to connect with the sub-
marine cable at Fort Point: the Treasury Department to use a portion
of the reservation for life-saving purposes. erect a tower at Fort Point,
ete., and to lav awalerpipe for use of the life-saving station; the Presidio
and Ferries Railroad Company to construct, maintain, and operafe its
line of cable ruilway on the reservation; also to three parties to allow
cotlages to project slightly onto the reservation.

On the enxtern boundary a small piece of land was taken from the
reservation for the Rancho Qjode Aego de Figueroa.  The fence was
recstablished on the present line by order of the department com-
mander under date of Februavy 11, 1850,

Before the oecupation of California by the United States there existed
a puchlo, or municipality, under Mexican law, upen the peninsula now
occupicd by the city of Saun Franciceo. Among the privileges an
immunities held was the right to 4 square leugues of land in and around
the pueblo, in trust and for the benetit of the inhabitants.
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Upon the admission of California into the Union in 18 50, San Fran-
cisco, when incorporated, succceded to all the rights of the old pueblo,

Jncluding the 4 square leagues of Jland.  Under the Mexican laws, how-

ever, all” puchlo grants were subject to the right of the General Gov-
ernment to miake nse of any portion thereof for military purposes, and
in the transfer to the United States the Jands so held became public
reservations without definite nenouncement.  Jt appears that the lands
at the Presidiowithin the limits of the San Francizco pueblo lundswere
held and occupied for military purposes from 1776 to 1846, and that
occupationforthesame purpose by the United States has been continuous

“since the latter date.

The military reservation of the Presidio tmc t and Tort Pmnt mdud-
mO' Point José, was declared by President Fillmore November 6,18350,
m Jccoxdnn(e with the recomimendation of a joint military and naval
‘commission appointed after the close of the Mexican war to designate
‘suitable points for defensive works in tbc ue\\}y acqued ter utox ¥ on
‘the Pucific coaat. .

An Executive order of Dcccmher I 1%1 issued upon the recom-
mendation of the Secretary of War, based upon a report of the Chief
of Eungincers of the Army, modlﬁod the reserve dud rcduced xt\ lmn
toa tract described as follows: E e oo e .

‘Embracing all the land north of 2 line running in a westerly dxrﬂct\on from the
‘southesstern corner of the Presidio tract to the southern extremity of a pond lying

‘between Fort Point and Point Lr;bo and passing through the mxddle of ﬂau‘ nond
‘and its outlet 1o the chanpel of entrance 16 The oeean. .

Point José, originally embraced in the reserve. was bv the s&'ue'
Esecutive order iucluded in a separate reservation and its limits

‘defined.  (See Fort \[a\on )

The claim of the city of San Francisco to the puoblo 1’md~ wits sub-
miitted to the United States courts for final adjustment under act of
‘Congress of July 1. 1»64. By a decree of the United States circuit

’ LOmL for the nonhcxn district of California, dated May 18, 1865. the

N

fitle of the city of San Francisco was confirmed to the 4 square Jeagues
iof land in the county of Sun Francisco, embracing the extreme upper

‘portion of the peninsula above ouhmn high-w ater mark (as the same -

existed at the date of the conquest of the countr v, July 7, 1\40) on

which the city of San Francisco 1s situated, reserving therefrom “*such .

parcels of land us have been heretofore reserved or dedicated to public
mées by the United States.” DBy a decree of the same court. dated
May 27, 1865, an appeal to the Supreme Court of the United States
was denied. rendering the decision of May 158, 1865, final and con-
‘clusive. This decree was confirmed by act of Congress dppxovea
March 8, 1866,

A sm\ev of the Presidio Reservation wi nmidom March and April,
1856, by Deputy Survevor James T. Stratton, under the direction of
‘the United States survevor-general of Cal iforpia. It gives the area
‘of the Presidio Reservation as 1.882.22 acres, of which 119.12 acresare
ol down as **swampand overflowed lands,”™ and 1.265.10 neres as Hup-
land The tract designated **swamp ¢ and over flowed Jands” is marked

“Claimed b\ AW, Winn and others, purchasers from the State of
Cahjowm. This tract lies along the northerly line of the reserva-
dlon between the sand h(uu ‘b and the line of the uplands, or line of
erdinary high-water mark, and extends from a point just east of the
Fort Point wharf to the easterly limit of the reservation.

4 *
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Upon complaint of the military autborities this survey was not
approved by the Interior. Department, as it appeared that the line of
the reservition on the south xide, as fenced 1 and recognized since
1850, bad heen disregarded and a lerge tract excluded therefrom pre-
suiably in the interests of land speculators,

Under instructions of the survevor-zeneral of the United States
dated Augrust 19, 1881, a survey of the southern and eastern bounduary
Jives of the reservation was made in August and September, 1881, by
G. F. Allirdt, United States deputy survevor. By this survey the
area is given as 1,465.81 acres, the southern boundary coinciding with
that orizinally claimed by the military authorities, as indicated by the
location of the fence. ' : o : s
-~ A final survey was made in December, 1885, under instructions of
the United States surveyor-general, by ¥. Von Leichr, United States
deputy surveyor, to determine the exact limits of the city’s pueblo
lands. This survey was approved and patent finally iscued June 20,
1884. It fixes the arvea of the Presidio Reserve at 1.474.94 acres.

By a decision of the Secretary of the Interior. in 1884, the southeast
corner of the Presidio Reserve was fixed and marked by a monument,
and the boundary line adjusted accordingly. ’ : -

The final survey of 1883, onwhich the patent to the city was issued,
followed the courses of old survevs along the west and north water
front of the city, except as to the meanders of the shore st certuin
points. Changes of this character along ihe occan front of the ity
caused a renumbering of the courses along the water front of the Pre-
sidio Reserve, so that the figures do not correspond with the original
surveys, : A ' s

Claim has been asserted {o a portion of the water front of the reser-
vation on the ground that the lands are tide or overfiowed lands and
pertain to the State, from which title has been obtained: but the mili-
tary authorities, under the Executive order declaring the reservation,
bold all lands along the northerly front. It is understood that this
tenure is not disputed by the city authorities and is conceded by the
Interior Department. : T :

While the Stratton survey of 1866 was ip progress, a party of land
speculators followed up the lines as ran by the surveyors with a board
fence and proceeded to-erect a frame shanty for temporary oceupa-
tion, with a view to legalizing their claim to the lands excluded frowm
the Government reserve on its southern side. The fence and build-
ing were promptly removed and the preemptors ejected by the military
authoritics. Subsequently, application was made to the city for deeds
to the lands in question, on the ground that they were public Jands and
that the laws as to occupation, ete., hud been observed. The decds
were granted, and the large triangular tract along the south side of the
reserve, hetween the lines as fixed by the final survey and the Stratton
survey, is assessed hy the city for taxation in the name of the alleged
owners who are paying taxes on a nominal valuation, with a view, 1t
is presumed, to t&xe assertion of their claim to lands which are now of

reat value. T

The United States general hospital, at the Presidio, was established
in 1899. : ' '

Lines of comnanication.—ost-oflice and telegraph station, at the
post; railrond station, San Francisco, Cul., distance 44 miles.  Strect
railroad from San Francisco to the post. :
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Hidory.—1t wae eeized by the United States forves during the Mexican war, and
was occupied March 7, 18449, by Capt. F. J. Lippitt’s company of Col. J. D. Fteven-
son'e regiment, First New York Volunteers,  Occupation for milkary purposes has
been continuous to date, . : :

February 4, 1902, it wus recommended by & board of officers convened by Special
Orders, No. 261, Hendquarters of the Army, November 11, 1901, to coneider and
report upon the Jocation and distribution of military posts required for the proper
accommodation, inetruction, and training of the Army as organized under the act of
February 2, 1801, not including coast fortifications, a8 4 permanent post for two hat-
teries ficld artillery, and necessavy coast artiiery, and one company of the Signal
Corps, with completely equipped telegraph train. -

Summary of the post as it ecists—Officers’ quarters, D. 8. 1. 8. S. 26,
also accommodutions for two officers in No. 24, post headquarters;
noncommissioned stafi officers’ quarters, D. 5. 3, 8. 5. 1: hospital
stewards’ quarters, 1: lodges, 4; quarters of civilian employees, 13
Darracks, S. S. 9 (capacity, 30 to 63 men cach); barracks, D. S. 5
(capacity, 160 men cach; total capacity, 1,220 to 1,265 men); post hos-
pital, 1 (capacity, 28 patients and 16 attendants): post headquarters,
1; assembly room, 1: chapel, 15 school and reading room. 1; post-
office, 1; post exchange, 1; guardbouses, 6: post guardhouse, 13
kitchen and mess room, 3; quartermaster and commissary storchouse,
1; quartermaster storebouse and coal shed, 15 storehouse., 1; ordnance

storehouse, 1; forage storehouse, 1; subsistence storehouses, ¥; quar-
termaster storchouse, 1; commissary storehouse, 15 veterinary hospi~
tal, 1; post stable (old), 1 (capacity, 12 horses); quartermaster stables,
2-(capacity, 198 animals); shed and additiong, capacity 423 animaisy
Gorral for Lransient animals, capacity 1,100 animals; cavalry or artil-
Jery stables, 5 (capacity, 353 horses); bukery, 2: bakehouse, 13 bake
shop, 1; hosecart house, 15 hook and ladder hLouse, 13 temporary.en-
gine bouse at pumping works, 1; coal sbed at pumping works, 13
magazines, 2; quartermasters’ shops, 1 shops, 4: water-closets, 3; gun
ssheds, 8; granary, 1; wagon shed, quartermaster department, 13 buzad
stand, 1: scale houve, 1; oil house, 1; garbage cremator, 1. :

_ United States Army General Hospital—Officers’ quarters, D. S.. 13
8. 8., 1; hospital corps quarters, 1 (capacity. 85 men); nurses’ building
{female), 1 (capacity. 50): detailed men's building (capacity, 85 men);
administration building, 15 wards, 10 (capacity. 368 beds); patients’
dining roomn, 1; patients’ kitchen, 1; storehouse, 17 laundry, 1; power
house, 1. : S . ‘ =

Fort Puint.—Officers’ quarters, D. S., 1; 8. S., 1; barracks, 1
(ca}»acity, 100 men); ordnance storebouse, 13 ordnance repair shop, 1.

- Infantry curtonnent, established <n 1602.—Oflicers’ quarters, D. 8.,
143 8. 8.,710; hachelor officers’ quarters, 6§ sets for 7 each: noncom-
missioned stafl quarters, 5; servants’ quarters, 1; band barracks, 2;
company barracks, 24 (capacity, 65 men each): bospital and dispen-
‘wmry, 2 regimental beadquarters and cantonment headquarters, 13
beadquarters depot vecruit instruetion, 15 ofiice cantonment quar-
termaster, 1; sunmmary court and officers’ sebool building, 1: clerk’s
flncc, 1; chapel and reading roomn, 1; schoolbouse, 2: exchange build-
ing, 1; guurdhouse, 2; mess halls, 3: company kitchen, 1; dining

-~ 2

Toom, 1: compuny niess house, 125 officers” mess hall, 27 company
mess hall and kitchen, 1; company mess house, 13 company mess hall
and kitchen, 10: band mess hadl and kitchen, 12 storehouse, 17 quar-
fermuster storehouse, 12; commissary storehouse, 1; bukehouse, 13
buud practice room and storchouse, 1; workshops. 13 company bath’

‘houses, §; oflicers’ bath houses, 6; prisoners’ bath house, 1.
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Mcthod of Lighting post.—Presidio, mineral-oil lamps; general hos-
pital, electricity: post hospital, infuntry cantonment. mincral-oil Jamps,

Water system and wuter supply.—Water supply for post from wells
at Mountain Lake, near the United States Marine Hospital.  Quality
good; quantity inadequate to meet all requirements. and connection s
also made with the Spring Valley Water Compuany’s mains.

“There are oue 16-inch well, cight 20-inch wells. and one 45-inch well,
with a combined capacity of 153300 gallons per hour. '

Water is alxo pumped from the post into the reservoirs constructed
by the engincer department at Fort Point in connection with fortifica-
tions erected and in process of erection at that point. and also for the
us¢-of the troops in barracks at Fort Winfield Scott and Fort Point;
the former, however. are vacant, except for temporary occupancy by
a quartermaster cmployvee as care taker. ’ e

Vater is pumped into the simall reservoir direct from AMountain
Lake for fire and sprinkling purposes, including the general hospital.

The water for tjxc supply of the quartermaster mule stable comes
from an artesian well, which delivers about 100 gallons per bour.

The water for the supply of the corrals, other than the main mule
stable, constructed for t{m accommodation of transient public animals,
is obtained from the post reservoir. the capacity of the artesian well
mentioned being insufficient for this purpose. S

Water is also taken from this post by the Government steamer to
Fort Baker and the discharge campat Angel Island, and a considerable
quantity is furnished the transport tug Slocune for her own use.

The average capacity of the plant has bheen 156,116 gallons for
domestic and 74,129 callons for five and sprinkling purposes per day:
but the quantity pumped for domestic uses being inadequate to meet
current needs of the post proper, the fortifications at Fort Point, Fort
Winfield Scott. and Old Tennessee Camp, it hecune necessary to con-
nect with the city main permanently. . e

Machinery at the pumping works: Pumps, 1 duplex Dow, capacity
17 gallons per stroke; 2 dry-air duplex Dow; 1 Thompson & Evans
pit, capacity 8§ gallons per stroke: 1 Dow feed. capacity .15 gallon per
revolution: 1 Smith-Vaile hoiler feed, capacity .33 gallon per revolu-
tion; 1 duplex Smith-Vaile vacuum; 1 Hooker deep well, capacity 4.25
gallons per revolution: 1 Thompson & Evans deep weil, same capacity;
2 Thompson & Evans deep well, capacity, each 2.3 gallons per revolu-
tion; 2 Snow fuel oil, capacity, each .137 gallon per revolution.
Boilers, 1 Risdon Iron Works 80-borsepower tubular, and 1 Union
Iron Works $0-horscpower tubular. S

Tanks, 2 wooden storage, capacity 20,000 gallons each, elevation173
feet each; 1 wooden storage, capacity 5.000 gallons, elevation 7 feets
9 wooden settling, capacity 5,000 gallons each, no elevation; 2 wooden
settling, capacity 3.000 gullons each. ' :

Reservoirs, 1 cement and brick. capacity 438.000 gallons, elevation
GO fect; 1 cement, capacity 112000 gallons, elecation €0 feet. At
Fort Point, 1 cement, capacity 140,000 gallons, elevation 246 fect, and
1 cement, eapacity 80,000 gallons, elevation 100 {eet.

The water pressnre hetween vesevvoir and post is approximately 45
pounds to the inch. .

Date of first installation and original cost of this water system 18
unknown. A practically new system was established in 1895, and has
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.cost, together with improvements and extensions since, approximately
v Sewer system.—The post is previded with a sufficient sewer system,
jn good condition, draining into San Francisco Bay. Date of first
installation and original cost not known. There bave been expended
since 1833, in extensions and iwprovements, approximately $24,320.
" The site of the post is well drained naturally, by a fall of 1 foot in
20 feet. : L e

Cemetery.—Nationul cemetery within the boundaries of the post
reservation. ' .
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THS ARIY AT TIZC GOLDL GATB e
Defenders of the Bay Roglon
on the stratezic position of the great Yandlooked horbor of

gon Franoisco Doy tho fate of this Teoifis Coast has mainly dopandode
sho Spanish Zopire rovoaled 4ts ﬁler‘i.mes to the nooossity of seouring
the Pay roglon egainst Russien egoression soon after 1769, the year
4n vhich tho Bey was discoverod by the cxpodition of Fortolas The
estoblichmont of the Presidio of Son Francisoo i1 1776 vas the
oulmination of explorations by Captain Fages (1772) and Captain

Rivora (1774), who surveyed tho shoreline of the Bay, saw the Golden

- gate, snd ponstrated ths San Joaquin Velley, The entry of the San

terlos through the Golden Gate in 1775 rovacled = its commander,
Licutenant Aynla, reported to the Viceroy of liow Spein, Don Antonio

Puoarell = that this harbor was ®ono of the bost he had scen in those

.gsag from Cape Norn up® ond furthormore that it oonstituted "not one

port, but many with a singlo ontrazm.;..."

' vhon Fether Podro Font, Anza's essistent in the founding of
Sen Francisco, locked down from the olil’s ovorlooking tho Doy
end the Colden Cato, ho sonsed the destiny of this harbor of hoarborsg.
IIo wrotas %inis mosa the co-zendor seleoted as the site for the now
settlaaont and ford whioh were to be es .ablished on this harbory for,
being on o height, it 18 &0 corxmnding thet with muskota it oan dofend
tho entranoe to the mouth of the harbor, whilo & gunshot ewny, it hos
yator for the poople o o ¢ ¥ A8 tho standard of Curlos 1II wes raiscd
shove thia northormost outpost of tha Spenish Rpire, the signors of

tho Deolaration of Indoporndence vrord essanbling et Philadolphin, el
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Genoral “aahington had elroady ascumed cormand of the Continental Mw./
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The Arzy ot the Gollden Cate
Dofonders of the Bay Rogion

YANRKSE SCOUTS AND SPANISH DOIS
. Sponish oo1oniai sottlemonts in the By region at the beglming
of tho ninetoonth eentury inoluded the Pregidio of San Francisou,
Mssdon Doloros, llission San Fafse, the pusblo of Sen Jose, dscion
Santa Clare, end Mission San Joss do Gualalupde Thoso progperous
ocrzifaitios — and more ecposislly tho rioh undevelopod hinterland e
woro & taptation to traders end advemturerse By 1000 the Day crea
hed bogun to attract the attention of foreizn nations = Ingland,
Fronce, Russis, and finally the United Ctateg = whose roving vosscls
galled with increasing frequency tirough the Golden Gatee
Under the rule of Govermor Fares {1782+1791), the Bay regien's
appareat isolation from sphores of international rivalry was considered
sufficiont proteotion azainst foreign agcressions lot until the visit
of Captain Vancouver's He Me Se Discovery to San Franoisco Bay in 1792
aid the provinclal gowrmsn‘:. at lonterey suddenly awake to the denger
of losing California to tho Pritishe "I had et san Francisco bub one
oannon, end it was out of comxalssion,” The Presidlo corrmndante
(ocommanding of ficer) explainads but ho was not exoused for permitting

Yongouvor and his officors to observe that San Joso end Mission Senta

" Clera wore oqually dofensolocse

Vicgroy Reovilla Gigodo, whon informod of this situation, ordered
$rrpdiate fortifiortion of thé ports of lonteroy and San Franoisco Bajye
The dofemsca of thoe Pregidio of San Fronelsco were strengthoned by the
construction of a fort (San Joaquin) to guard the faous gtrait which

Framont half & century lator named tho Goldon Gatee Governor Borloa

*d e
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(1794-1000) fuiled, howsver to taks sdvontage of this good boglnningy
for 4n him are found all the qualitiec which made Spenich Califomia

a foudal irvadle and & politioal 1inbility. *With the Semores
Yencouver, Petsr Pugot, and others," he boasted, "y an waging & oonteste
Yone of thom can best 10 over & dozen of wine.," And of Vencouver's
ceoctd vigit to San Frencisoo Bay in 1793 he camplecontly deolareds:

"re did not pive him time to obsorve again certein things of which 1t
wore woll that he remain iznoremt.” GSuch was the Governar of Alta
California == while Spain was at war with Ingland, Frence, and Rugsine
fis exrmple, eoccording to Father Snlazar, was followod by £he vhitoe
population in San Joses "The poople ars & sot of 1dlars....bon£‘idmt that
tlo Centllos ere working, tha settlers pass the day singinge The young
mon vendor on horgebacl: through the roncheries (Indian villages)
soliciting the women to immorality.® 0f such low vices, the gorto do
ragon (zertry) could not bo sooused, but thess also cared more for the
erts of lolsure than for the security of the land.

The Yankee cormander of ths Lelia Byrd, Ceptain Williem Shalor,
in 1805 obsorved that the Golden Gato was defended only "by & battery
on vhich rre mounted swas bress pou_ndera; whioch afi’ord only the show
of defensos and tho place could make no rosistance egninst the swdlest
mllitary forceesee” Fni.lu;e to inprove tse lortifications led, in
1812, to tho establighmsnt of & sottlement of Russien traders and’
hunters of coa ottor = Fort Ross - morth of Bodoga Daye Lfforts

of govornor Sola (1315-1822) to dislodge the nowccners were not wih

-da
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intermincble palaverings end ctolid rofusalse *he Prosidio cormmndanto,
while honestly declerirg that he had neither the troops nor equiprent
to ejcot them, secrstly oncouraged trude botwoen the Russiens snd the
Bay regica sottlerce
Aftor 1825, whon Alta Califcrnia booems a provingse of the
Republic of oxlco (whish won its independence in Iturbidets coup
ar etet of 1821), provious restrictions on trade with foreignors
were rewveds Under the ndministrations of the liberal Governor
Lids Arzuollo (1822-1325) end of his successor’, Coloasl Jose izria
1a (1325-1831), a mumber of industrious Angle= Arericans arrived
in the &y rogion and at Moatoreye Individual treders guch o willdiem
Feath Davis, Jacod Loogo, iWillion rcideadorfs, and ¥Willism A. Elchardson
1044 the oorrwreinl foundation for the Port of San Tranolsco after the
establishnent of Yerba B'.zem- {san Franoisco) in 1835 The British {irm
of IcCullooch, lartnsll & coe Areded in hidos end tallow, and Thomas Oe
Laridn (Tuitod States Consul et Monbervy from 1844 wntil smerloaa
ocoupation) did business with everybody while boasting California on
' ¢he Atlartioc venboard. lions of these men had active desipgns on the
torritory, though rmany hoped that eventually California would declare
1ts indepondonos of loxico and Join aither the Eritish Espire or the
United Gtatese
Betwoen 1630 end 1840, however, imericans of a more egprussive
type begen Yo arrivo in tho Bay x;ogion e trappora, baskmoodamen of &ll

gorts, end sailors desorting from whelers and hida-and tallow shipse In

.80.
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the weke of the BidwelleDortleson Party of 1841 came others in increase

ing numbors soross the Siorra trails blazed by such pathfindors ag

®tho praying tothodist trappere® Jedodish Smith, tho Pattie trothers,
and Joserh Talkere By 1840 there wore soveral hundreds Dosplite opros—

{
4tion of tho govermmont at iontoroy, these sottlers had in the Pay reglon

. gevoral powerful &llies whem thoy could couxt on for supporte The

Sam'ax:mto valloy wes domimntod by Captain Johamm Augustus Sutterts
colony on the rregent site of Sacrazeuto (fortified and mmed with 12
osnnons boucht from the Russiang whon, in 1841, they ebondoned Ford 1088 e
Dre John larsh, from his huge rancho near Mount Diablo, spread proeinsre
fcan influsnce over tho area east of the Bay, The pucblo of Sonctwm,
without & garrison to man its nine cxll omnnons or shoulder its 20O

+g, vas cormanded by Don iarleno Ge ValleJo who, hostile to the

Yaxican regins, foored only that Amarican amoxation might not be ecoope

lished by pescoful moanse

Comandanto Vallejo was rot surprised, thoreforo, vhen on June
14, 1840, a band of scttlera led by Esoliel lerrit ("a phenonoaal tobaccoe
chewer” ) called upon hin to surrendar, hoistod ebove the plaza tholr
"Roar Floge" and proclainmed Californin an indopondent republlioce Vallodo
and sovernl other prisoners were hustled firom Soncrm to Suttor's Forte
that Sngpired this Boar Flag revelt wns the presence in tho Sacramento
Valley of ¥uthfinder® John Charles Frocont, brevet coplain of toposrophe
$oul enginsors in the United States Army, who had been conducting surveys
of northern California for the purpose of establiching an overland route

to the Pacifio coacte Fremout was friendly towurd the Bears, btut remnined
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aloof from thoir sotivities while General Jose Castro at Santa Clar”
oslled on his countrymen to “rise en msus, irresistible and jJust,” end
sent Lisutenant Josquin de la Torre with & !'or& of 60 men to put dowm
the insurroctione Aftsr & battle betwean thess troops and ths Bours!?
riflecon near Potalurs, Captain Frewont suddenly took command of the
rebellion at Sonoma on July B, 1846, and marched to engage De la Torrets
forces nt San Rafegle Finding that they had fled to rejoing Goneral
Castro at Smnta Clara, Frenontts so.outn and ths Bears crogsed the Bay
and spiked the dimwantled guns of the Castillo do San Joaquin, while a
party of Bears lod by Dre Ticbord Serple ("six foet six inches tall,")
asoording to Jacob Loeso, "and about fitoen inchos in dlmwotor, drossed
in proapy bucksiin fram neck to foob, exd with & fox-sldn cap") raidod
the Tudcon's Say Companyts post st Terba Buona &nd captwred Robert Nidley,
harbormastor of Yerba Buonse Returning to Sutterts Fort, Fremont's
party then prooseded to ocoupy San Juan Dautists, with a detachmet of
dregoons dispatohed by Comrwdore John De Sloat, whose naval forces had
raiged the fmorican flag over Honterey and Yerba Buende

Outtreak of the Viar with liaxico saved the United States my
exbarassnent the Nation might have suffored over the Be#r Flag revolt
(Premont wpperently hed ascted on his om initiative, and oontrary to the
United Statsa povermmentt®s policy of peaceful exmoxation)e Thus tho horoes
of the Soncua affalr, x;eoanaiz.*.tuted as tho Ccalifornis Battallion, were
hororable participants in Fremoutts trtwaphal entry into lonterey, which
prosaced the finnl conquost of Californise Ironically onough, Lisutoramt
Fredoricl: Talpole of l.Se Collinssmood, flagship of Adairal Soymourts

/

«fe

PR e Ao e e e i e 4 Vi e e sn <t P A b AL TS B SO T S %




The Arrry at the Golden Oate
Defandora of tho Bay hogion . 212

British maval squadron orusing off Monterey, vdt_moaud this ovent
which pwant ths frustration of whatovor designs his ‘govermaont hed on
the Pacific Conste "A vast cloud of dust appeared at first," he doclares,
®end thenoe in long file emerpe’this wildest wild partye Fronomt rode
shosd, & cpare, active looking man, with such an eyol lio wag dressed
4in a blouse and loggings, end wore & 201% hate Aftor hinm omue gix
Dolaware Indlang, who were his body suard ¢ o e o The rest, meny of
then blocker than the Indiens, rode two and two, the rifle held by oo
hend oorcss the pommol of the saddle ¢ ¢ o o Tho saddles were of various
feshions, though those and & large drove of horses and & brass fleld-gun
wore things they had picked up in Californinece™

Premont®s "wildest wild party” of Yankee soouts end frontier
fighters joined Coomodore Robert Fe Stooktonts marines end procedad
southwerd 4o ocoupy the territory which already had been invadsd by Groops
of General Stophen Ve Rearny, who hed rmde a forced march franm Samta Fee
Mexican rosistance in the Bay reglon and northern taliformia apparently
wes broken, but in lovember e forco of 100 men raised by Gonsral Castro
abtached American militlamen noar Son Juan Bautistse The Hedcan ‘aoopé
o aploying thelr pscullsr tactics of guddon advenoe, foigned fllght,
and sbout=face charge = drove the Yaniwe troops to covers This
oncageent was followod on Jumuary 2, 1847, by Dofoat of & Kexicun foroe
led by ranchoro Don Franclsco Sancheg near Santa Clarse In this "Zatile
of tho Justard Stalls" e which tool plzoe in a field of nustard e o party
of parines led by Captain iard Marsten fron Yorba Bucna firally put an
end to hostilitiecs in ihs Bay Regione Tilthin two wesks southern Calie
fornia had capitulated to tho Amorican forcese
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~ ARGONAUT3 AID UKION TROOPS
The viotory of the United States brought to the Bay region
4difforent prospscte Hare, historian Robert Glass Cleland observos,

“gcities wure to spring up where sloepy pucblos had previously stoods

the wriouched resourcos of the gonsrous oarth e- its mines, ito forests,

$ts loosues of uncultivetod 08l e~ were 4o be medo to serve the peods
of ul) mankind." Such progress came to pess, but not without & quasrtore
century of turmoil and sirife, in whioch the Army at the Golden Gate
pleyod & diffioult and sacroiocus roloe

Thilo the troops of Frawont, Stookion, end Koarmy wers quall
Yexican rosictance in southern Californis, the little hanlet of Yeroa
Bucha e~ its nome shortly o be chsnsed to Sen Franolsco=-was tha oo
of eotivitlos which 1laid the foundation for Americon military establische
ments in tho Bay ereas In the spring of 1847, from the {rensports, Porlins,
Susan Drev, Prutus, and Loo Choo, dicomberked Colonel Jomuthan Druke
Stovouscnts reginont of Hew York Volusteorse Arriving too late to pure

ticipato in the conquest of California, Commpnies 4, B, and V¥ of

" Stevensonts reginent wore dispatchod to augnent the gnrriaon.at Santa

Barbarag and Corpenies B and K were statiomsd at the Sea Francisoo
Presidio. Coptain Joseph Le Folscm, the regimontts aosistant quartere
mastor, tamrsd respoacibility for rcs"cabushin; and oporating a dopot
for suprlies lended on the San Franclizoo vaterfront froa the loxintbons
Oon August 29, 1848 Thaddous Ue Loavorsorth, chaplain of Stovousonts
roginont, boosmo the city's first civil slenlde (eyor) wder Anoricen
ruloe 2lreedy thoe wild rews from Suttorls lillereco had transformed
tho pamolont 1ittlo outpost of Yorba Buera into tho notropolis of the
Oocld Punlie
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Tho hills and sand dunes lying hm San Franoisoo's cluttered
ecbarcetero (1anding) and tho Presidio made tho Areanspart of ordnance
end havy stores impragticeble, 8o mptain.i'olsm was obligoed to leeso
from W1linn Leideadorff, pionser San Francisco Yorohant and vices
consu) for the Unitod States wndor lkxican rule, the warshouse at tho
foot of California Stroote Tho estoblistmont of this first United
States Quartermestorts Dopot mrth of lionterey golvod only the first
of tho prolloms with vhich Captain Felsom had to contende His urgent
eppeals to vashington for supplios not availeblo in California wore
answored in the spring of 1848, by the arrival of va_esela which isnded
oﬁ the San Prencicco woterfront cuch quantities of stores that he was
ot his wita® end to dispose of thome Of the Politlcsl and sooiel chaos
which reiszed 4n San Pranoisco during the swmor of 1048 Captain Folsom
declercds "The most mortifying stato of affairs prevaiils heree Governm
mout, both oivil and nilitary, 1s tbandoneds 0f{onsss ero currdittod |
with impumity end property end lives ere mwo lonzer safoe Last night
tho erow of the Chillian (sic) bark Correo rods upon theiyr officers with
‘arms in thoir hands, and after driving tham iuto the cebin, tho vessel
wos robled ard the men escaped up the Sacramonto in the long bouts 1Y
office Lo loft with & large exount of wonoy and pold dust in ite If 1%
4g possible to send & vessel of war hore, it should bo done &t oncea"

In addition to proouring, housing, end distritusing supplies, Folsca's
dopot vus roapc:lxaiblo for raintaininz rail commmicatien with Uonterey

by means of a pony expross operntod by quarterznglel’ eaploysote The
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gearch for supplios took the Captain ond his emll otaff all over the
Bey eroae Since no govermant boats were provided {fouw or five sl
soogoins wessols wero later ecquired, one of vhich the barque inita,
wes fittod wiih a canon) the depotts only faucilities for water transe
portation botween verious landings on the Bay wore & fow nondesoript
boats end eoorse ‘

Ths soldiors of Stsvenson's reciment, rustered out of service in
the eutirnof 1848 Joined the Gold iushe Troops of 4he Sscond Infantry

erriving on the transports Timtress, Yora, Fomg ond Mary end Adellwo

froen the ptlantio ceabosrd lcte in 1848 me replocamanta for Stevengonts

disbandod reginernt likewise succunboed to tho lure of the *digrinre.”

" mnlisted rom fron the Presidio end other garrisonsg of the Bay area
hoaded for the mincs, snd evon the 4roops diopatohied to errost then

froquently jolnsd 4ho dogerterss Infuct, tho increase in desertions
Yoft tho partios surveying tho Yevads == Californie boundery without
adoquate escort cpeinst Indien ettackse '

whe brenches of dlscipline and the ineffisiency imposed by ozrly
Gold Push conditions on tho amy, thoush soon corrected, were exploited
by one wagzich officor of the Socond Infantry to tho detrinont of his
pilitory carocr end to the making of his reputation as ons of the
15torary uorists of his times This vaa Lieutcnaxt Goarge Derdy,
bottor Imorm by his nom de pluw of Jolm Prwenix, vho advocated such

croveronts in mildtery tec‘:z:’.iq;:o as tho equitant of infentry with
poporwpots snd ferocious bullelogs end the rwuating of sixepound ficld

plocos "cn tho backs of stout jacimuses esasspdinted to tho rﬁax'.“
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Thaso balng fired the recoil will arcuse all the notural obstinnocy of
the anixl, vho thinking he is dboing pushed for‘anrd, will instantly move
storn first, with incredible celerity, towurd the enciy.®

The touch elemout emong tho disbanded Yew York Volurtteors, relfore |
rins to proy upon the stable citlsenry of Son Francisco rather thon risk
the hard toil of the plx;oors, forpod & seainilitory band of thieves end
terrorists knowm a8 "Mounds® or "Regulators® who plundared the oity with o
fres hond until exporarily dispersed by the Vigilaroo Comittea of 18Gle
However, tho rezimentts mustor roll carriod the namos of ron distinsuished
enong the Argonauts for psrformence of constructive works and tha aeciovee
sent of notable carcerse Desides Colcnol Stovenmon, the most farwus of
these men wore Capiain Homry M. lhglee, fourder of San Frencisoof’s firat
benks Coptain Franois Je Lippett, colcusl in tha First Californis Imfantry

dupdng tho Civil arg ‘1ieuwtonant Edrard Gilberd, first editor of the noude

papar, the Alta Californise Captain +4111lirma E. Shamaon suthor of &
provisicn in the California Constltution of 1849 prohibiting slavery; and
Captein Nolson Taylor, o brigadiererensral in the Unien Army during thoe

Civil Tars lany of those men, having boon offloers in tho ropular Arcy

$oforo boing assigned to Stovonsonts regimont, wore instreontal os
privete citizens 4n bringing lew and order to san Pranclsgo out cf thoe
erprchy of the Gold Rughe

On Dosrd tho otuemor California vhen, en route to San Frursisoo,
1% touchod &t lontorey on February 23, 10649, was Genorel Porsifer Fe
Se2ith, who had boea orderod to relleve Colonsl Richard Be leson of his
dutles 0g cormandor of tho Division of tho Pacifice then the Coliforndn

proceadsd up to tho Congt, to disecbork ito cargo of Argonauts on tho
CR RS
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San Franolsoo waterfront on Pebruary 28, axmong its passengers wers

OGomerel Ootth, and his adjutant, Lieulonant Williem T Shermane Thus

were hoadquarters for the military comrend for California and Oregon trunse
ferrod to the motropolis of the CGold Fugh, and installed in the old adcbe

' Customs louss on Portsouth Square boonuse the Presidio offered mo suiie=

able fuoilitles.

Yot iupressed with San Franclsco, Coneral Sith reported that
b & m"fn no way fittod for owrvroinl o military purposes; there is mo
harbor, & bad landirg placs, bad water, no supply of provisions, an ivclew
rent olimte, and 4t 48 out off froxt tho rest of the country, exoopt by w
long oircuit around the southern extremity of the bays" Bssides, the
leases were about €0 expire on the warchouses gerving as tho Quertcrmaster's
Depot and fantastio rontals would mmke renewnls prohibitoryes For thasg
roasons Gonerel :Saith in Junoe 15493 removed divisicn heedquarters tetpoe
rarily to Sonona ponding oompletion of barracks, quarters and & dopot
ot Dongoime Mnjor Coneral Washingtom Ceaveli relieved smith of his
oaraand in April, 1851y and in Ootober of tha soms year, Gensral Seswailts
suscousor, lajor Gonsral Ee Ae liitchoock, ramoved headquarters of the

-Divlsion of tho Pagific ¢o Banioiao

The *First California Gmrd.“ plonosr Eational Guard organization.
was formed in San Franoisco durlng 1049 ¢o put dowm disordors of crinmiml
elenta «= chiofly Australien convicts knom az "Sydnoy Duckp® e= aixd
4o arrost Ay and Navy desartorse Ibort Xowo Dnnoroft sayss "i‘: w0e
ca artillery compony but drilled alco with musiots end infantry ro¥emontse
In July it consigted of 41 nmombars inurdasing o 100 in Sopiambor and on

o 15 w
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gopterbor 8, Gonoral Riloy oormissioned Henry le Yacles, Captain, ¥ite OeHe
Towdrd and yron Lorton, First Ltses HEall MoAllister and Dvnid Fe Begloys
ond Ltaes Smmol Corry, surgeon end Re Te Minton, Sergeante” Dotwoon 1849
-ﬁd tho outbreak of the Civil Tar 21 caprnies of military charaster wsro
organizod in San Frenciscoe Tholr doubtful lecal status end their vwriety
of wniforms mnde them more often & Fource of confusion than a force for
the matntenanos of ordere *In tho latter part of 1850," says John P. Young
#the Yashinston Guords wns formed, the oompeny which in 1851 responded o
the oall of the rmicipel authorities and prevented tha lynching of

purdus end Windred by the Vizilantess Tho orgonization only lasted o few
ronthse" ' '

Ths orgenisation of & State militia wag nocessitated by masacres
oahltteﬁ by bhdstile Indiecna throughout the area of the goldfieldse To
avence the murdor of vhits settlers along tho Tuolume exd Stantalaus
rivora, & force of 75 volimteers wder Lajor Jaos Burney, shordflfl of
Yhriposa County, in Jamuery, 1051, tracked the Indiens into the siorra
Yovada, vhore, altor & four hour battle, turned their village endkilled
60 worrioree So serlous did the hootilities boooma, howevor, that
Governor John ixDougal diopatchod Colonel Je Nealey Johnson with &
battalion of 400 volunteer militlaman e whnich included ths noted saout
and Indian fightor Injor Jumss De Savass e ©o hold the Indiansg in cheok
antil 4he arrival of United States cormmissionars for Indlen .afraira. who
wera instruoted to errange for sostloment of tho hoastile tribes oa &

- resorvatione

For Comtalssionor Oe Me Yozonoralt end his staff, Goneral fmlth
provided en oscort of 121 officers and nan, fully oquipped, wder tho
oomsmnd of Captain L. De Koyese The party procoeded by bont up the

owl=
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Saorsmanto to enter into nogotiaticns yrith chiefs of tho various trihes.

o My 30, 1851, at m;;ht': Ferry, wore signed the seven troaties vwhich

brought enY end to hostilitles and established the Indlan resermation on

the Twlume and the Stanislaus “for the solo use and occupency of sadd

Indien trives forevers® The task of rounding up the chiefs of the Iou=

olewmo, ths Te~Chille, the Sus=-cesh, the C‘mppﬂ.b-sim and tho sagowarie
wag perforned by Major savagoe's frontisr militieoon, vho were obli;sd %o

. wage & onpeign ne far cast as Yosenite Valley bofore the last of the tribes

we the Tosmite cnd the Choawchilla «- oould bo twrought wnder econtrol.

Froo 1853, whon the namo of its occrand was changod to the Departe

sent of the Pecific, until tho civil "nr the Army at tho Golden Gate

wap ensngd\ in establishing nilitary recervations end fortifications for

the defenso of the San Francicos Day rogione Under the comand of-iajor

Ceneral lowwn Se Clark, who ranoved Division Leadquarters pertienently

to the ?r.esidio in 1857, Ay o::xginsm wore occupled in bullding thosze

po-ats end fortifications which are the foundation of San Francisoo's

modarn syston of harbor dofengese Vork was begun sinultansously on the

. fortifications of Fort Point and of Alcatrag Islands The £500.00 o«

Yator incroased Yo 3850.00 o= provided by Congress for those dofenses.

1n 1853 nloo oalled fow batteries on Lime Point and on Angel Island. The

fortitdontions of the lattor, with those of Alcetrag and Ford lnson on

the Maliland, constituted the harborte second line of defonse azalingt

o potential onomy passing the fortifications of tho Golden Gatee In this

syston, Alostrag e= nuiod Icle de Jos Alcatrages (Islend of the Pelicans)

T b )
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dosizmated "Fort Aloatrag at San Fronolsco® in 1553, it subsequently was

equipped with powder pasasines, supply chanbers, a=i cisterns, constructed

desp in the e0lid rock and designed to prepare the 'm for prolonzed
sleze in the event of its beconing 1ao1ated from the mainlende

Moatres was the first nilitary post capletad by the Amy on tho
pooifio Conste 1ts first comrmnding officor was Cx~tain Joseph Utewart,
and the first dotachront quartersd thore was Compisy He mird Artillary.

Puring tho sbsenod of these troops in the spring cf 1880 == when thoy

wore dispatched to quell & revolt of Piute and Shoshone Indians in leveda

o= the islend vis ooocupied by & detoo'ment of ten men from tho Prosidic.

' K the outbresk of the Civil var, the Alcatras garrison was augmented by
an ordnance dotuchrent of Company A engineersy &=d a detackmsnt of First
prazoons (later the First Cavalry), sll under the ecrmend of dajor Homry
Se¢ Durton. Tho arsomont of Aloatras in Acril 15651, consisted of 84 guns
and more than 19,000 shot end shells

myoughout the dscade preceding tho outbreak of the Chrn.r:ar ihe
hetorogeneous population of tho Bay rezion was cocupied with the feverich

. .quest for gold and with speculation in cormodities mnd real estates
puring the prevailing gooial, cconorip, erd pclitical reorganization, the
Army et the Golden Cats performed the ranrietle feat of romining o steble
end gonstruotive forcoe 1n 1661 & majority of *he oitizens of San Froncisoo
stood firmly for the Unlon in opposition to the proslavery and [rocession
footorge Gan Francisco was sufficiontly strong %o rold the political
sontiment of tho States henco, Californis comsributed heavily of nen, monsy

and natoriels to £hs Unicn Cousge

e 10 e
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At the cutbrook of the Civil var there wore about 6000 offlcors 221
and enlicted man of the Regular Ariy stationed in Califcrnine Though tho
Bay recion had denonstrated its loynlty to the Union carly in the crisis,
soutborn California contained an active end poworful seocossionist minority,
which tiroctoned the position of the Statee Acting ronptly on orders fron

 prosidont Alvaohma Lincoln, Drigdlor GConoral Ee. Ve Swwor arrived et the
Presidlo of Sen 'rencisco, Arril 24, 158G1, to relieve General Albert Si
" Johnston @8 comaanding officer of the Division of tho Paeifiog Johnston had
resicned from the Army to Join the farcoa of tho Confadercye Ou April
£8, Ocneral Swnor ropartod to the sssistant adjutant General in Wiasidngtons
r ®] have determined to reinforoe imediately and strongly the forts in thia
- harbor, &nd heve ordered down three companios of artillery (including the
battory) fran Fort Vencouveresee My intention is to put four hundred ren
on Aloeires Isiand.xono hundrod and £ifty at Fort Point, and place tha
battery in the depot of Benicla, in addition to tho two infentry companies
now fhereees I think this disposition of the troops willese have tho eflsct
to foreclose st omnce all hopes on the jart of tho disaffected of tholr ever
'.bein;_; able to procipitate mattors hore by seizing forts and arsoral 8e°
The procautions having boon taken, Brigedier Consral Sumor tuxmod
;_ his attertion to southern California and Teveda Torritorye Sinco no seccssion
. faotion cxisted in Crogon end es thore vua little possibility of sorious
Indian disturbancose Large forcos wore withdresm from the lorthwest to

roinforce gorrisons et Los Angeles end Port Churchill, Hevodgs loanwhile?
on April 15, Airil 17, end Yay 3, Prosidont Linocoln had issuod ocallas for

volurtoors for the Union Armye Lioutonant Ddward De Baker, Unitoed States
Senetor from Oregon and an ex=Californian, on Arril 21 accepted an invitetion

to orpenico and command & "California rezinont" to be made up of former
o’ »l?7«
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Californisns living in Kow fork and Pennsylvanise

Later, in reaponse to & messaso dispatched by the Secretary of vor,
July 24, 1801, to Governor John Ge Downoy of Califoraia Rripadier Genereal
Richard He Orton wrotos ®one full rogimont of ten campanies of infentyy was
raised, which booame the First califcrnia Infantry, and five companiss of
cavalry, vhich bocams ths First Battalion of tho Frat California Cavairye
In 1863, ceven ccmpanios of cavalry were raised mako the First Covalry
e full regiront of twelve oorpanies.” The First Regimont, drilled ly taoe
¢tSclans end fiold of ficors solected fron the Pogular Aroy, wos assizned the
took of defending the Frontiera of licw Yexlco amd Colorado erningt Ddien
attacks £nd inveslion by Conl‘erc.to Foroease

" A gecond tolegrem to Governor Dawmey, August 1&, 1861, rosultod
4n the organization of the Seocnd Cavalry end thas Seccnd, Third, Fourbth,
and Pifth Poginents of Infantrye First rustered at the Presidio under
the coamand of Colonel Franois Je Lippott, this repimsnt, with o porsonnsl
of 1,861 officors and men, wna asaigned by units to various posts in
 Califcrnie, Oregon, end f-‘ashing;ton Territory, chiefly %o rolieve troops
of the reguler Arnye The Third Infentry hoginent of Californis Voluntoers,
with @ roster of sor® },600 of ficors cnd men, was orgeniged at Stockton
end Banioln by Colonel Patrick De Comnere Its spoocific duty was to guard
the centrel overland routo fron Levada e